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AUDITORS® REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Shareholders of Compaiifa de Distribucién Integral Logista Holdings, S.A.:
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Compafifa de Distribucion
Integral Logista Holdings, S.A. (“the Parent”) and Subsidiaries (“the Group™). which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet at 30 September 2016, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity, consolidated
statement of cash flows and notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year then ended
(“2016™).

The Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent’s directors are responsible for the preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial
statements so that they present fairly the equity. financial position and results of operations of the
Group in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union and the other provisions of the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the Group
in Spain, and for such internal contro] as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
rTor.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is o express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the audit regulations in force in Spain. Those
regulations require that we comply with ethical requirements and pian and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the preparation by the directors of the Parent of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for cur audit opinion.

DOeloitte, S L inscrita en of Registro Mercantif de &ladrid, tomo 13,650, seccitn 8% foiio 138, hoja #4-54414, inseripeitn 96° C1F: B-79104465
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Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated equity and consclidated financial position of Compafifa de Distribucién
integral Logista Holdings, S.A. and Subsidiaries at 30 September 2016, 2nd the consolidated resukts
of their operations and their consotidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
[nternational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and the other
provisions of the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the Group in Spain.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The accompanying consolidated directors® report for 2016 contains the explanations which the
Parent’s directors consider appropriate about the Group’s situation, the evolution of its business and
other matters, but is not an integraf part of the consolidated financial statements. We have checked
that the accounting information in the consolidated directors’ report is consistent with that contained
in the consolidated financial statements for 2016, Our work as auditors was confined to checking the
consolidated directors” report with the aforementioned scope, and did not include a review of any
information other than that drawn from the accounting records of Compafifa de Distribucién Integral
l.ogista };ijdin'g’s‘,“S‘:A and Subsidiaries.
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Transiation of consolidated financial statements originally issved in Spanish and prepared
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union (see Notes 2 and 32). Inthe
event of 4 discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.

COMPANIA DE DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL LOGISTA HOLDINGS, S.A.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED

30 SEPTEMBER 2016 AND 2015
(Thousands of Euros)

Note 2016 2015

Revenue 24.2 5,632,004 5,470,990
Procurements (8,583,922) {8,460,920)
GROSS PROFIT 1,038,082 1,010,070
Cost of logistics networks:

Staff costs 24.b {169,740) (165,458}

Transport costs (212,891) {208,865}

Provincial sales office expenses {73,664} (73,776}

Depreciation and amortisation charge 4.2, 6and 8 (88,894) (85,345)

Cther operating expenses 24.¢ (175,743} {153,450)
Total cost of logistics networks | ' {720,932} (684,892}
Commercial expenses:

Staff costs 24b {42 939) (49,817}

Other operating expenses 24.¢c {21,508) (22,072}
Total commercial expenses _ (64,445) . (62,889)
Research expenses ) {1,805} {2,382)
Head office expenses:

Staff costs 24.b {54,132) {63,844

Depreciation and amortisation charge | 4.2, 6 and 8 {1,284) (4,334)

Other operating expenses 24.c (19,472} (33,703)
Total head office expenses (74,888} {101,880)
Share of results of companies 802 258
Net gain on disposal and impairment of non-current assets Gand 8 255 1,689
Other expenses {26) (17}
PROE{T FROM OPERATIONS 177,143 159,857
Finance income 24.e 14,520 12,370
Finance costs | 241 (3,898) {4,284)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 187,764 167,943
Income tax 19 (55,236) {58,033)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 132,528 109,94
Rasult for the period from discontinued operations net of tax (120) {300}
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 132,408 108,610
Attributable to |

Shareholders of the Parent 132,079 109,183

Minority interests 16 329 417
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE I 5 1,00 0,82

The accompanying Notes 1 to 32 and Appendix 1 and 2 are an iniegral part of
he consolidated income statements for 2016.




Translation of consolidated financial statements originafly issued in Spanish and prepared
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union (see Notes 2 and 32]. Inthe
event of & discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.

COMPANIA DE DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL LOGISTA HOLDINGS, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016 AND 2015
(Thousands of Euros)

Note 2018 2015

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 132,408 109,610

Net actuarial gain {loss) recognised directly in equity 18 {1,329} {1,124}

Foreign exchange rate changes (29} (44}

Net gain (logs) on taxes recognised directly in equity - -
TOTAL NET GAIN (LOSS) REGISTERED DIRECTLY IN EQUITY (1,358) {1,168)
TOTAL NET GAIN (LOSS) CONSOLIDATED REGISTERED DURING THE YEAR 131,050 108,442
Attributable to:

Shareholders of the Parent 130,721 168,025

Minority interests _ i 328 417
TOTAL ATRIBUTABLE i 131,050 108,442

The accompanying Notes 1 to 32 and Appandix 1 and 2 are an integral part of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for 2018.
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Translation of consolidated financial sfatements originally issued In Spanish and prepared
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union (see Nofes 2 and 32). in the

event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.

COMPANIA DE DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL LOGISTA HOLDINGS, S.A.

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
30 SEPTEMBER 2016 AND 2015

- (Thousands of Euros)

Note 2016 2015

OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 388,637 230,911
Consolidated profit before tax from continuing operations 187,764 167,943
Adjustments for:
Result of companies accounted for using the equity method {802) (258)
Depreciation and amortisation charga 6and8 50,247 80,885
Provisions recognised/ (reversed) 3,879 8,833
Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets 6and 8 (255) (1,761}
Financial profit (10,621) (8,088}
Net change in assets / Habilities-
(increase)/Decrease in inventories {22,528) 8,367
(increase)/Decrease in trade and other receivables {14,837) {6,221)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables (9,585) (67,871)
Increasef(Decrease) in other current liabilities 194,826 121,047
Increase {Decrease) in other non-current liabilities {135) (20,421)
Income tax paid (40) (69,800)
Finance income and costs 10,621 8,182
INVESTING ACTIVITIES: {285,701) {133,258)
Payment for investment
Property, piant and equipment 3] (15,818} (16,852}
Intangible assets 8 {9,077} (13,858)
Other current financial assets {263.057) {108,307}
Proceeds from financial divestments
Property, plant and equipment 6 2.251 3,077
Group companies, net of cash in consolidated companies 18 - 680
FINANCING ACTIVITIES: {102,025) (106,755)
Payment of dividends and remuneration of other equity instruments
Dividends 14 {99,373) {106,200}
Proceeds and payments of equity instruments
Acguisition of treasury shares 14 (4,362} (670}
Proceeds and payments for financial liability instruments
Repayment and amortization of;

Current borrowings (252) (38)

Other payables (7 -
Deht issuance 1,869 153
NET INCREASE/DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 911 {9,102)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 22,714 31,816
Net change in cash and cash equivalents during the vear 911 (9,102)
Total cash and cash equivalents at end of year 23,625 | 22,714

The accompanying Notes 1 to 32 and Appendix 1 and 2 are an integral part

of the consolidated cash flow statement for 2016



Transiation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Notes 2 and 32). In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language
version prevails.

Compafiia de Distribucion Integral Logista Holdings, S.A. and
Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended
30 September 2016

1, General information on the Group

Compaftia de Distribucion integral Logista Holdings, S.A. hereinafter “the Parent company”, was
incorporated as a sociedad anonima (Spanish public limited company) on 13 May 2014, with its sole
shareholder being Altadis, S.A.U., a company beionging to the lmperial Brands Group PLC, On 4 June
2014, the Company effected a capital increase with all shares subscribed by Altadis, 8.A.U. through non-
monetary contribution of shares representing 100% of the share capital of Compafila de Distribucion
Integral Logista, $.A.U., until that time the parent company of the Logista Group, from then onwards, the
Company became the Parent of tha aforementioned Group.

The offering of shares in the Parent Comparny comes to an end on 14 July 2014, and its shares are
currently listed for trading on the Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia Stock Exchanges.

The reporting period of most of the Group companies starts on 1 October of each year and ends on 30
September of the following year. The twelve-month period ended 30 September 2015 will hereinafter be
refersed to as “2015", the period ended 30 September 2016 as “2016", and so on.

The Company has registered office at Poligono Industrial Polvoranca, calle Trigo, no. 39, Leganés
(Madrid), being tr2 Parent of the Group, the operating compary of which is Compafia de Distribucion
Integral Logists = AU,

The Group, a distriuior and logistics operator, provides various distribution channels with a wide range of
value added products & services, including tobacco and related tobacco products, convenience goads,
electronic documenis and products (such as mobile phone and travel card top-ups), drugs, books,
publications and lottery fickats, The Group provides these services through a compiete infrastructure
network which spans the whole vaiue chain, from picking to POS delivery.

Compafiia de Distribucion Integral Logista Holdings, S.A. is the head of a group of domestic and foreign
subsidiaries that engage in various business activities and which compose, together with Logista Holdings
S.A., the Logista Group {hereinafier “the Group™.

A detall of the investees included in the scope of consolidation comprising the Logista Group at 30
September 2018 and 2015 is provided in Appendices | and |, which inciudes, inter afia, the percentage
and cost of the ownership interest held by the Parent and the line of business, company name and
registered office of each investee,

In turn, Altadis, S.A.U., the majority shareholder of the Parent, belongs to the imperial Brands Group PLC.
which is governed by the corporate legislation in force in the United Kingdom, and whose registered office
is at 121 Winterstoke Road, Bristol, BS3 2LL {United Kingdom). The consolidated fnancial statements of
the Imperial Brands Group PLC for 2015 were formatly prepared by its Directors at the Board of Direclors
meeting heid on 3 November 2015,

2.  Basis of presentation of the financial statements and basis of consolidation

24 Authotisation for issue of the consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements were formally prepared by the directors in accordance with the
regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the Group, which consists of:



a) The Spanish Commercial Code and all other Spanish corporate law.

b) international Financia! Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the European Union, in
conformity with Regulation (EC) no, 1606/2002 of the European Patliament and Law 62/2003, of
30 December, on Tax, Administrative, Labour and Social Security Measures,

¢} Al other applicable Spanish accounting legislation.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements, which were obtained from the accounting records of
the Company and of its subsidiaries, are presented in accordance with the regulatory financial reparting
framework applicable to the Group and, in particular, with the accounting principles and rules contained
therein and, accordingly, present fairly the Group’s equity, financial position, results of operations and cash
flows for 2016. These consolidated financial statements were formally prepared by the Board of Directors
at its meeting on 25 October 2016. The directors of Compafia de Distribucion Integral Logista Holdings,

SA. will submit these consolidated financial statemerts for approval by the Shareholders, and it s
considered that they will be approved without any changes.

The consolidated financial staternents for 2016 were formally approved by the General Shareholders’
Meeting on 16 March 2018.

The principal accounting policies and measurement bases applied in preparing the Group's consolidated
financial statements for 2016 are summarised in Note 4.

2.2 Standards and interpretations effective in the current period
In the year ended 30 September 2016 the following standards, amendments to standards and

interpretations came into force, which, if applicable, were applied by the Group in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Obligatory
Application in
Standards and modifications thereof: Contents Annual Reporting
Periods Beginning
: On or After
IAS 19 (Revised) Defined Benefit;The amendment was issued to make it possible to| | February 2015
Plans: Employee Contributions| deduct these costs contributions of the service cost
(published in November 2013) in the same period in which they are paid when
certain requirements are met.
Improvements to the 2010-2012 IFRS! Minor amencments to 2 number of standards. 1 February 20135
1Cycles {published in Decerber 2013),

213 Standards and interpretations issued but not yet in force

At the date of preparation of these consolidated financial statements, the following standards and
interpretations had been published by the IASB but had not become effective, either because their
effective date is subsequent to the date of the consolidated financial statements or because they had yst
to be endorsed by the European Union:



Standards and modifications

Obligatory
Application in

thereof Contents Am}ual Rep.ortfng
Periods Beginning

On or After

Amendment fo 1AS 16 and IAS 38[It clarifies the methods acceptable for depreciation 1 January 2016

Acceptable methods of depreciation and
amortisation (published in May 2014)

and amortisation property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets.

Amendment to TFRS 11 Accounting for
acquisition of interests in joint ventures
{published in May 2014)

Tt specifies how to account for the acquisition of]
interests in & joint venture whose activity
constitutes a business,

1 January 2016

Amendment to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale
on contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture
{published in May 2011)

1t specifies how to account the sale on contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate of
joint venture.

1 January 2016

Amendment to 1AS 27 Equity method in
separate financial staternents (published
in August 2014)

Equity method will be allowed to be applied to the
individual statements of an investor.

1 January 2016

Improvement to IFRS 2012-2014 Cycle
{published in September 2014)

Minor amendments to a number of standards.

1 January 2016

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and
IAS 28: Investment Entities {December
2014) (a}

Clarification on the exceplion for consolidation of
investment companies,

I January 2016

Amendments to 1AS 1. Disclosures
initiative (December 2014) (a)

Various clarifications regarding the itemizations
(materiality, aggregation, order of the notes, efc.).

1 January 2016

Amendment to IAS 12 Recognitions of
deferred asset taxes for unrealized losses
(published in January 19, 2016) (a)

1t refers to the DTS of available items for the sale
of debt with fair value lees tan the cost.

1 January 2017

Amendment to IAS 7 Initiative of
itemizations (published in January 29,
2016} (a)

Reconciliation of changes in liabilities in the
halance sheet with flows from financing activities.

1 January 2017

IFRS 9  Financial  Instruments.
Classification, valuation, recognition
and derecognition (last phase pubiished
in July 2014) (a}

Tn replaces the requirement for classification,
valuation, recognition and derecognition of
financial assets and liabilities in accounts, hedge
accounting and impairment of IAS 39,

1 January 2018

TERS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers {published in May 2014) (&)

New mcome recognition standard (replaced IAS
11, JAS 18, IFRIC 13, IFRIC 135, TFRIC 18 and
SIC-31).

1 January 2018

Amendments to IFRS 2, Classification
and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions (a}

Limited amendments ¢larifying specific issues such
as the effects of vesting conditions on cash-setiled
share based payments, the classification of share-
based payment transactions with net settlement
featyres and accounting for a modification to the
terms and conditions of a share-based payment that
changes the classification of the transaction from
cash-settled to equity-seftled.

I January 2018

IFRS 16 Leases (published in January
2015} (a)

New standard on leases that replaces IAS 17.
Lessees will include all leases on the balance sheet
as if they were financial purchases.

1 January 2019

(a) Standards not yet adopted by the European Umion.

The assessment made by the Parent's directors of the main effects that the application of the
aforementioned standards might have on the accompanying consolidated financial statements is as
follows:



+ IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments
This IFRS 9 supersedes IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement issued by the [ASB.
This version replaces all the previous versions and becomnes mandatorily effective for reporting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018.

IFRS © estabiishes the requirements for the recognition, measurement, impairment, disposal of, and
accounting for, general hedges.

The Group is assessing the impact of the application of this standard and has reached the preliminary
conciusion that its entry into force will not have & material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

s IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers
This IFRS 15 supersedes [AS 11, Construction Contracts and IAS 18, Revenue.

The objective of this standard is to determine the accounting treatment of revenue from the sale of goods
and the provision of services to a customer, Revenue that does not arise from a contract with a customer
ialis outside the scope of IFRS 15. The core principle of the standard is that an entity should recognize its
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the application of this standard.

2.4 Information relating to 2015

As required by IAS 1, the information refating to 2015 contained in these notes to the consolidated
financial statements is presented with the information relating to 2016 for comparison purposes and,
accordingly, i does not consfitute the Group's consolidated financial statements for 2015,

2.5 Presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in euros since this is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Group operates. Transactions in currencies other than the euro are
recognised in accordance with the policies described in Note 4.14.

2.6 Responsibility for the information and use of estimates

The information in these consolidated financial statements is the responsibility of the Parent's directors.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for 2016, estimates were made by the Group’s directors
in order to measure certain of the assets, liabilities, income, expenses and obligations reported herein.

These estimates relate basically to the following:

- The assumptions used in the actuarial calculations of the pension fiabifities and other obligations to
employees.

- The useful life of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

- The measurement and impairment of geodwill and of certain intangible assets.
- The fair value of certain assets.

- The calculation of the required provisions.

- The measurement and calculation of deferred tax assets and liabilities,



Although these estimates were made on the basic of the best information availabie at 2016 year end,
events that may take place in the future might make it necessary to change these estimates (upwards or
downwards) in coming years. This wouid be done prospectively, recognising the effects of the changes in
accounting estimates in the relevant future financial statements.

2.7 Basis of consolidation

2.7.1_Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are defined as companies included in the scope of consolidation which the Parent manages
directly or indirectly because it holds a majority of the vofing rights in their representation and decision-
making bodies or over which it has the capacity to exercise control.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are fully consolidated. Aceordingly, all material balances and
transactions between consolidated companies are eliminated on consoiidation.

Where necessary, adjustments are made fo the financial statements of the subsidiaries to adapt the
accounting policies used to those applied by the Group.

The share of minority interests of the equity and profit of the Group ts presented under “Minority Interests”

in the consolidated balance sheet and under "Profit/Loss for the Year Attribuiable to Minorty Interests” in
the consolidated income statement, respectively.

The results of subsidiaries acquired ar disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the date of acquisition or until the date of disposal, as appropriate.

2.7.2 Joint ventures and joint operatigns

= Joint ventures” are deemed to be ventures that are managed jointly by the Parent and third parties
unrelated fo the Group, where neither party can exercise greater control than the other. The financial
statements of the joint ventures are proportionately consolidated.

in addition, a joint operation (unincorporated joint venture or “UTE™ is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties have rights to the cotresponding assets, and liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Accordingly, the
assigned assets and liabilities are presented by the Group in its consolidated balance sheet, in propartion
to its ownership interest, and of the jointly incurred liabilities, classified according to their specific nature.
Simitarly, the Group's share of the income and expenses of joint ventures is recognised in the consolidated
income statement on the basis of the naiure of the related items. In addition, the proportional part
corresponding to the Group of the related items of the joint venture is included in the statement of changes
in equity and the statement of cash flows.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of these companies to adapt the
accounting policies used 1o those applied by the Group.

2.7.3 Associates

Associates are companies over which the Parent is in a position 1o exercise significant influence. In
generai, significant influence is presumed to exist when the Group's percentage of {direct or indirect}
ownership exceeds 20% of the voting rights, provided that it does not exceed 50%.

in the consolidated financial statements, investments in associates are accounted for using the equity

method, i.e, at the Group's share of net asseis of the investee, after taking into account the dividends
received therefrom and other equity eliminations.

In the case of transactions with an associate, the retated profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's interest in the associate’s capital.
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Where necessary, adjustments are made o the financial statements of these companies to adapt the
accounting policies used to those appiied by the Group.

I as 5 result of losses incurred by an associate its equity were negative, the investment should be
presented in the Group's consolidated balance sheet with a zero value, unless the Group is obliged to give
it financial support, in which case the related provision would be recorded.

Since the activities of the associates are similar o the Group's habitual management and operations, the
results of companies accounted for using the equity method are aggregated to profit or loss from
operations.

2.7.4 Translation of fareign currency

The various items in the balance sheets and income statements of the foreign companies included in
consolidation were franslated o euros as foliows:

. Assels and liabifities were translated to euros at the official year-end exchange rates.
- Share capital and reserves were translated to euros at the historical exchange rate.
- Income statement items were translated to euros at the average exchange rate for the year.

The exchange differences arising from the use of these criteria were inciuded in equity under “Reserves at
Consolidated Companles - Translation Differences”. These translation differences wiil be recognised as
income or expenses in the period in which the investrvient that gave rise to them is realised or disposed of
in full or in part.

In 2016 all of the Logista Group companies presented their financial statements in euros, except for
Compafia de Distribucion Integral Logista Polska, Sp. z.0.0. and Logesta Polska Sp., z.0.0. (both located
in Poland).

2.7.5. Changes in the scope of consolidation and in the ownership interests

The most significant changes in the scope of consolidation in 2018 and 2015 that affect the comparison
between years were as follows!

1. Main changes in the scope of consolidation in 2016
Disposals

On 5 February 20186, the subsidiary Compafiia de Distribucion Integral de Publicaciones Logista,
S.L.U. entered into an agreement for the sale of the ownership interest held by it in Dima Distribucion
imtegral, S.L. (equatl to 12 56% of its share capital) to Distribuciones Generales Boyaca, S.L., for the
amount of 1 euro. The transaction has not had a significant effect on the Group's interim condensed
consolidated financiai statements.

On 41 December 2015, the dissolution of Logesta Maroc, S.A. (indirectly owned in a 34% by Logesta
Gestion de Transporte, S.AU) was registered, which was approved by the Sharehotders Extraordinary
General Meeting on 28 September 2015. The transaction has not had a significant effect on the
Group's interim condensed consolidated financial statements.

2. Main changes in the scope of consolidation in 2015
Additions or acquisitions
Be to Be Pharma, S.L.U. was incorporated on 23 July 2015, lts sole shareholder is the subsidiary

Logista Pharma, S.1.U., with share capital of EUR 3,000 divided into 300 fully subscribed and paid
shares of EUR 10 par value each.
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Disposals

At the Annual General Meeting on 23 March 2015, the Sole Sharehoider of Logista France, S.A.S,,
approved the merger by absorption of the investees Logista France, S.A.S. and Strator, S.A5.
{(absorbed company). Accordingly, Logista France, $.AS. absorbed Strator, S.A.S., which was
dissolved without liguidation, and thereby acquires ali of its assets and liabilities by universal
succession and is subrogated to all of the rights and obligations thereof, under the French regime
provided for in Article 1844-5 of the French Civii Code and Article 5 of the Companies Decree of 23
March 1867. This merger became effective for accounting purposes from 1 October 2014, This
transaction did not have any effect on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

On 17 April 2015 the subsidiary Logesta Gestion de Transporte, S.A.U. entered into an agreement for
the sale of the ownarship interest held by it in Transportes Basegar, S.A. (equal fo 60% of its share
capital} to Gescrap Desarrollo, $.L. The transaction amounted to EUR 680 thousand. The net loss on
the transaction for consolidation purposes amounted to EUR 198 thousand, which were recognised
under "impairment and Gains or Losses on Disposals of Non-Current Assets" in the consolidated.

On 30 June 2014, the sole shareholder of Avanzalibros, S.L.U. approved the dissclution of the
company pursuant to Arficle 963 of the Consolidated Spanish Limited Liability Companies Law. This
company was liquidated in 2015, The transaction did not have a material effect on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

On 16 July 2015 the resolutions adopted by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of the
investee Logista Pharma, S.A.U. on the merger by absorption of l.ogilenia Distribuidora Farmacéutica,
S L. were executed in a pubiic deed. Accordingly, Logista Pharma, S.A.U. absorbed Logilenia
Distribuidora Farmaceéutica, S.L. which was dissolved without liquidation, and acquires by way of
universai succession all of its assets and liabilities and is subrogated to ail the rights and obligations
thereof, under the regime provided for under Article 48 of Law 3/2009, of 3 April, on structural changes
to companies formed under the Spanish Commercial Code. This merger became effective for
accounting purposes from 1 October 2044, This transaction did not have any effect on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

2.8 Materiality

in preparing these consolidated financial statements the Group omitted any information or disclosures
which, not requiring disclosure due fo their qualitative importance, were considered not to be material in
accordance with the concept of materiality defined in the IFRS Conceptual Framework.

3, Distribution of profit of the Parent

The distribution of the profit for 2016, amounting to EUR 122,807 thousand, that the Parent's directors will
propose for approval by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting is as follows (in thousands of
Furos):

2016
To voluntary reserves 3,580
Dividends 86,108
Interim dividend 33,119
Total 122,807

In accordance with current legislation, the Parent Company avaluated the liquidity statement at the
approva! date of the interim dividend. Based on this evaluation, on 26 July 2046 the Company had ZUR
87 335 thousand available, relating to EUR 10,335 thousand that it had lent to Compafiia de Distribucion
integral Logista, S.A.U., together with the fult amount of the credit facility granted fo it by Compariia de

Distribucion Integral Logista, S.AU. {the maximum drawabte amount of which was EUR 77 mitlion).
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4. Accounting principles and policies and measurement bases

The principal measurement pases and accounting principles and policies applied in preparing the
consolidated financial statements for 2016 in accordance with the IFRSs in force at the date of the related
financial statements are described below. None of the standards were applied early.

44 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost less any accumulated depreciation.

The upkeep and maintenance costs of the various items of property, plant and equipment are recognised
in the income statement as incurred. The amounis invested in improvements leading to increased capacity

or efficiency or to a lengthening of the useful lives of the assels are capitalised.

in-house work on non-current assets is measured at accumulated cost fexternal costs plus in-house costs,
determined on the basis of direct and general manufacturing costs).

The consolidated companies depreciate their property, plant and equipment using the straight-line method,
applying annual depreciation rates determined on the basis of the years of estimated useful life of the
reiated assets. The depreciation rates applied are as follows:

Annual
Depreciation
Rates
(%)
Buildings 2-4
Plant and machinery 10-12
Other fixtures, tools and furniture 8-16
Other items of property, plant and Equipment 12-16

Land is considered to have an indefinite useful life and, therefore, is not depreciated.
4.2 Investment property

investment property relates to investments in tand and buildings held to earn rentals, invesiment property
is stated at the lower of cost, less any accumulated depreciation, and market value. Depreciation is

recognised using the same methods as those used for ltems of the same category classified under
“Property, Plant and Equipment” (see Note 4.1}

The Group determines periodically the market value of its investment property by reference io the prices of
comparable transactions, in-house studies, external appraisals, etc.

4.3 Goodwill

In the company acquisitions performed, the excess of the cost of the business combination over the
interest acquired in the acquisition-date net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabiliies and contingent
labilities is recognised as goodwill.

Goodwili is only recognised when it has been acquired for consideration.

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of an associate is recognised as an increase in the value of the
investment.

Goodwill is not amortised. Accordingly, at the date of each consolidated balance sheet the related
valuation adjustments are mads to ensure that the carrying amount is not higher than fair value less costs
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to sell: If there is any impairment, the goodwill is written down and the impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill must not be reversed in a subsequent period.

To perform the aforementioned impairment test, the goodwill is aliocated in full to one or more cash-
generating units.

The recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit is the higher of value in use and the net selling price
of the assets associated with the cash-generating unit, Value in use is calculated on the basis of the
estimated future cash flows, discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the business.

The Group has defined as cash-generating units, based on the actual management of the Group's
operations, each of the relevant business operations carried out in the main geographical areas {see Noie
25).

The Group uses the budgets and business plans, which generally cover a three-year petiod, of the various
cash-generating units to which the assets are assigned, The key assumptions on which the budgets and
business plans are built are based on each type of business and the experience with and recognition of
the performance of each of the markets in which the Group operates (see Note 7).

The estimaied cash flows are extrapolated to the period not covered by the business plan using a zero
growth rate and an expense structure that is similar to that of the last year of the business plan.

The discount rate applied is usually a pre-tax measurement based on the risk-free rate for 10-year bonds
issued by the governments in the relevant markets, adjusted by a risk premium to reflect the increase in
the risk of the investment based on the country in question and the systematic risk of the Group. The
discount rates appliied by the Group in the various markets to calculate the present vaiue of the estimated
cash flows ranged from 5.9% to 5.8% in 2015 (see Note 7).

4.4 Intangible assets

intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised using the straight-line method, applying annual
amoriisation rates determined on the basis of the years of the estimated useful lives of the relaied assets.

Intangible assefs comprises:
Concessions, rights and licences

sc.oncessions, Rights and Licences’ includes mainly the amounts paid to acquire certain concessions and
licences. The assets included in this account are amortised on a straight-line basis over the term thereof.

Also, as a result of allocating the purchase price of Altadis Distribution France, S.A8. fo the identifiable
assets and liabilities of that company In 2013, the Group recognised in its consolidated balance sheet the
agreements entered into by that subsidiary with the main tobacco produscers for the distribution of their
products in France. The aforementioned distribution agreements are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over 15 years.

Computer software

Computer software i5 recognised at acquisition cost, including the implementation costs bifled by third
parties, and is amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of three to five years. Computer software
maintenance costs are expensed currently,

Research and development expenditure

Research and Devetopment expenditure is only capitalised when it is specifically itemised by project, the
related costs can be clearly identified and there are sound reasons to foresee the technical success and

economic and commercial profitability of the related project. Assets thus generated are depreciated on a
straighi-line basis over their years of usefut life (over a maximum period of five years).
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45 Impairment iosses on property, plant and equipment and intangibie assets

The Group assesses each yeay the possible existence of permanent losses in value requiring it to reduce
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, if their recoverabie
amounts are below their carrying amounts.

The recoverable amount is determined using the same methods as those employed in testing for goodwill
impairment {(see Note 4 3).

I the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount, and the related write-down is recognised through profit
or {083,

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the new
recoverable amount, which may not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised.

46 lLeases

L eases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the iease transfer substantiatly all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group, which usually has the option to purchase the assets at the end of
the lease under the terms and conditions agreed on execution therect. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

4.6.1 Operafing leases

in operating leases, the ownership of the leased asset and substantiatly all the risks and rewards relating
to the leased asset remain with the jessor.

When the Group acts as the lessor, it recognises the operating lease income on a straight-line basts. The
amount to be recognised cn a straight-line basis is deemed to be the tofal minimum rental income forecast
over the ferm of the contract, in accordance with the agreed terms and conditions, These assets are
depreciated using a policy consistent with the lessor's normal depreciation policy for similar items for own
use.

When the Group acts as the iessee, lease costs are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line
basis, in accordance with the policies described above.

47 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-cutrent assets are classified as heid for sale if it is considered that their carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction. Assets are classified under this heading only when the sale is highly
probable and the asset is availabie for immediate sale in its present condition and the sale is expected to
be completed within one year from the date of ciassification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair vatue
less costs to sell.

The depreciation of non-current assets held for sale is discontinued when they are classified as such. At
the date of each consolidated balance sheet the related valuation adiustments are made to ensure that the
carsying amount is not higher than fair value less costs to seli.

4.8 Financial instruments

4.8.1 Financial assets
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Financial assets are recognised in the consolidated balance sheet on the date of zcquisition at fair value
and are classified as:

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivabies are measured at amnortised cost less any recagrised impairment losses,
which are estimated based on the solvency of the debtor and the age of the receivables.

Other current and non-current financial assets

“Oyther Current and Non-Current Financial Assets” include the following investments:

1. Current and non-current loans granted

2. Guaraniees

3. Deposits and other financial assets

4, Financial assets classified as “held for sale”

The loans granted are measured at thelr amortised cost, which is understood fo be the initial value thereof
increased by accrued interest and repayment premiums hased on the effective interest rate and decreased
by the principal and interest repayments, while aiso considering possible reductions due to impairment or
uncoliectibility.

The changes in the amortised cost of the assets included under “Other Current and Non-Current Financial
Assets” arising from accrued interest or premiums or from the recognitions of impairment are recognised in .

the income statement,

Guarantees are measured at the amount paid which does not differ substantially from the fair value
thereof.

Avaitable-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value and the gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value are recognised in equity until the asset is disposed of or it is determined that it has
become {permanently) impaired, at which time the cumuiative gains or losses previously recognised in
equity are recognised in the net consolidated profit or loss for the year.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash consists of cash and demand deposits at banks, Cash equivalents are shart-term investments with a
maturity of three months that are not subjectto a significant risk of changes in value.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when it matures and collection is made or when the rights to the
future cash flows have been transferred and substantially all the risks and rewards of pwnership of the
financial asset have been transferred.

4.8.2 Financial liabilities

Bank borrowings

Bank loans are recognised at the amount received, net of arrangement costs and commissions. These
loan arrangement costs and finance charges are recognised in the income staiement using the accrual
method and on a time proportion basis and are added to the carrying amount of the liability, to the extent
that they are not settled, in the period in which they arise,

Trade payables

Trade payabies are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
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The Group derecognises financial liabilifies when the obligations giving rise to them cease to exist.
4.9 Inventories

The Group companias measure the tobacco inventories at the lower of the price of the most recent invoice,
which does not differ significantly from applying the FIFO formula {first-in, first-ouf), including in the case of

tobacco products, in accordance with the legislation appficable in each country, the excise dufies
chargeable as soon as they are accrued, and net realisable vaiue,

The other inventories are measured at the lower of cost of purchase and net realisable value. Trade
discounts, rebates and other similar items are deducted in determining the costs of purchase.

The Group recognises period provisions for the decling in value of inventories in order to adjust the value
of those whose cost exceeds net realisable value. These valuation adjustments are recognised as an
expense in the consolidated income statement.

4.10 Current/Non-current classification

in the consolidated balance sheet assets and liabiiities due to be reafised or setiled or maturing within 12
months are classified as current items and those due to be realised or settled or maturing within more than
12 months as non-current items.

4.11 Termination benefits

Under current labour legislation and certain emplayment contracts, the Group companies are required to
pay termination benefits to employees terminated under certain conditions.

The accompanying consolidated balance sheet at 30 September 2016 includes the provisions that the
Parent's Directors consider necessary to cover the restructuring plans in progress at year-end (see Note
18).

4.12 Pension and other abligations to employees

Certain Group companies are obliged to supplement the social security retirement, disability or death
benefits to employees who have fulfiled certain conditions. in general, the obligations relating to the
cusrent and former employees of these groups are defined contribution obligations and are externalised.
The annual contributions made by the Group to meet these obligations are recognised under "Staff Cosis”
in the consolidated income statements and amounted to EUR 2,227 thousand and EUR 2,828 thousand in
2016 and 2015 (sze Noie 24.b).

Under the coliective agreements currertly in force, Compafila de Distribucion Integrat Logista, S.A.U. is
obliged to make a lump-sum payment of a specific amount to each employee on completion of 24 years of
service, supject to compliance with certain conditions. Also, this Company is obliged to make fixed monthly
payments to a ceriain group of current employees and employees who retired prior to 1 January 2009 as
compensation for the “free tobacco” benefit.

Logista France, S.A.S. has retirement obligations to its employees for which it has made provisions
calculated on the basis of actuarial studies performed by independent actuaries. To cover these
obligations, provisions were recognised, the amount of which is calculated each year based on the
corresponding actuariat studies performed by independent experts using the projected unit credit method
and PERM/F 2000P mortality tables, an inflation rate of 1.5% and an annual discount rate of 1.2% as the
main assumptions {see Note 18).

On 31 January 2012 the Group approved the “2011 Madium-Term Incentive Plan” and “2011 Medium-
Term Spedcial Incentives Plan”, for certain employees of the right to receive an amount estimated for each
employee at the start of each plan tranche on completion of the end of the third year from the start of each
of the three plan tranches and taking into consideration the growth of certain financial parameters, an
estimated amount for every worker at the beginning of each tranche.

17



The Group distribites the total amount of the estimated incentive for each block on a straight-line basis
over three years and charges it to income, “Staff Costs” in the accompanying consolidated income
statement for 2016 and 2015 which include EUR 833 thousand and EUR 1,723 thousand, respectively, in
this connection.

On 4 June 2014 the Parent's Board of Directors approved the structure of the "2014 Long-Term incentive
Plan” and ‘2014 Long-Term Special Incentives Plan®, with remuneration accrued from 1 October 2014 and
maturing on 30 September 2019, which are articulated in three 3-year blocks with settlements made at the
end of each block.

Under these plans, certain employees of companies of the Group of which the Company is Parent have
the right to receive a certain number of Company shares, on completion of the third year from fhe
commencement of the each of the three biocks into which the plans are divided, and taking into account
the degree of achievement of certain internal criteria, of a financiat and operating nature, as well as the
total return for the sharehoiders and comparative profitability with other companies.

On 29 January 2015 the Board of Directors approved the fist of beneficiaries of the first biock (201 4.2017)
and corporated management estimated cost of the plans. There were 51 peneficiaries included in the
General Plan and 10 in the Special Plan. The estimated amount in this connection is recognised under
"Equity" in the consolidated balance sheet and the related annuat charge is included under “Staff Costs” in
the consolidated income statement. The related amounted to EUR 2,856 thousand.

On 26 January 2016, the Board of Directors approved ihe second tranche of the 2014 Long-Term
incentive Plan {the General Plan and the Special Plan) for the 2045-2018 vesting period. The beneficiaries
of the second tranche numbered 50 for the General Plan and 10 for the Special Plan. The total estimated
cost of the second franche is EUR 2,494 thousand.

The annua! charge for the cost of the two franches included under "Staff Costs” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the period ended 30 September 2016 amounted to EUR 1,772 thousand
(2015: EUR 95° thousand relating to the first franche}.

in order to cater for the two tranches of the equity-settied long-term incentive plan, and by virtue of the
authorisation granted by the Board of Directors, the Group acquired 275,814 treasury shares for EUR
5,032 thousand (EUR 4,302 thousand in 2016 and EUR 670 thousand in Z015) (see Note 14-0.

On 27 September 2016, the Company's Board of Directors extended the Company's Extended Share

Repurchase Programme (forup to 422,314 shares, i e, 1.32% of the share capital) until 1 October 2017, in
order to assign the repurchased shares to the second tranche of the “2014 Long-Term Incentive Plan’.

4.13 Provisions

Tne Group recognises provisions for the estimated amounts required to cover the hability arising from
fitigation in progress, indemnity payments of obligations and collateral and other guarantees provided
which are highly jikely to involve a payment obligation (legai or constructive}, provided that the amount can
be estimated reliably.

Provisions are quantified on the hasis of the best information available on the situation and gvolufion of the
events giving rise to them and are fully or partially reversed when such obligations cease to exist or are
reduced, respectively.

Also, the adjustments arising from discounting these provisions are recognised as a finance cost on an
accrual basis.

4.14 Foreign currency transactions
The consolidated financial statements of Logista Group are presented in ewos.

Transactions in currencies other than the euro are recognised at their equivalent euro vaiue by applying
the exchange rates prevailing at the transaction date. Any gains or losses resulting from the exchange
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differences arising on the settiement of balances dertiving from transactions in currencies other than the
euro are recognised in the consolidated income statement as they arise.

Balances receivable and payable in currencies other than the euro at year-end are measured in euros at
the exchange rates prevailing on that date. Any gains or losses arising on such measurement are
recognised in the consolidated income statement for the year.

4.15 Revenue and expense recognition

Revenue and expenses are recognised on an accrual basis, i.e. when the actual flow of the related goods
and services occurs, regardless of when the resulting monetary or financial flow arises. Specifically,
revenue represents the amounts receivable for the goods and services provided in the normat course of
business, net of discounts, VAT, excise duty on tobacco products and other sales taxes.

As a result of the reguiations of the main countries in which the Group operates, the Group makes
payments to the relevant tax authorities in respect of excise duties on the {obaceo products it sells, which
are also charged to customers. The Group does not recognise as income or expenses the amounts
relating fo the aforementioned excise dufies, which amounted to approximately EUR 27,463,847 thousand
in 2016 and EUR 29,586,310 thousand in 2015.

in the particular case publishing sector, the customers are entitled to return the products they fait {o sell
and in turn, the Group may exercise this right with respect fo iis suppliers. At each reporting date, a
provision is recognised based on the historical experience of the sales retuins for the purpose of adjusting
the margins obtained in relation to producis that it is forecast will ultimately be returned (see Note 18).

In purchase and sale transactions on which the Group receives commission, regardiess of the legal form of
such transactions, only commission income is recognised, distribution and sales commissions are
recognised in revenue. The Group recognises income and expenses on transactions involving products
held on & commission basis (mainly stamps, certain tobacco and publishing business products) at the date
of the sale.

interest income from financial assets is recognised using the effeciive interest method and dividend
income is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment is established. in any case, interest
and dividends from financial assets accrued after the date of acquisition are recognised as income in the
income statement.

4.16 Income tax

The current income tax expense is calculated on the basis of the accounting profit before tax, increased or
reduced, as appropriate, by the permanent differences from taxable profit, net of tax relief and tax credits,
The rates used to calculate the income tax expense are those in force at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised using the balance sheet method, recognising ihe
differences between the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities in the financial statements and their
corresponding tax bases.

Deferred tax asseis and liabilities are ealculated at the tax rates expected at the date on which the asset is
realised or the liability is settied. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in full with a charge 1o
the consolidated income statement, except when they retate to line flems taken directly to equity accounts,
in which case the deferred tax assets and liabilities are also recognised with a charge or credit to the
related equity accounts.

Deferred tax assets and tax loss carryforwards are recognised when it is considered probable that the’
Group will be abie to utilise them in the future, regardiess of when they are recovered. Deferred tax assets

and liabilities are not adjusted and are classified as non-current assets or liabilities in the consolidated

balance sheset.

The Group recognises the deferred tax arising from the deductibility of the amortisation, for tax purposes,
of certain items of goodwill generated on the acquisition of companies (see Note 19).
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The deferred tax asset recognised is reassessed at the end of each reporting period and the appropriate
adjustments are made to the extent that there are doubts as to their future recoverability. Also,
unrecognised deferred tax asset is reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that they will be recovered through future taxable profits.

“Income Tax” represents the sum of the current tax expense and the result of recognising deferred tax
assets and liabilities (see Note 19).

The Parent files consolidated income tax returns in Spain as part of the consolidated tax group the ultimate
parent of which is Imperial Tobacco Espafia, S.L.U.

4.47 Consolidated statements of cash flows

The following terms are used in the consolidated statements of cash flows, prepared in accordance with
the indirect method, with the meanings specified:

1 Cash flows: inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents, which are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2. Operating activities: the principal revenue-producing activities of the consolidated Group companies
and other activities that are not investing or financing activities.

3. investing activities: the acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other investments not inciuded
in cash and cash equivalents.

4. Financing activities: activities that result in changes in equity and borrowings.

5. __Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to the Group (after tax and
minority interests) by the welghted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year,
exciuding the average number of treasury shares.

Earnings per share are calculated as follows:

2016 2615
Net profit for the year (thousands of euros) 132,079 109,193
Weighted average number of shares
issued (thousands of shares) (*) 132,551 132,749
Earnings per share (euros) 1.00 0.82

(*} On 30 September the Company holds 275,614 own shares.

At 30 September 2016 and 2015, there were no dilutive effects on basic earnings per share.
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§.  Property, plant and egquipment

6.1 Property, plant and equipment

The changes in “Property,
were as foliows:

Plant and Equipment” in the consolidated palance sheets in 2016 and 2015

2016
Thousands of Euros
Balance at Additions or Disposals or Transfers Balance at
30-09-15 charge for the reductions {Note 8) 30-09-16
year
Cost:
Land and buildings 232,240 4 {1.991) (8.334) 221,919
Plant and machinery 178,402 3,034 (7,863} 10,137 183,710
Other fixtures, tools and furniture 138,495 3,258 (2,587 5,362 144,528
Other items of property, plant and 38,533 56 (194} (2,184} 36,211
equipment s
Property, plant and equipment in the 11,836 9,466 (0 {11,790) 9,511
course of consiruction
399,506 15,818] {12.636) {6.80%) 593.879
Accumnutated depreciation:
Buildings (108,95%) (5,028) 1,355 6,385 (106,247)
Plant and machinery (135,391) (10,864) 7,590 (L1 (139,784)
Other fixtures, tools and furnifure {110,696) (8,219) 2,517 (1,861} (118,259)
Other items of property, plant and
equipment {(23,337) (2,461} 158 2,625 (23.011)
(378,383) (26,572) 11,620 6,034 (387,301)
Impairment losses (18,882) - 145 - {18,737)
Total 202,241 (10,754} (871} (775} 189,841
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2015

Thousands of Euros
Exclusions
Balance at | Additions or | Disposals or | Transfers fromthe | Balance at
30-09-14 | charge for the | reductions (Note 8) Scope of | 30-09-15
vear Consolidation
Cost:
Land and buildings 235,514 24 (3,958) 660 - 232,240
- Plant and machinery 168,201 2,157 (1,034} 9,084| (6) 178,402
Other fixtures, tools and furniture 133,307 1,570 (1,980} 5.634 (36) 138,495
Other items of property, plant and 36,558 130 (51) 1,974 {78} 38,333
equipment
Property, plant and eguipment in the 12,339 12,971 {193) (13,281) - 11,836
course of construction _
585,919 16,852 (7,216) 4,071 (120 599,506]
Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings (106,977) (5,261) 3,279 - - (108,959)
Plant and machinery (124,583) (11,586) $40 (168} 6 (135,391)
Other fixtures, tools and furpiture (103,755} {9,143 1,830 342 32 (110,696}
Other'items of property, plant and (21.872) (1.593) 50 ) 78 (23.337)
equipment
{357.18%) (27,585} 6,099 174 116 {378,383)
Impairment losses (18.810) (72) - - - (18,882)
Total 209,922 (10,805) {(LI11T) 4,245} (4) 202,241

Additions

The most notable additions in 2016 related mainly to projects currently underway in relation o safety
systems at the warehouses and the development of information systems.

The most notable additions in 2015 related mainly to projects currently underway in relation to safety
systems at the warehouses and relating to the fleet of vehicles, the construction of 2 new building at the

Group's head offices at Leganés (Madrid),

developmert of information systems.

Disposals

the development of distribution centres in France and the

in 2016 the Group sold the property located in Villaviciosa de Odon (Spain) housing the offices of
Compaitia de Distribucion Integral de Publicaciones Logista, S.L. (Sole-Shareholder Company). The
transaction amounted to EUR 1.4 million and gave rise to a net gain of EUR 0.8 milliont, and the latter
amourt was recognised under “Net gain on disposal and impairment of non-current assets” in the
accompanying consolidated statement of profit or loss for 2016.

in 2015, the Group has alienated the building located in Créteil (France) where the offices were located
Strator, S.A.S. (merged with Logista France, 8.A.5.). The fransaction amounted 1o EUR 3 million and
generated a net profit of EUR 2.7 mitlion.

Transfers
In 2016 the property in Portonaccio (Rome) with a carrying amount of EUR 6 million at 30 September 2018
was transferred from this line item to “investment Property”. Also, the Group transferred to this iine item the

property located in Auby (France), which had previously been recognised under “Non-Current Assets
Ciassified as Held for Sale”.
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Lastly, transfers are made from "Other intangible Assets” when information system-related projects are
completed and come info service.

Impairment
No significant impairment losses recognised during 2016 or 2015.
6.2 Other disclosures

Fully depreciated items of property, plant and equipment in use at 30 September 2016 amounted to EUR
259,864 thousand (EUR 217,645 thousand at 30 September 2015).

At the end of 2016 the Group had yet to formalise the acquisition of a land lot in Alcaid de Guadaira
(Sevilie), for which it paid an advance of EUR 4,671 thousand in 2005, which is recognised under
“Property, Plant and Equipment in the Course of Construction”. This formalisation is dependent upon the
municipal authority executing the corresponding land development projects. Compafiia de Distribucion
Integral Logista, S.A.U., directors have commenced actions aimed at ensuring that the municipal authority
meets the obligations assumed.

The Group has faken out insurance policies to cover the possible risks to which its property, plant and
equipment are subject and the claims that might be filed against it for carrying on its business activities.
These policies are considered to adequately cover the related risks.

At 30 September 2016 and 2015, the items of property, plant and equipment located abroad, mainly in
Portugal, France, !taly and Poland, amounted to EUR thousand and EUR 67,715 thousand, and EUR
80,598 thousand, respectively.

7. Goodwill

Breakdown and significant changes

The breakdown, by identified cash-generating unit, of "Goodwill" at 30 September 2016 and 2015 is as
follows:

Thousands of Euros
30/09/16 30/09/15
Italy, tobacco and related products 662,922 662,922
France, tobacce and related products 237,106 237,106
Iberia, transport 18,269 18,269
Iberia, other business: Pharma 486 486
Tberia, tobacco and related products 321 321
Total 919,104 919,104

Ifaly, tobacco and related products

The goodwill associated with Logista ltalia, S.p.A. arose when Etinera, S.p.A., a leading fobacco distributor
in jtaly, was acquired in 2004 from BAT Halia, S.p.A., an Italian subsidiary of British American Tobacco,
Lda. Subsequently, Etinera, 5.p.A.'s company hame was changed 1o Logista ltalia, S.p.A. The informatfon
relating to the aforementioned acquisitiont is included in the Group's consolidated financial statements for
2004,

France, fobacco and related products

The goodwill associated with Logista Erance, S.A.S. arose an the acquisition by Compafiia de Distribucién
Integral Logista, S.A.U. of ak the shares representing the share capital of Altadis Distribution France,
S.A.8. (actually Logista France, S.A.8) from Seita, S.A.5., which belongs fo Grupo Imperial Brands Limited
PLC. The information on this acquisition is included in the Group's consolidated financial statements for
2014 and 2013.

23



Iberia, transport

The goodwili associated with Dronas 2002, S.L.U, arose when this company merged in 2002 with the
Burgal Group, an integrated and express parcel and pharmaceutical logistics service provider, and in 2003
with the Alameda Group, a distributor of pharmaceutical supplies and food products. The information

relating to the aforementioned mergers is included in the Group's consolidated financial statements for
2002 and 2003.

Goodwill impairment analysis
The assumptions used in testing for impairment were as follows:

Discount and growth rates

2016 2015
Discount Growth Discount Growth
Rate Rate Rate Rate

Jtaly, tobacco and related products 6.70% 0.00% 7.00% | 0.00%
France, tobacco and related products 5.90% 0.00% 6.00% 0.00%
[beria, transport 6.50% 0.00% 6.90%; 0.00%
Tberia, other business: Pharma 6.00% 0.00% 7.30%| 0.00%
Iberia, tobacco and related products 6.80% 0.00% 7.90% 1 0.00%

The parameters considered in defining the foregoing discount rates were as follows!

. Risk-free bonds: 10-year bonds in the benchmark market of the GGU.
. Market risk premium: year-.on-year average risk Premium in each country in which the Group
is presentet.
. Unlevaraged Beta: industry averags, on a case-by-case basis.
. Debi/equily ratio: industry average.
Other saljent matfers

Al e A

a) ltaly, tobacco and reiated products:

. Volume of cigarettes, rolling tobacco and cigars.
- Changes in tobacco retail prices.
- Changes in excise taxes on tobacce and VAT.

- Investments.

b) France, tobacco and retated products:

. Volume of cigarettes, rolling tobacco and cigars.
- Changes in tobacco retail prices.
- Changes in excise taxes on tobacce and VAT.

- Investments,
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g) Iberia, transport:

. Fuel costs
d) Iberia, other husiness: Pharma

. Regulation of the pharmaceutical industry.
e) Iberia, tobacco and refated products:

. Volume of cigarettes, rolling tobacce and cigars.
. Changes in tobacco retail prices.
. Changes in excise taxes o1 tohacco and VAT.

- Investments.

Based on the methods used and the estimates, projections and valuations availahle to the Parent’s
directors, no impairment losses wefe recagnised in relation to these assets in 2016.

With regard to the sensitivity analysis of the impairment tests on goodwitl, the Group performed an analysis
of sensitivity of the impairment test result to changes in the following assumptions:

. Increase of 100 basis points in the discount rate.

. 19% decrease in the growth rate.

These sensitivity analyses performed separately for each of the aforementioned assumptions did not
disciose any impairment losses.

8. Other intangible assets

The changes in "Other Intangible Assets” in 3016 and 2015 were as follows:

2016
Thousands of Euros
Additions or
Balance at | charge for the Disposals or Transfer Balance at
30-09-15 vear reductions (Note 6) 30-09-16
Cost:
With finite useful life-
D expenses 2.223 - - - 2,223
Computer software 168,123 537 (4,921} 12,755 176,494
Concessions, rights ana licences 779,726 - - 19 779,745
Ac}vances and intangible assets 13344 8,540 A (16,814) 5,070
in progress
963,416 6,077 (4,921} (4,040) 063,532
Accumulated amortisation-
1+I} expenses (2,192) - - - (2,192}
Computer softwars (140,447) (11,363) 4,921 4% (146,938)
Concessions, rights and licences (157,449 (51,967} - - {209,416}
{300,088 {63,330) 4,921 {49} {358.546)
[mpairment losses (2,623 - - - (2,623}
Total 660,705 {54,253) - {4,089} 602,363
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2015

Thousands of Euros
Exclusions
Additions or from the
Balance at | charge for the | Drisposals or Transfer Scope of Balance at
30-09-14 vear reductions (Note 6) ! Consolidation } 30-05-15
Cost:
With indefinite nseful life-
Trademarks 104 - - (101 (3) -
With finite useful life-
1+D) expenses 2,223 - - - - 2,223
Computer software 153,182 287 (93) 14,782 (35)} 168,123
Coneessions, rights and licences 7'19,363 - - 361 - 779,726
Advances and intangible assets 18,854 13,569 } (19.079) } 13,344
in progress
953,728 13,856 {93) (4,037) (38) 963,416
Accumulated amortisation-
1+D expenses (2,066) (139 - 11 2 {2,192}
Caomputer software (130,396) (9,971) 93 (208) 35 (140,447)
Concessions, rights and licences (105474 (51,964} - {an -1 {157,449
(237.536) {62.074) 93 (208) 37 (300,088)
Impainment Josses (2,623) - - - - {2,623}
Tatal 713,169 (48,218) - (4,245) ) 660,705
Additions

The additions to “Other intangibi
Group's existing application
implementation of new managemen

Transfers

The transfers to “Computer Software” in 2018
have been put into operation from the account

their nafure.

Impairment

In 2018 and 2015 the Group did not recognise any impairment josses on i

Intangible Assets”.

At 30 Sepiember 2016 and 2015, fully amortised intangible assets in use amount

s o improve or

124,477 and EUR 119,866 thousand, respectively.

& assets” relate mainly to functional dev

elopment projects for the Logista
increase the services provided fo iis cusiomers and the
t systems (SAP) in certain business segments.

and 2015 relate to the reclassification of various items that
wadvances and intangible assets in progress” attending o

tems classified as "Other

ed to approximately EUR
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9, Financial assets

The detaii of "Other Non-Current Financial Assets" and "Current Financial Assets" in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets at 30 September 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

2016
Thousands of Euros
30-09-2016
Loans .
L : Loans Granted to | Short-Term Available-
Financial Assets: Related . d for-Sale .
Nature/Category Granted t.o clated Deposits an Financial Total
Third Parties| Companigs | Guaraniees Assets
(Note 27)
Equity instrurments - - - 23,331 23.331
Financial debts 266 - - - 266
Other financial assets - - 3,585 - 3,585
Non-current 260 - 3,585 23,531 27,182
Financial debis 30,934 2,007,306 - - 2,038,440
Other financial assets - - 661 - 661
Current 30,934| 2,007,506 661 - 2,039,101
Total 31,200 2,007,506 4,246 23,331 2,047,664
2015
Thousands of Euros
30-09-2815
Loans
Granted to Available-
t.oans Related Short-Term for-Sale
Financial Assets: Granted to | Companies |Deposits and| Financial
Nature/Category Third Parties! (Note 27) | Guarantees Assets Total
Eguity instruments - - - 3,891 3.891
Financial debts 1,023 - - - 1,023
Other financial assets - - 4,143 - 4,143
Non-carrent 1,023 - 4,143 3,891 9,087
Financial debts 31,820 1,743,488 - - 1,735,308
Other financial assets - - 242 - 242
Current 31,820 1,743,488 242 - 1,775,550
Total 32,843 1,743,488 4,385 3,891 1,784,607

Loans granted to third parties

The venturers of “Compafifa de
Union Temporal de Empresas” granted a loan t
September 2016 toialled EUR 122,516 thousa
recognised EUR 30,629 thousand (2015 EUR 30,908 thousa
under “Other Current Financial Assels” an
consolidated balance sheet at 30 Septem
aforementioned joint venture that correspond to the ol

Credits granted to related parties

As of 12 June 2014, Imperial
Logista Holdings, S.A.U., Compafiia de Distr
entered into a mutual agreement for a five-year cré
either of the parties sends & notice opposing such renewal at lea

d “Other Current

Distribucion Integral Logista, 8.A.U., and GTECH Global Lottery, S.L.U,,
o this joint venture divided into equal shares which at 30
nd, Compafiia de Distribucion Integral Logista, S.ALUL
nd) in this connection, which are presented
Financial Liabilities” in the accompanying
ber 2016, for the receivables from and payables to the
her venturer (see Note 20}.

Brands Enterprise Finance Limited, Compafiia de Distribucion Integral
bucién Integral Logista, S.A.U. and Logista France, S.A.5.,
dit line (automatically renewable for one year, unless
st one year prior fo maturity), with a




maximum draw down limit of EUR 2,600 mitlion. The purpose of this agreement is to govern the terms and
conditions under which Logista will lend, on a daily basis, its cash surpi
Finance Limited for the purpose of optimising its cash fiow,
Finance Limited to Logista in order for the latter 10 be a
operations. in accordance with this agreemen
surpluses to Imperial Brands Enterptise Finance Limite

payment obligations.

The daily balance of this internal current account earns intere
plus a spread of 0.75%, Interest is calculated on a daily basis, based on 360 day

quarter.

and the loan

uses to Imperial Brands Enterprise
s from Imperial Brands Enterprise
ble to meset its cash needs arising from its
t, Logista, S.A.U. will lend, on a daily bases, its cash
d or wili receive the cash necessary to meet its

st at the European Ceniral Bank interest rate,
s, and is capitalised every

Under this agreement the Parent has undertaken to refrain from obtaining financing from third parties and
from encumbering in any way its assets unless the aforementioned transaction is approved by a qualified

majority of the Board of Directors.

19. inventories

LA ILL Y Ll

The detail of the Group's inventories at 30 September 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2016 2015
Tobacco 993,352 983,240
Published materials 12,634 10,078
Other merchandise 26,629 76,769
Write-downs {6,786) (9,585)
Total 1,085,829] 1,060,502

The balance of tobacco inventories include
tobacco stock in the Group's warehouses &
thousand (2015: EUR 395,188 thousand).

The write-down in year 2016 and 2015
cannot be sold at year end, The changes
consolidated balance sheet were as follows:

siates mainly o tobacco inve
n the write-downs relating to "Inventories

Thousands
of Euros
‘Accumulated write-down at 30 September 2014 11,804
Period write-downs 3,620
Reversals (2,061)
Amounts used (3,778)
Accumulated write-down at 30 September 2015 9,585
Period write-downs 8,708
Reversals (11,507)
Accumulated write-down at 30 September 2016 6,786

At 30 September 2016, the Group had arranged insurance policies to cover the value of its inventories.

s the excise duty chargeable to the fobacco iterns for the
t 30 September 2016, for a total amount of EUR 394,452

ntories that were defective or that
" in the accompanying

28



44. Trade and other receivables

The detail of “Trade and Other Receivabies” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at 30
September 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros _|
2016 2015
‘Trade receivables for sales and services 1,781,826} 1,764,987
Related companies (Note 27) 7,906 6,077
Sundry accounts receivable 41,882 44 258
Employee receivables 709 1,083
Less- Allowances for doubtful debts (55,161} (60,409}
1,777,162, 1,755,996

The changes in the "Allowances for Doubtful Debts® in 2016 and 2015 are as {ollows:

Thousands
of Euros

Allowance for doubtful debts at 30 Sepiember 2014 57,160
Period write-downs 6,411
Reversals (2,438)
Amounts used (645)
Changes in the Scope of Consolidation {(79)
Allowance for doubtful debts at 30 September 2015 60,409]
Period write-downs 3,727
Reversals {6,013)
Amounts used (1,232)
Changes in the Scope of Consolidation (1,730)
Allowance for doubtful debts at 30 September 2016 55,161

The additions to and reversals from the atlowance for doubtful debts in 2016 are recognised under "Cost of
Logistics Networks - Other Operating Expenses” in the accompanying consolidated income statement.

At 30 September 2018, the fotal amounts of balances provided are older than 90 days.

Trade receivables for sales and services

"Trade Receivables for Sales and Services” incluges mainly the batances receivable from the sales of
tobacco products, postage and other slamps relating basically to the final delivery of each year, which may
be settied during the first days of the following year, including the excise duties and VAT associated with
tobacco product sales which do not form part of revenue (see Note 4,15).

The average credit period taken on sates of goods and services ranges from 10 to 30 days. No interest is
charged on the receivables for the first 30 days after the expiry date of the invoice. Thereatter, interest is
generaily charged at between 6.5% and 9% on the outstanding balance.

None of the clients supposes more than 5% of the trade receivable balances, so there is no clients’
concentration Ask.
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The detail of the past-due receivables for which no allowance had been recognised at 30 September 2016
and 2015 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
Tranche 2016 2015
(-30 days 30,176 33,020
30-90 days 10,433 10,735
90-180 days 4,666 4,399
180-360 days 1,214 2,109
More than 360 days 729 2,156

The Group recognizes an allowance for doubtful debts hased on seniority of the debt, unless there are
additional guarantees of payment.

42. Cash and cash eguivalents

“Cash and Cash Equivalents” in the consolidated baiance sheets at 30 Sepiember 2016 and 2015 includes
mainly the Group’s cash deposited in current accounts at banks.

The average interest rate obtained by the Group on #s cash and cash equivalent balances was 0.74% In
2016 (0.80% in 2015). :

13. Equity

At the end of 2016 the Parent's share capital amounted to EUR 26,550 thousand and was represented by
132,750,000 fully subscribed and paid shares of EUR 0.2 par value gach, all of the same class.

As indicated in Note 1, the Parent was incorporated on 13 May 2014, with a share capital of EUR 60
thousand, divided into 300,000 shares of EUR 0,20 par value each, all of which are of the same class and
fully subscribed and paid in cash by its sole shareholder, Altadis, S.A.U.

On 4 June 2014, the sole shareholder approved the share capitai increase through a non-monetary
contribution of EUR 26,490 thousand, through the issus of 132,450,000 new shares of EUR 0.20 par value
each, together with a total share premium of EUR 942,148 thousand, The shares issued were of the same
class as the outstanding shares and were fully subscribed and paid by Altadis, S.AU. through the
comtribution %o the Company of 44,250,000 registered shares representing all of the share capital of
Compafiia de Distribucién ntegral Logista, $.A\ (Logista Group Partner Company until that moment). For
these purposes, it should be noted that the aforementioned non-monetary contribution was subject to the
required assessment by an independent expert appointed by the Mercantiie Registry, pursuant to the
Spanish Capital Companies Law consolidated text and the Mercantile Registry Regulations.

The offering of shares in the Parent Company came to an end on 14 July 2014, and its shares are
currently listed for trading in the Continuous Market on Madrid, Barcetona, Valencia and Bilbao
Exchanges.

The only shareholder with an ownership interest of 10% or more in the Parent's share capital at 30
Septemnber 2014 was Altadis, S.A.U., with an ownership interest of 70%.

At 30 September 2016, all shares of the Parent have the same voting and dividend rights.
Capital Management

The main objectives of the Group's capital management are to ensure financial stability in the short and
long term and the adequate funding of investments, keeping debt levels, all aimed at that the Group
maintains its financial strength and soundness of their ratios so that it supporis their business and
maximizes the value for its shareholders.
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At 30 September 2016, the Group had a net cash position amaunting to EUR 2,029 million {30 September
2015: EUR 1,767 million), the detail being as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2016 2015
Bank borrowings - (7)
Other current financial Habilities (33,627) (31,658)
Gross debt (33,627) (31,665)
Current financial assets (Note 9) 2,039,101 1,775,550
Cash and cash equivaients 23,625 22,714
Financial assets and cash 2,062,726 1,798,264
Total net financial position 2,029,099 1,766,599

14. Reserves

a) Share premium

The Spanish Capital Companies Law expressly permits the use of the share premium account balance to
increase the capital of the entities at which it is recognised and does not establish any specific restrictions
as fo its use.

b} Reserves of the Parent

L.egal reserve

Under the Spanish Capital Companies Law, 10% of net profit for each year must be transferred to the legal
reserve uniil the balance of this reserve reaches at least 20% of the share capital, The legal reserve can
be used to increase capital provided that the remaining reserve balance does not fall below 10% of the
increased share capital amount, Otherwise, until the legal reserve exceeds 20% of share capitat, it can
only be used o offset losses, provided that sufficient other reserves are not available for this purpose.

On 30 September 2016 the Parent's legal reserve has reached the tegally required minimum.

QOther reserves

The capital increase expenses incurred by the Company in 2014 in the transaction described under “Share
capital”, which were taken to reserves, amount to EUR 176 thousand, net of the related tax effect. This
heading also includes the amounts relating to the Share Plan for 2014, amounted EUR 1,772 thousand in
2016 (2015: EUR 956 thousand) (see Note 4.12).

¢) Reorganisation reserve

This line item includes the net effect which arose in the Parent's reserves as a result of the corporate
recrganisation that took place during the year 2014, as described in Nots 1, in conformity with the
regulatory financial reparting framework applicable fo the Graup.

d) Reserve for first-time application of IFRSs
As a result of the transition to internafional Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Group revalued a
plot of land assigned to its operations by EUR 28,500 thousand, based on the appraisal of an independent

valuer, considering the fair value of this plot of land to be the deemed cost thereof in the transition to
IFRSs, The impact of this revaluation on reserves amounted to EUR 18,950 thousand.
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e} Dividends

On 16 March 2018, the shareholders at the Parent's Annual Genera! Mesting approved the distribution of
the profit for 2015, which included an interim dividend out of the profit for that year, which had previously
been approved by the Board of Directors and paid, amounting to EUR 31,860 thousand, together with a
final dividend of EUR 66,254 thousand.

On 26 July 2016, the Parent's Board of Directors approved the distribution of an interim dividend of EUR
0.25 per share out of the profit for 2016, totalling EUR 33,119 thousand, which was paid on 29 August
2016.

f) Treasury shares
To cater for the two tranches of the long-term share-based incentive scheme and pursuant to the

authorisation granted by the Board of Directors, the Group acguired 275,614 treasury shares for EUR
5,032 thousand (EUR 4,362 thousand in 2016 and EUR 670 thousand in 2015).

15. Reserves at consolidated companies

The detail of “Reserves of Group Companies and Associates” in the consolidated balance sheets at 30
September 2016 and 2015 is as foliows:

Thousands of Euros
2016 2015
Reserves in fully consolidated compantes 224,948 209,033
Reserves in companies consolidated by the equity (1,034) {4,535)}
method
Total 223,914 204,498

The reserves at cansolidated companies include the retained earnings not appropriated at the beginning of
the period relating to the consclidated companies and taking into account the consolidation adjustments.
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16, Minority interests

The detail, by company, of “Minority interests

consolidated balance sheets is as foliows:

" and “Profitfioss attributed to minority interests” in the

Thousands of Euros
2016 2015

Income Incoms

Atributable Atributable

Minority | To Minority } Minority | To Minority

Entity Interests |Shareholders | Interests |[Shareholders
Distribuidora Valenciana de Ediciones, S.A. 360 {46) 412 28
Terzia, S,p,A. 1,390 348 1,042 197

Distribucion de Publicaciones Sigle XX1

Guadalajara, S.L. : 49 6 >0 6
Transportes Basegar, S.L. (Note 2.1.5) - - - 105
Distribuidora de Publicaciones del Sur, S.L. 174 21 153 30
Others entities 159 - 158 51
Total 2,132 328 1,185 417

17. Financial Risk Exposure

The management of the financial risks to which the Logista Group is exposed in the course of its business
constitutes one of the basic pillars of its activities aimed at preserving the value of the Group's assets at all
the business units and in all the countries in which it operates (mainly Spain, ltaly, France, Portugal and

Poland) and, as a result, the vaiue of its sharzhoider's invest

structured and defined to achieve the strategic and operating objectives.

The Group's activities are exposed to various financial risks: market
risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

ments. The risk management system is

risk (including exchange risk), credit

The Group's financial risk management is centralised in the Corporate Finance Division. This Division has
the required mechanisms in place to conirol, based on the Group's financial position and structure and on
fhe economic variables of the environment, the exposure to interest and exchange rate fluctuations and to
the credit and liquidity risks, establishing, when necessary, the related credit limits and setting the policy

for the doubtful debts allowance.

Credit risk

The Company's main financial assels are cash, loans to Group companies and frade and other

receivables. In general, the Group holds its cash and
Alsg, the Group is exposed to the credit risk or counter-

a8 a result of the cash transfer agreements entered into therewith.

cash equivalents at banks with high credit ratings.
party risk of the group Imperial Brands Group, PLC,

The Group controls the sisks of doubtful debts and default by setting credit limits and establishing
demanding conditions with respect to collection periods; this commercial risk is distributed among a large
number of customers with short collection periods and historically very low rates of non-payment and,

therefore, the exposure to credit risk vis-a-vis non

-Group third parties is not significant.

The Group considers that at 30 September 2016 the tevel of credit risk exposure of its financial assels is

not significant.
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Interest rate risk

in relation to its cash and cash equivalents and bank borrowings, the Group is exposed to interest rate
fluctuations which might affect its profit and cash flows. However, due to the Group’s low borrowing level,
Management considers that the effect would not be material under any circumstances.

in accordarice with the disclosure requirements of IFRS 7, the Group performed a sensitivity analysis in
relation to the possible interest rate fluctuations which might occur in the markets in which it operates,
Based on these requirements, the Group considers that each interest rate drop of 10 basis points wouid
give rise to a decrease in the Group's finance income of EUR 1.7 miliion.

Foreign currency risk
The leve! of exposure of equity and the income statement to the effects of fufure changes in the foreign
currency exchange rates in force is not significant because the volume of the Group’s transactions in

currencies other than the euro is not material (see Note 26).

The Group does not have significant investments in foreign entities which operate in currencies other than
the euro and it does not carry out significant transactions in countries whose currency is not the euro.

Liquidity risk

The Group has fo meet payments arising from its activities, including significant amounts relating to excise
duties and VAT.

Also, as a result of the difference between the average collection and payment periods, at 30 September
2016, the Group had a working capital deficiency amounting to EUR 922,945 thousand (30 September
2015: EUR 1,025,491 thousand}.

In any event, the Group, for the purpose of ensuring liquidity and enabling it to meet all the payment

obligations arising from its business acftivities, has the cash and cash equivalents disclosed In its

consolidated balance sheet, together with the cash

it belongs.

18, Provisions

-pooling facilities with companies in the Group to which

The detail of the balance of short- and long-term provisions in the accompanying consolidated batance
sheets at 30 September 2016 and 2015 and of the main changes therein in the periods is as follows:

2016
Thousands of Eures
Balance at - . Provisions Balance at
36-09-15 Additions | Reversions Used Transfers 30-09-16

Customs and excise duty assessments 13,576 360 - {8,440} - 5,496
Obligations to employees 15,601 2,137 (65) (673) (572) 16,428
Provision for restructuring costs 1,900 758 - - (2,650) 8
Provision for contingencies and charges 5,380 1 (a1 - (889) 4,481
Other 6,554 1,229 (328) (1,349 311 6,417
Non-turrent provisions 43,011 4,485 | {404) {10,462) (3,800) 32,830
Provision for restructuring costs i0.278 3,409 (1.438) (6,855) 2,331 7725
Customer Refunds 2,650 141 - - - 2,791
Other 3,867 3,493 (724) (1.783) 1,769 6,622
Current provisions 16,795 7,043 (2,162) (8,638) 4,100 17,138
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2015

Thousands of Euros

Balance al Additions | Reversions Provisions Transfers Balance at

30-09-14 | | Used ' 30-09-15
Customs and excise duty assessments 16,478 516 - (3.418) - 13,576
Obligations to employees 14,124 2,469 ah {775} | {200) 15,601
Provision for restructuring costs 2,483 - - (583} | - 1,800
Provision for contingencies and charges 15,307 130 (9,279} (778) - 5,380
Other 6,886 1,671 (98%) (670) {344) 6,554
Non-current provisions 55,278 4,786 (10,285) (6,224) (544) 43,011
Provision for restructuring costs 14,737 8,925 - (9,384) - 10,278
Customer Refunds 2,453 197 - - - _ 2,650
Other 2,959 3,832 {1,514) (2.420) 1,010 3.867
Current provisions 16,149 12,954 (1.514) (11.804) 1,016 16,795

Provision for excise tax on tobacco products and for customs duty assessments

Compafiia de Distribucion Integral Logista, S.A.U. has recognised provisions for assessments as a result
of audits by the Spanish customs authorities of the returns for excise tax on tobacco products for 2007 to
2009. The Company signed the assessments on a contested basis and filed appeals against them,
however, it has recognised provisions for the possible deficiency and interest in this connection in order to
cater for the possibility of unfavourable decisions being handed down on the appeals.

In 2016 the Company made payments totalling EUR 8,440 thousand in relation to the assessments signed
on a contested basis for excise taxes for 2007 and 2008, using the provision recognised in this connection
in prior years. Although the Company has appealed against these tax assessments, it made the related
payments in order to avoid incurring interest in this conneciion. Also, in 2016 a tax assessment was issued
in relation o foreign trade activity tax settlements for 2014 amounting to EUR 150 thousand.

During 2015, the Company has paid EUR 3,418 thousand related to the customs duty and import VAT
2003, and debited to the related provision accrued for in prior years for this purpose. Also during the same
period has received proceedings relating to settlement of customs duty for the year 2012 and 2013
amounting to EUR 3,188 and ©,400 thousand, respectively. The Group, based on the opinion of its
external advisors has not accrued it, no provisions were recognised in relation to the former and payment
of the latter was recognised as an asset in the accompanying balance sheet at 30 September 2015, since
it was considered that the appeals filed would be successful.

Provisions for employee benefit obligations

This iine item includes mainly the present value of the obligations assumed by Compafiia de Distribucidn
Integral Logista, S.A.U. in relation to long-service bonuses and the “obacco gift", as well as the retirement
bonus obligations recorded by the subsidiaries of the Group in order to cover the retirement benefits. Of
the provision recognised in 2016 which amounts to EUR 2,137 thousand; EUR 1,329 thousand were
recorded with a charge to “Reserves of Consolidated Companies”, since they relate to changes in the
actuarial assumptions used fo calculate the present vaiue of the total obligation assumed by those
companies (EUR 1,124 thousand in 2015).

Provision for restructuring costs

This account inciudes mainly the estimate of the payments to be made in refation to the restructuring plans
that are being implemented at the Group. In 2016 and 2015, provisions were recognised amounting to
EUR 4,187 thousand and EUR 8,925 thousand, respectively, and indemnity paymenis were made
amounting to EUR 8,855 thousand and EUR 9,967 thousand, respactively, with a charge to the provisions
that were recognised for that purpose.
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These provisions were reclassified to current liabiliies on the basis of the directors’ estimates as to the
dates on which these proceedings will come to an end.

Provisions for contingencies and charges

This heading includes mainly the various litigation proceedings in progress involving the Group and third
parties. In 2016 provisions were reversed amounting to EUR 4,481 thousand since the favourable
judgments received by the Group had been made final.

Provisions for customer refunds

The customers of publishing sector are entitled to the refund of those products which are finally not sold,
and the Group may in tum exercise this entitlement to a refund vis-a-vis its suppliers. At each year-end,
the Group recognises a provision based on past experience of the refunds on sales with a view fo
correcting the margins obtained in the course of the book and publications sales activity.

19. Tax matters

Consolidated Tax Group

Certain Group companies file consolidated tax returns with Imperial Tobacca Espafia, S.L.U. (see Note
4.18). In addition to Imperial Tobacco Espafia, 8.L.U., the companies inciuded in the consolidated tax
group for income tax purposes are as follows: Compafila de Distribucién Integral Logista, S.AU.,
Compafia de Distribucion Integral Logista Holdings, S.A., Distribérica, S.A.U., Publicaciones y Libros,
S.A., Distribuidora de las Rias, S.A., Logista-Dis, S A.U., La Mancha 2000, S.A.U., Dronas 2002, S.L.U.,
T2 Gran Canaria, S.A.U., Logista Pharma, S.A.U., Cyberpoint, S.L.U., Distribuidora del Noroeste, S.L,
Compafiia de Distribucién Integral de Publicaciones Logista, S.L.U., Distribuidora del Este, S.A.U., S.A,
Distribuidora de Ediciones, Logesta Gestion de Transporte, S.A.U., Distribuidora de Publicaciones Siglo
XX! Guadalajara, S.L.U. and Be to Be Pharma, S.L.U, together with other Imperial Tobacco Espafia,
S.Lu

fn addition, Logista France, S.AS., Société Allumetiere Frangaise, S.A.S., Supergroup, S.AS. file
consolidated income tax returns in France as part of the group headed by Logista France, S.A.S.

Alsa, Logista ltalia, S.p.A., Terzia, S.p.A. and Logesta Jtalia, S.r.|. file consolidated income tax returns in
italy as part of the group headed by Logista ltalia, S.p.A.

The Group's other subsidiaries file individual tax returns in accordance with the tax legislation in force in
each country.

Law 27/2014 introduced certain amendments to tax legislation in retation to income tax was published in
Spain on 27 November 2014, and came into force on 1 January 2015. The principal change infroduced,
which directly affects the amount of deferred tax assets recognised by the Parent at 30 September 20186,
arises from the reduction in the standard tax rate from 30% to 28% for the tax pericd beginning
immediately following 1 January 2015 and fo 25% for the tax periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

Years open for review by the tax authorities
Compafila de Distribucion Integral Logista, S.A.U. has open for review by the tax authorities 2014, 2015
and 20186 for excise taxes and the last four years for all the other taxes applicable to the consoiidated tax

Group.

in general, the other consolidated companies have the last four years open for review by the tax authorities
for the main taxes applicable to them, pursuant to the specific legislation of each counry.
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The Company’s directors consider that the tax returns for the aforementioned taxes have been filed
correctly and, therefore, even in the event of discrepancies in the inferpretation of current tax legistation in
relation to the tax treaiment afforded to certain transactions, such liabilities as might arise would not have a
materal effect on the accompanying financial statements.

In 2015 tax assessments amounting to EUR 3.2 miliion and EUR 9.4 million were issued and signed on a
contested basis in relation to the tax audits of foreign trade activity tax for 2012 and 2013, respectively.
The Group provided a guarantee for the first assessment and paid and appealed against the second (see
Note 18}.

Tax receivables and payables

The detail of the tax receivables at 30 September 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2016 2015
Deferred tax assets:
Provision for restructuring costs 1,942 6,615
Goodwill 2,701 8,789
Impairment losses and other 9,205 10,933
Provision for third-party lability 2,655 3,438
Other deferred tax assets 5,896 11,129

22,399 40,904

Tax receivables (current):

VAT refundable 6,497 8,915
Income tax refundable 902 526
Other 197 2,404

7.596] 11,935

The deferred tax assets relate mainly to provisions recognised for restructuring plans, termination benefits
and obligations to employees tha! will become tax deduciible in the coming years. Alsc, Law 16/2012, of
27 December, established for 2013 and 2014 a ceiling on the deductibility of the depreciation and
amortisation charge. Specifically, it was possible to deduct up to 70% of the depreciation and amortisation
charge, and the portion of the charge that was not deductible started to be deducted in 2016 on a straight-
line basis at a rate of one-tenth per year.
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The detail of the tax payables at 30 September 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2016 2015
Deferred tax linbilities:
Assets contributed by Logista 650 732
Revaluation of land owned by the Parent (Note 14-d) 7,125 7,125
Goodwill 83,613 85,180
Business Combination 214252 230,732
Other 23,075 4,362
328,717 328,131
Tax payables (current):
Excise duty on tobacco products 3,771,386 3,624,775
VAT payable 925,012 888,973
Customs duty settlements 4,592 4,801
Income tax, net of prepayments 28,896 26,835
Personal income tax withholdings 3,693 3,716
Social security taxes payable © 15,204 16,827
Tax retention to tobacconists (France) 31,353 30,002
Cther 4,841 5,054
4,784,977 4,600,983

Short-term balances include mainly the “Excise Duty on Tobacco Products” accrued by Compaiiia de
Distribucion Integral Logista, S.A.U., Logistra France, S.A.8. and by Logista ltalia, S.p.A. and pending
payment {o the tax authorities.

Until 2011, each year Compafia de Distribucion integral Logista, S.A.U decreased its taxable profit by one
twentieth of the implicit goodwill included in the acquisition price of its subsidiary in laly. These reductions
are considered to be temporary differences. On 30 March 2012, Royal Decree-Law 12/2012 came into
force, introducing various tax and administrative measures atmed at reducing the public deficit. These
. measures inciude limiting the tax deductibility of such goodwill to 1% per year.

Reconciliation of the accounting profit to the taxable profit
The reconcifiation of the accounting profit before tax to the aggregate taxable profit and of the accounting

profit before tax to the income tax expense resulting from the application of the standard tax rate in force in
Spain for the years ended 30 September 2016 and 2015 Is as foliows:
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Thousands of Euros

profit or loss

2016 2015

Accounting profit before tax 187,764 167,943
Permanent differences (2,423) (13,472
Tax charge at 28%/30% 51,895 46,341
Effect of different tax rates 12,467 10,621
Corporation tax adjustments (8,940} -
Tax adjustment and Other adjustments (1,594) (678)
CVAE France 2,650| 3.023
Reductions (l 243) [ {1,274
Total income tax expense recognised in consolidated 55236 58,033

(*) In the income tax settlement for 2015 the Company applied Articie 30 of the Consoligated Spanish Income
Tax Law and excluded from the tax base & portion of the dividends received in that year. 1t aiso recognised an
item of deferred tax based on the ownership interest in Altadis, S.A.U. that was sold in the public offering in

2014,

The Group is affected by the different income tax rates fo which the Group companies’ activities are
subject:

The breakdown of the income tax expense is as follows:

Spain: Spanish Income Tax Law 27/2014 was published on 27 November 2014. This Law introduced
certain changes to tax legislation in relation to income tax and came into force on 1 January 2018, As
a result, the tax rates applicable in 2016 and 2017 are 28% and 25%, respectively.

France: the standard tax rate is 34.43%, although temporary certain companies were taxed at 38%.

italy: the income tax rate is 27.5% and there is a supplementary business tax which can represent an
additionat 4.6651%. A reduction in the tax rate from 27.5% to 24.5% applicable for years beginning

on or after 1 January 2017 was approved on 31 December 2015.

Portugal: the income tax rate is 26.5%, and there is an obligation to make pre-payments even if an

entity is reporting a loss.

Poland: the income tax rate is 19%.

Thousands of Euros

2016 2015
Current tax:
Continuing operations 36,401 69,359
Deferred tax:
Continuing operations 17,807 (2,675}
Tax adjustment and others 1,028 (8,651)
Total tax expense 55,236 58,033
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Changes in deferred tax assets and liabilitles

The changes in deferred tax assets and labilities in 2016 and 2015 are as foliows:

2016

2015

Thousands of Evros

Balance at | Changein | Others Balance at
30/09/15 | profit or loss eI 30/09/16
Deferred tax assets:
Provision for restructuring costs 6,615 931 (280) 7,266
Goodwill 8,789 {6,006) (83 2,700
Impairment losses and other 10,933 (6,781) (266) 3,886
Provision for third-party liability 3,438 (540) (244)] 2,654
Other deferred tax assets 11,129 (5,081) (155)] 5,893
40,904] (17,477)|  (1,028) 22,399
Deferred tax liabilities:
F Assets contributed by Logista (732) 83 - (649
Revaluation of land {7,125) - - {7,125)
Goodwill {82,080} (1,534) - {83,614)
Business combination {233,832) 19,270 - {214,562)
Other (4,362)1 (18,149) {236) (22,767)
(328,131) (330) (256) (328,717)
Thousands of Euros
Balance at | Change in Tax rate Balance at
30/09/14 | profit or loss{ adjustments |  30/09/15
Deferred tax assets:
Provision for restructuring costs 12,477 (5,331) (531) 6,615
Goodwill 12,747 (2,785) (1,173) 8,78%
Fmpairment losses and other 17,143 {4,984) (1,226) 10,933
Provision for third-party liability 3,064 391 (17 3,438
Other deferred tax assets 13,531 {1,621) (781) 11,129
58,962 (14,330) (3,728) 40,904
Deferred tax liabilities:
Assets contributed by Logista (884) 27 125 (732)
Revaluation of land (8,550) - 1,425 (7,125)
Goodwill {92,540) (325) 10,785; (82,080)
Business combination (253,382) 19,550 - {233,832)
Other {2,159) (2,247} 44 (4,362)
(357,515} 17,005 12,3791 (328,131)
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Tax credit and tax loss carryforwards
At 30 September 2016, the Group did net have any unused tax credits.
The Group's tax loss carryforwards at the end of 2016 were basically as follows:

- Spain: the tax losses not yet offset amount to EUR 4.7 million and were incurred mainly by
Distribuidora de Ediciones, S.A.

- Portugal: the tax losses not yet offset amount to EUR 7.4 million and were incurred mainly by Logista
Transpories, Transitarios e Pharma, L.da.

- Poland: the tax losses not yet offset amount to EUR 4.6 mitlion.

20. Other current financial Habilities

This line item includes mainly the balance at Compafifa de Distribucion Integral Logista, S.A.U relating to
the credit facility granted by it to “Compaiiia de Distribucion Integrat Logista, 8.A.U. y GTECH Global
Lottery, S.L.U., Union Temporat de Empresas’, which amounted to EUR 30,629 thousand at 30
September 2016 (30 September 2015: EUR 30,909 thousand). This amount represents the balance
payable by the Group to “Compafiia de Distribucién Integral Logista, S.A.U and GTECH Global Lottery
S.L.U., Unién Temporal de Empresas” as a result of the account payabile to the other venturer of the UTE
assumed by the Group (see Note 9).

21. Trade and other payables

The detail of “Trade and Other Payables” in the accompanying consclidated balance sheet at 30
September 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2016 2015
Accounts payable for purchases and services 689,885 716,810
Notes payable 18,448 18,685
Payable to related companies (Note 27) 179,566 162,142
Advances received on orders 156 3
888,655 897,640

Trade and Other Payables” includes mainly the amounts outstanding for trade purchases and related
costs. The average payment period for trade purchases in 2016 and 2015 was approximately 38 days (40
days in 2015).

22. Other current liabilities

At 30 September 2016 and 2015 “Other Current Liabilities” includes mainly the remuneration payable to
the employees of the various Group companies, deferred liabilities and other non-trade payables as weil
as a bank deposit received on the part of customers, amounted EUR 77,278 thousand (2015 EUR 51,772
thousand).

23.  Guarantee commitments to third parties

At 30 September 2016, the Group has been provided with bank guarantees totalling EUR 158,520
thousand (30 Septernber 2015: EUR 171,865 thousand) which, in general, secure the fulfilment of certain
obligations assumed by the consolidated companies in the performance of their business activities.
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Also, the Group has provided guarantees for its ordinary frading operations; in this regard, the Parent's
directors consider that any liabilities not foreseen at 3C September 2016 that might arise from the

aforementioned guarantess would not in any event be material.

At 30 September 2016, the Group had taken out insurance policies to cover possible confingencies for
transport and storage in factories and representative offices, fire and third-party liability for all its work
centres. The insured sum adequately covers the aforementioned assets and risks.

24,

Income and expenses

a) Income

The detail of “Revenue” in the consolidated income statements for 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

b) Staff costs

Thousands of Euros

2016 2015
Iberia 2,639,929 2,576,708
Italy 2,611,200] 2,518,937
France 4.410,789] 4,406,866
Corporative 10,408 10,976
Adjustment due to inter-segment sales {40,322) {42,497)
Total 9,632,004 9,470,990

The detail of the Group’s “Staif Costs” in 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2016 2015

Wages, salaries and similar expenses 185,270 181,142
Termination benefits 5,041 13,136}
Employer social security costs 61,638 61,488
Other employee benefit costs (Note 4.12) 2,227 2,828
Other social costs 13,939 12,980

268,115 () 271,574 (%)

(7 "Research Expenditure” includes EUR 1,304 thousand and EUR 1,357

thousarrd of staff costs in 2018 and 2015, respectively.

The average number of employees at the Group, by professional category, in 2016 and 2015, as well as

the number of employes as of 30 September 2016 and 30 September 2015 was as follows:

2016
Category Number of Persons
Average Headcount Headcount at 30/05/16
Permanent Employees | Temporary Employees | Permanent Employees | Temporary Emplovees
Men Women Men Woren Men Women Men Women
Management 21 2 - 22 2 - -
Line personnel and clerical staff 1,455 i,148 173 157 1,472 1.141 160 139
Messengers 1,531 572 379 107 1,528 363 385 160
3.007 1,722 552 264 3,022 1,708 345 319
TOTAL 4,729 816 4,736 864
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2015

Category Number of Persons
Average Headcount Headcount at 30/09/15
Permanent Employees | Temporary Employees | Permanent Employees | Temporary Emplovees
Men Women Men Women Men Women Men Wormen
Management 22 2 - - 20 2 - -
Line personnel and clerical staff 1,449 1,144 119 138 1,458 1,142 160 160
Messengers 1,556 592 354 g6 1,527 776 379 81
3,027 1,738 473 244 3,005 1,920¢ 578 241
TOTAL 4,765 697 - 4,925 780

The average number of disabled employees with a handicap higher than 33% at the Group in 2016 and
2015 was 69 and 62, respectively.

Remuneration of senior executives

The senior executive functions are discharged by members of the Management Committee.

The remuneration eamed in 2016 by the members of the Management Committee of the Parent amounted
to EUR 5,180 thousand (2015 EUR 5,480 thousand). The aforementioned amounts include the amounis
vested in the members of the Management Committee in 2016 and 2015 under the incentive plan

described in Note 412,

The period contributions to the pension plans for members of the Management Committee for 2016 and
2015 amounted to EUR 36 thousand and 45 thousand, respectively.

¢} Other gperating expenses

The detail of "Uing: Operating Expenses” in the consclidated income statements is as follows:

Cost of logistics ngiworks

Thousands of Euros
2016 2015
Leases {32,698) {32,867)
Security and cleaning (14,558) (14,950)
Utilities (16,936) {17,615)
Other operating expenses (*) (111,551) (88,018
Total (175,743)|  (153,450)
Commercial expenses

Thousands of Euros

2016 2015
Leases {2,433) (2,490)
Security and cleaning (16) (15}
Utilities {1,188) (662)
Other operating €Xpenses (17,869) (18,905)
@tal (21,506) (22,072)
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Head Office costs

Thousands of Euros
2016 2015
Leases (4,201) {4,684)
Security and cleaning (624) (718)
Utilities {369)} (473)
Other operating expenses (*) (14,278)] (27,828}
Total (19,472} (33,703)

%3 In 2015 1T expenditure was reclassified to logistics network costs with the exception of those costs
directly relating to head office functions.

d} Operating leases

The Group has the following future rental payment commitments, classified by year of maturity, without
considering future contingent rent revisions (in thousands of Euros):

Thousands of Euros
2016 2015
Within one year (28,236)| (24,345)
Between one and five years (60,66T)  (60,507)
More than five years (9,120)]  (14.657)
Total (98,023)  (99,509)

¢} Finance income

The detail of "Finance Income” in the accompanying consolidated income statements is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2016 2015
Interest income {(Note 27) 12,367 10,897
Other finance income 2,153 1,473
14,520 12,370

f} Finance expenses

The detail of “Financial expenses” in the accompanying consolidated income statements is as foliows:

Thousands of Euros
2016 2015
Acerual for late payment interests and
financial update of provisions (Note 18) (360} (516)
Other financial costs (3,539) (3,768)
(3,899 {(4,284)




g} Other disclosures.

In 2018 and 2015 the fees for financial audit and other services provided by the Cormpany's
eonsolidated financial statemants auditor, Deloitte, S.L., or by a company related to such auditor as a
result of a relationship of controf, common ownership or common management, as well as the fees for
services invoiced by other auditors of the stand-alone financial statements of companies under the
scope of consolidation, and the companies retated to such other auditors as a result of a relationship of

control, common ownership or common management were as follows (in thousands of Euro}.

Services rendered by the main| Services rendered by other
auditor auditors
2016 2015 2016 2015
Andit services 1,139 1,014 15 228
Other attest services 44 37 82 -
Total audit and related services 1,183 1,071 97 228
Transfer pricing counselling services 200 88 - -
Authorised Economic Operator 50 - - -
Other services 91 40 - -
“Total professional services 1,524 1,199 97 228

25.  Segment reporting
Basis of segmentation

Segment reporting is structured by geographical segment. The Group's business activities are jocated
mainly in Iberia (Spain and Portugal), France and ltaly. In the “Corporate and Others” line Poland is
inciuded.

Basis and methedelogy for segment reporting

The segment reporting below is based on monthly reporis prepared by Logista Group management which
are generated through a computer application which categorises {he transactions by geographical area.

The segment's ordinary revenue relates to the ordinary income directly aliocable to the segment plus the
relevant proportion of the Group general revenue that can be allocated therefo using reasonable allocation
bases. Each segment's ordinary revenug does not include interest or dividend income or gains arising from
sale of investments.

The expenses of each segment are determined as the directly afiocable expenses arising from its
operating activities plus the relevant proportion of the expenses which may be allocated to the segment
using reasonable allocaiion bases. The expenses allocated do not include interest or losses arising from
the disposal of investments; similarly, they do not include the income tax expense of the head office’s
general administrative expenses that are not retated to the segments' operafing activities and, therefore,
that cannot be allocated using reasonable allocation bases.

The assets and liabiliies of the segments are those that are directly related to their operations plus those

that can be directly atiributed to them on the basis of the aforementioned allocation system, and include
the proportional part of joint ventures. Segment liabilities do not include income tax liabifities.
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26.  Foreign currency transactions

The Logista Group's foreign currency transactions in 2016 and 2015, measured in euros at the average
exchange rate for the year, were as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2016 2015
Sales 13,098 16,115
Purchases 6,124 9,099
Services received 5,935 4,920

27. Balances and transactions with related parties

The balances at 30 September 2015 and 2015 with related companies were as follows:

2016
Thousands of Euros
Receivables Payables
" Credit | Accounts Accounts Loans
Facilities | Receivable Payable
(Note 9) {Note 11} (Nete 21)
Altadis, S.A UL - 2,119 43,448 -
Altadis Canarias, S.A. - 790 8,466 -
Imperial Brands Enterprise Finance Limited 2,001,448 - - -
Imperial Tobacco International Limited - 864 19,993 -
Imperial Tobacco Espaiia, S.L.U. 6,057 - - -
Seita, S.A.S. - 921 77,274 -
Imperial Tobacco Italia, Sri . 421 26,964 -
Tabacalera, S.L. Central Overheads - 659 3,363 -
Others ] 2,132 58 2,848
2,007,506 7,906 179,566 2,848
2018
Thousands of Euros
Receivables Payables
Credit Accounts | Accounts Loans
Faciiities { Receivable| Payable
(Note 9) Note 11} | (Note 21)
Altadis, S.A.U. - 1,575 26,386 -
Altadis Canarias, S.A. - 655 6,918 -
Imperial Tobacco Enterprise Finance Limited 1,737,144 - 142 -
Imperial Tobaceo International Limited - 5121 18,147 -
Imperial Tobacco Espafia, S.L.U, 6,344 . ' - -
Seita, S.A.S. - 1,024 82,368 -
Imperial Tobacco Italia, Srl - - 215 24 858 -
Others - 2,096 3,324 449
1,743,488/ 6,077 162,143 449
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The accounts payable and accounts receivabie stem from balances payable and receivable, respectively,
and related products, between Logista

related to commercial fransactions, mainly purchases of tobacco

Group companies and imperial Brands Group PLC companies.

The "credit facilities” with Imperial Tobacco Espafia, S.L.U., the head of the iImperial Brands PLC tax group
in Spain, to which Logista belongs, correspond to the account receivable related to the settlement of

income tax.

The "Credit Facilities” with Imperial Brands Enterprise Finance Limited relate to cash among Logisia Group

and the Imperial Brands Group PLC (see Note 9).

The transactions with related companies in 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

2016
Thousands of Euros
Other
Operating Finance - Operating
Income Results Purchases | Expenses
Altadis, S.AU. 7,951 - 383,916 5
Altadis Canarias, S.A 5,732) - 44 816 -
Tabacalera S.L. Central Overheads 4,715 - 125 -
imperial Tobacco Italy, s.r.l. 2,623 - [ 73,826 -
Imperial Tobacco Polska, S.A. 3,024 - 1 -
Imperial Tobacco Manufacturing Polska, S.A. 1,359 - - -
Imperial Brands Enterprise Finance Limited - 12,392 - -
Imperial Tobacco International Limited 2,834 - 34,849 -
Imperial Tobacco Portugal SPPL.C 1,067 - - -
Macotab, S.A.S. - - - 376
SEITA, S.A. 7,826 - 418,714| 122
(Others 7,977 {25} 483 280
Total 45,108 12,367 956,730 783
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2015

Thousands of Euros
. Other
Operating Finance Operating
Income Results Purchases | Expenses

Altadis, S.A.U. 7,511 - 397,815 21
 Altadis Canarias, S.A 5,990 - 40,444 | -
Tabacalera S.L. Central Overheads 4,592 - - ' -
Imperial Tobacco Italy, s.r.1. 1,627 - 65,111 -
Imperia} Tobacco Polska, S.A. 3,158 - 6 -
Imperial Tobacco Manufacturing Folska, S.A. 1,405 - - 1 -
Imperial Tobacco Enterprise Finance Limited - 10,883 - -
Imperial Tobacco International Limited 1,880 - 34,730 -
Imperial Tobacco Portugal SPPLC 928 - - -
Macotab, S.A.S. - - - 378
SEITA, S.A. 8,045 - 443,153] 165
Others 9,137 14 357 154
Total 44,273 10,897 981,617 718

Operating income and other operating expenses relate to services provided by Group companies for the
handling, logistics and siorage of goods. In addition, statistical and market information services are
occasionally provided.

The purchases are included as a result of acquiring tobacco and refated products, as well as convenience
products related to tobacco. Specifically, the transactions with Altadis, S.A.U., Imperial Tobacco ltaly, Sri,
imperiat Tobacce International, Ltd, Altadis Canarias, S.A. and Seita, 5.A.S. relate to purchases of tobacco
and related preducts from these companies to then be subsequently sold in the markets where the Group
operates.

928, Remuneration of dirsctors

Remuneration of the Parent’s directors

in 2016 the remuneration earned by the members of the Board of Directors as a result of their membership
thereof or of any of its executive committees in all connactions, including the remuneration received by the
members of the Board who in turn are executives, amounted to EUR 3,842 thousand (2015: EUR 3,439
thousand).

In addition, the employer contributions to pension plans for the executive directors amounted to EUR 11
thousand in 2016 and 2015,

The life insurance premium corresponding to the Board of Directors amounted to EUR 15 and 9 thousand
i 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The Board's composition is nine male directors and one femate.
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29,

Information regarding situations of conflict of interest involving the directors

Pursuant to Arficle 229 of the Spanish Capital Companies Law consolidated text, the directors have not
reported any situation of direct or indirect conflict of interest that either they or persons related to them
might have with the interests of the Group.

Disclosures on the payment periods to suppliers, Additional Provision Three “Disclosure

obligation” provided for in Law 15/2010, of 5 July

Set forth below are the disclosures -the detail of payments made to suppliers- required by Additional
Provision Three of Law 15/2010, of § July (amended by Final Provision Two of Law 31/2014, of 3
December), prepared in accordance with the Spanish Accounting and Audit Institute (ICAC) Resolution of
29 January 2016 on the disclosures to be included in notes to financial statements in relation to the
average period of payment to suppliers in commercial transactions.

As permitted by the Single Additional Provision of the aforementioned Resolution, since this is the first
reporiing period in which it is applicable, no comparative information is presented.

2016
Days
Average period of payment suppliers 38
Ratio of transactions settled 38
Ratio of transactions not vet settled 42
Thousand
Euros
Total payments made 9,359,034
Total payments oufstanding 539,616

In accordance with the ICAC Resolution, the average period of payment to suppliers was calculated by
taking into account the commercial transactions relating to the supply of goods or setvices for which
payment has accrued since the date of entry into force of Law 31/2014, of 3 December.
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30. Environmental matters

In-force environmental legistation does not significantly affect the activities carried on by the Group and,
therefore, it does not have any envirenmental liabifity, expenses, income, granis, assels, provisions or
contingencies that might be material with respect to the Group's equity, financial position and results.
Therefore, no specific disclosures relating to environmental issues are included in these notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

31. Events after the reporting period

No significant events have occurred subsequent since the end of 20186.

32. Explanation added for franstation to English

Trese consolidated financial statements are presented on the basis the regulatory financial reporting
framework applicable to the Group (see Note 2.1.). Certain accounting practices applied by the Group that
conform with that regulatory framework may not conform with ofher generally accepted accounting
principles.
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Compaiiia de Distribucion Integral Logista Holdings, S.A. and
Subsidiaries

Consolidated Directors Report for

financial year
ended on September 30th 2016

1. EVOLUTION OF GRUPO LOGISTA IN 2016 AND POSITION OF THE GROUP.

The Group recorded during fiscal year 2016 a very positive evolution of results. Main highlights:
O Revenues growing by 1.7%
O Economic Sales'up by 2.8%

O Adjusted Operating Profit recorded growth 5.3% while Profit from Operations grew by
10.8%

O important growth recorded by Net Income, up by 21.0%

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Data in miflion eurcs 1 Oct. 2015 - 1 Oct. 2014 - % Change
30 Sept. 2016 30 Sept. 2015
Revenues 9,632.0 9,471.0 1.7%
Economic Sales 1,038.1 1,010.1 2.8%
Adjusted Operating Profit 234.8 222.9 5.3%
Mafgm over Economic Sales 22.8% 22.1% +50 b.p.
Profit from operations 1771 158.9 10.8%
Net Income 132.1 108.2 21.0%

1 Economic Sales: This term equals Gross Profit and is used without distinction by the
Management to refer to the figure resulting of subtracting Procurernents to the Revenue figure.
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During fiscal year 2016, the macroeconomic situation in the main countries where the Group
operates was relatively stable with GDP growth rates similar or even slightly higher to those
observed in the last quarter of fiscat year 2015.

However, a number of factors contributed along the year to increase the uncertainties that could
led to a potential slowing down in the recovery rate. Among these factors is the slowdown of the
Chinese economy, the constant volatility of oil price, the weakness of some indicators in the first
half of the year in the United States, the concerns about the German banking sector and the
fears for the impact that the UK leaving the European Union might have,

Some other factors in our countries added to the general factors meniioned: the difficulfies to
form a Government in Spain after two elections, the social conflict derived from the labour faw
reform and being the target of various terrorist attacks-in the case of France and the situation of
the banking system in Italy.

In that context, the recurring activity of the Group during the year recorded a positive
performance across the three geographical segments that translated into Revenues, Economic
Sales (except France) and Adjusted EBIT growth,

Nonetheless, the positive effact during the second quarter last year of non-recurring elements in
the Iberia segment, transiated into a negative yearly comparison in the reported results in this
segment.

At the Revenues level, the growth in Tobacco and related in ali geographies and in the Pharma
pusiness in Iberia more than offset the drop in Revenues from Other business in France.

The performance of tobacco volumes distributed by the Group {cigarettes and RYO} during the
fiscal year was positive, reaching a +0.5% above the volumes distributed in fiscal year 2015 and
reverting the trend recorded during that fiscal year when the yearly variation vs. fiscal year 2014
was -0.4%.

During the fousth quarter, the cigarette and RYO distributed volumes recorded a slight decline of
0.4%, compared to a 1.1% yearly rise recorded in the fourth quarter last fiscal year. This
performance was mainly caused by the reduction of volumes in ltaly as a consequence,
probably, of the retail selling price increase during the third quarter.

Retail sefling prices did not changed in Spain and France in the fiscal year, whereas in Italy
tobacco manufacturers raised the price per pack in the third quarter. In the preceding fiscal
year, during the second quarter retall selling price increases occurred in Spain and ltaly.

Economic Sales grew in the three segments in most of the activities, recording the most
significant growths in Pharma, Transport and Tobacco and related in lberia and ltaly. These
growths offset the reduction in the activity in the France segment.

As is customary in the Group, the cost control and the measures to improve efficiency resulted
in total operating costs growing by 2.0% well below the growth experienced by the Economic
Sales figure despite the fact that during the same period of the preceding year the release of
some provisions positively impacted the total operating costs figure. Not considering this non-
recurring positive effect past year, the operating costs increased only by 1.0%.
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The Adjusted EBIT grew by 5 3% and the Adjusted EBIT margin over Economic Sales reached
22 6% compared to the 22.1% obtained in fiscal year 2015.

The lower restructuring costs recorded in this fiscal year (€6.6 million) compared to the same
period in the preceding year (€12.7 million) boosted the Profit from operations that increased
progressed by 10.8%.

Despite the decline experienced by the European Central Bank main interest rate the Financial
Result grew by 31.4% due to @ higher average cash position and to the improvement of results
from a Group's affiliate, the electronic bank ITB, providing service to the tobacconist channe! in
Itaiy.

The Corporate Income Tax rate reduced to 29.4% mainly from the fower nominal corporate
income tax rate in Spain as well as from the lower effective rate compared to the one recorded
in the previous fiscal year

Net Income increased by 21.0%, representing €1.00 per share vs. £0.82 obtained by the Group
in fiscal year 2015.
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Revenues Evolution (By Segment and Activity)

lberia 2,639.9 2,576.7 2.5%
Tobacco & Related 2,270.9 2,218.1 2.4%
Transport Services 329.9 3295 0.1%
Other Businesses’ 129.9 116.5 11.5%
Adjustments (80.8) (87.4) (3.9)%
France 4,410.8 4,406.9 0.1%
Tobacco & Related 4,207.9 4,193.0 0.4%
Other Businesses 209.3 2216 (5.6)%
Adjustments 6.4) {7.7) 17.6%
ltaly 2,611.2 2,518.9 3.7%
Tobacco & Related 28112 2,518.9 3.7%
(29.9) {31.5) 5.1%

Corporate & Others

Total Revenues
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Economic Sales Evolution (By Segment and Activity)

iberia 506.7 488.5 3.5%
Tobacco & Related 248.4 245.1 1.3%
Transport Services 227.3 220.2 3.2%
Other Businesses 73.6 66.4 10.9%
Adjustments {42.6) (42.2) (0.9)%

France 281.8 284.2 {0.8)%
Tobacco & Related 236.3 238.6 (0.9Y%
Other Businesses 50.5 51.7 (2.3)%
Adjustments (5.0 {6.2) 18.4%
italy 244.9 230.2 6.4%
Tobacco & Related 244.9 230.2 6.4

Corporate & Others 4.7 6.3 (24.4)%

Total Economic Sales
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Adjusted EBIT Evolution {By Segment)

Iberia 85.1 98.1 {3.0)%
France 76.2 73.3 3.9%

italy 75.7 63.1 19.8%
Corporate & Others {12.2) {11.8) (4.6Y%

Total Adjusted EBIT ()

(*) See Alternative performance measures caption

BUSINESS REVIEW
1. IBERIA: Spain and Portugal

The fiscal year was characterised by the good performance of activity at a macroeconomic tevel
in Spain, showing GDP growth above 3% despite the political uncertainty caused by ihe
difficulties in forming a Government afier two general elections. The tourist season (fourth
quarter of the fiscal year) reached very positive figures both for Spain and Portugal that became
alternative destinations  after the terrorist attacks suffered by other couniries. These
circumnstances, among other factors, favoured the recurring activity in the iberia segment that
recorded significant increases over the preceding year.

Revenues in lberia reached £2,639.9 million compared to €2 576.7 million in fiscal year 2015,
recording a 2.5% growth. The Economic Sales of the segment reached €506.7 million, a 3.5%
above the €489.5 million recorded in the same period of the previous fiscal year.

Revenues in Tobacco and related products increased by 2.4% as a consequence of the
stability in the tobacco distributed volumes, of the tobacco retail selling price increase in the
second quarter last year and the growth in revenues from the rest of the products.
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In the current fiscal year there were no retail selling price increases of tobacco products,
whereas the manufacturers of these products carried out a 5 cents per pack increase in the
second quarter of fiscal year 2015.

The cigarette volumes distributed in Spain stood absolutely fiat with respect to the previous
year. However, the distributed volumes of RYO continued reducing (-1.6% vs. -0.8%) as well as
the cigar volumes (-2.9% in front of -1.2%).

As already happened last year, @ number of factors have coniributed to the good performance
of volumes in the Spanish market. A higher disposable income, retail selfing prices stability and,
to a large extent, the constant fight against illicit trade carried out by the Authorities that has
ended up with the closure of several illicit factories, the increase in the number of seizures and
the reduction in more than 2 p.p. in contraband that reached an 8.2% over cigarette market in
the first half of calendar year 2016 vs. a 10.6% in the same period of the preceding year
(source: Report “Empty packs survey” by [psos for the tobacco industry).

Since the beginning of the fiscal year, the tobacco distribution contracts in Spain with British
American Tobacco (in the first quarter) and Japan Tobacco International (in the second gquarter)
were renewed for 5 years in both cases.

The revenues from the distribution of convenience products recorded a significant growth mainly
derived from the incorporation of new lines at the beginning of the second quarter. Since last
January the Group's subsidiary for convenience distribution in Spain is managing the
distribution of the consumer products’ portfolio of one of the largest FMCG multinationals 1o the
main wholesalers in the national territory. This agreement foliows the one signed at the end of
the previous fiscal year with the same manufacturer for the distribution of healthcare products to
the pharmacy channel.

The stability of tobacco distributed volumes in Spain and its growth in Porfugal together with the
increase of transport and others added-value services and the evolution of sales of other
produicts in the period translated into an improvement in Economic Sales that grew by 1.3% in
respect to the same period the preceding year.

Revenues in Transport were stable, growing by 0.1% The parcel and courier activities recorded
increases in Revenues and Economic Sales while full truck load activity showed the impact
year-on-year of the divestment of one of its subsidiaries in the third quarter last year. Economic
Sales increased by 3.2% up to €227.3 million.

The strategy of differentiation through the quality of service followed by the Group continued
translating into improvements in the activity indicators, especially in those related to sectors with
a higher demand of added value services (technology products, activities sensitive to time-of-
delivery, products requiring controlled temperature, etc.). The courier activity stood out during
the whols year obtaining significant in the number of shipments over last fiscal year.

Revenues in Other Businesses (which includes Pharma, lottery and publications distribution
activities) grew by 11.5% reaching €128.¢ million while Economic Sales went up by 10.8% to
€73.6 million due to the growth recorded in Pharma.

Logista Pharma has been carrying out the distribution to pharmacies in Spain of the healthcare
products of an important manufacturer of FMCG since the beginning of the fiscal year, as well
as of some other laboratories.

ikewise, during the fiscal year new agreements were reached in ihe pre-whoiesaling activity
either to extend contracts with existing clients or to incorporate new pharmaceutical companies.
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The Publications activity has recorded during the year the addition of new clients from the
collectable sector (among others, SALVAT) significantly increasing its market share and
therefore mitigating the declining trend experienced by the sector. The “flow-pack™ line of
products benefited as well from the incorporation of new specialised pubiishers and continued
recording a relevant growth both in number of issues and revenues.

The total Operating expenses of the segment registered & good performance, increasing by
5.1%. It must be highlighted that in the second quarter of the previous year, provisions related to
litigations won with final sentences received by the Company for a total amount of €8.2 million
were reversed causing a non-recurring reduction of the total operating costs at the third quarter
of that fiscal year. Not considering that impact, the total operating expenses recorded an
increase of 2.9% well below that recorded by the recurring activity.

Adjusted Operating Profit reached €95.1 million what represents a decline of 3.0% with
respect to the same period last year. Excluding the non-recurring impact of the reversal of
provisions in the prior year, the Adjusted Operating Profit grew by 5.8%

Restructuring costs reached €5.1 million in fiscal year 2016 vs. €6.2 million last year. Profit from
Operations reached €90.7 million versus £01.6 million recorded in the previous year, reducing
by 1.0% (not considering the impact of non-recurring last year the growth is 8.8%).

2. FRANCE

The macroeconomic scenario in France did not show a clear trend throughout the fiscal year.
While in the first quarters the economy recorded some growth, in the third quarter it stagnated
due to the impact of the days of protest and strikes against the Labour Law reform and in the
fourth guarter was also affected by the decline in tourism after the terrorist attacks suffered by
the country.

Revenues from the France segment stood at a similar level than in the previous year (€4,410.8
million, +0.1%) while Economic Sales slightly reduced to reach €281.8 million recording & 0.8%

decline.

The higher Revenues from Tobacce and related products offset the decline experienced from
Other businesses reduced due to the impact of the rationafisation in the portfolio of clients, to
the social conflict situation that the country has lived in the third quarter and to the lower influx of
tourists.

Tobacco and related products Revenues increased by 0.4% to €4,207.8 million thanks to the
growth of distributed tobacco volumes that offset the Jower revenues from electronic
transactions.

There were not retail selling price increases of tobacco products in fiscal years 2016 and 2015.
The tobacco distributed volumes grew compared to fiscal year 2015 both in the cigarette
category (+1.1% versus -0.5%) and in the RYO category that increased by 3.0% while during
the same period last year it increased by 4.4%.

it is noteworthy the significant boost recorded by cigarette volumes in the fourth quarter that
were a 2.2% above the distributed volumes in the same period the preceding year.

The diversification strategy in electronic transactional products allowed to partially compensate
the reduction that the revenues from telephony top ups continue recording due to the drop
experienced by the sector.
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Although consumption in the convenience channel seemed to have recovered somewhat in the
second quarter of the fiscal year, the channe! might have been affected in the third and fourth
quarters by the social conflict stem from the Labour Law reform carried out by the Government
as well as by the new terrorist attack suffered in the month of July.

The Economic Sales from the activity were slightly lower than the previous year (-0.8% to
£236.3 milion). Higher margins of Economic Sales over Revenues in convenience products and
in electronic transactions mitigated the impact of the fall experienced by the telephony top-ups’
market and of the higher promotional effort in the commercialisation of point of sale tferminals.

The performance of the Other Businesses activity (wholesale distribution of convenience
products in non-tobacconist channels) was very weak compared {o last year due, among other
factors, o the impact on consumpfion of the days of protest and to the bad weather recorded
during the third quarter (a factor that has a high incidence over the sale of beverages and soft
drink) and to the lower number of tourists during the fourth quarter. Thus, the accumulated
Revenues reduced by 5.6% with respect to last year to €209.3million.

Economic Sales continued reflecting the positive impact of the measures taken to rationalise the
portfolio of clients and declined below Revenues, a 2.,3%, reaching €50.5 million.

The measures undertaken to improve the efficiency in the France segment afiowed an increase
in results despite the decline in Economic Sales. The operating costs declined a 2.4% leading
Adjusted Operating profit to £76.2 million, a 3.9% more than in the praceding year.

Profit from Operations reached £95.9 million well above that obtained during fiscal year 2015
(€17.8 million). The main adjusiment in the segment is the Amortization of Assets generated
from the acquisition of Logista France that was £52.2 million in both periods.

3. ITALY

The macroeconomic situation in ltaly remained weak in the fiscal year. The modest growth rates
recorded in the first two quarters transformed into stability in the third and fourth quarters in an
environment of uncertainty around the situation of the national banking system.

The retail selling price increase of fobacco products in January 2015 and in the third quarter this
year together added o the positive performance of tobacco distributed volumes and the growth
recorded by the sales of other products during the period aliowed raising Revenues in the italy
segment to reach €2.611.2 million and increased a 3.7% over the €2,518.9 miltion obtained in
the previous year.

Cigarette disiributed volumes remained practically stable, decreasing by 0.1% compared to the
0.7% decline recorded last year. The RYOQ category grew by 4.4% vs. an increass of 4.2% in
the preceding year.

As already mentioned, the cigarette volumes showed a sharper decline during the fourth quarter
(-2.2%), probably as a consequence of the retafl sefiing price increase recorded in the third
quarter.

During the third quarter of the current fiscal year there was a retail selling price of around 20
cents per pack, a similar amount to the price increase taken by the tobaceo manufacturers in
the second quarter last year.
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However, the ltalian tobacco market continues being marked by the continuous share growth of
the low price segment and, in the last days of fiscal year 2018, tobacco manufacturers recuced
the price of some RYO brands.

The Group continued progressing in its commercial task to boost the sales of convenience and
tobacco related products through new agreements with manufacturers, the fidelisation strategy
and the offer of omni-channei ordering to the tobacconist network. As a result of these actions
both Revenues and Economic Sales of these products continued their growing trend.

This commercial boost together with the other services invoiced to manufacturers, the positive
performance of distributed tobacco volumes and the retail selling price increase recorded in the
third quarter franslated into a strong rise in Economic Sales. Thus, the Economic Sales of the
ltaly segment reaches €244.9 million compared to €230.2 million in fiscal year 2015 what
represents a 6.4% increase.

The Group continued progressing in reorganisation of the distribution network aleng the year
with the objective of keep on growing the sales of convenience products and the efficiency.
Exchanging best practices and a deep operations’ knowledge allowed once again obtaining a
_higher operational margin through cost control.

Thus the total operating costs grew by 1.3% with respect to last year, well below the underlying
growth of the recurring activity. During the fiscal year several actions were implemented to
reduce handling cost in central warehouses, packing costs or the number of service points of
which, under the already mentioned network reorganisation, 19 out of the 175 existing at the
beginning of the fiscal year have been closed and 5 have been transformed into transit points.

Adjusted Operating Profit advanced 10.8% reaching €75.7 million. The increase in restructuring
costs that reached €2.0 million franslated into a 15.7% increase in Operating Profit (€72.2
mittion compared to €62.4 miliion obtained last year.
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4. CORPORATE AND OTHERS

This segment includes corporate expenses and the Polish operations.

Adjusted Operating Profit reduced by 4.6% compared to previous year and reached -€12.2
million.

Despite its low relative weight, it is noteworthy that the activity in Poland significantly improved
over fiscal year 2015.

Alternative performance measures

Adjusted Operating Profit (or indistinctly Adjusted EBIT) is the principal indicator used by
Management to assess the recurring results of operations of the business. This indicator is
basically calculated by deducting from the Profit from Qperations all those expenses that are not
directly linked to the Revenue obtained by the Group during each period, which facilitates the
analysis of the evolution of operating expenses and typical margins of the Group. In the
following table reconciliation between Profit from Operations and Adjusted Operating Profit for
fisca! year 2015 and 2014 is shown:

Profit from Operations 2348 2229
Restructuring Costs {6.8) (12.7)
Amortization of Assets Logista France (52.2) {52.2)
Net Loss of Disposal and Impairment of 0.2 1.8

Non-Curreni Assets

Share of Results of Companies and 0.9 0.2
Others
Adjusted Operating Profit 1774 159.9
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FINANCIAL RESULT EVOLUTION

Financial resuits grew by 31.4% to reach €10.6 million vs. €8.1 million obtained in the previous
year. Both the average cash position and the improvement of results from an affiliate company
in the ltaly segment allowed offsetting the slight decline suffered by the interest rate received on
the cash position.

The interest rate used as & reference in the treasury agreement with our majority shareholder
{European Central Bank main rate), over which a 75 b.p. spread is obtained under that
agreement, remained stable at 0.05% during the fiscal year 2015 while in the current fiscal year,
from 1 October 2015 to 9 March 2016 was stable at 0.05 b.p. but reduced to 0.0% since 10
March,

The average cash position during the fiscal year was €1,582 million compared fo €1,341 million
in the same period of previous fiscal year.

Likewise, the good performance of the activity in one of the affiliates of the Group, the electronic
pank ITB, aimed to provide service to the tebacconist network in ltaly, brought higher income
than in the same period of fiscal year 2015 and contributed to a large extent to the significant
growth in Financial Income. During the fourth quarter of the fiscal year Logista reached an
agreement to sell its stake in this Company (13% of share capital) to Banco intesa Sanpaolo,
deal subject to review by the Antitrust Authorities, The sale is expected to be effective during the
first quarter of fiscal year 2017.

NET INCOME EVOLUTION

Earnings before Taxes increased by 11.8% to €187.7 million, while Net Income increased by
21.0% to reach €132.1 miffion

The effective consolidated tax rate of the period was 29.4% vs. close to 34.6% in preceding
year due to a large extent to the reduction of the corporate tax rate in Spain approved by the
Government in 2014 and the application of certain deductions.

Earnings per Share were €1.00 vs. €0.82 in 2015, with no variations in the number of shares.
At fiscal year closing, the Company owns 275,614 own shares.

The graphs below show the evolution of main indicators for the fiscal year 2016 (October 2015 -
September 2016) compared to indicators on fiscal year 2015 (October 2014 — September
2015):
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Revenue {million €) Profit from operations {mitlion €}
84710 9,832.0 177

2015 2016 2015 2016

Profit forthe period (million €) Average headcount

2015 2016

CASH FL.OW

The seasonality of the Group’s business results in a negative cash flow during the first and
second quarters of the fiscal year that is recovered during the second half, usually reaching its
peak around year end.

The improvement registered by the Cash Generation in 2016 is mainly due to the Operating
Profit growth. The performance of the rest of captions, both operating and investing, contributed
to reach a Cash Generation above that obtained in the preceding year.

During fiscal year 2016 a total of €995 million were paid as dividends, €66.4 miliion
corresponding fo final dividend of fiscal year 2015 and €33.1 million as interim dividend of fiscat
year 2016,

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board of Directors intends to propose to the General Sharehoiders Meeting distributing a
final dividend corresponding to fiscal year 2016 of €86.1 million (€0.65 per share) that wili be
payable at the end of the second quarter of fiscal year 2017.

Additionally, the Board of Directors agreed past 26 July to distribute an intertm cash dividend
corresponding to fiscal year 2016 of €0.25 per share (slightly more than €33.1 million). The
payment was effective on 29 August, 20186.
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Therefore, the total dividend corresponding to fiscal year 2016 will be £119.3 milion (€0.80 per
share), a 21.6% higher than the fotal dividend distributed in fiscal year 2015.

OUTLOOK

Given the current situation in the different markets in which the Group operates, similar growth
levels in Adjusted EBIT and Net Income than in fiscal year 2016 are expected in fiscal year
2017.

Nevertheless, it is important fo highiight the existing uncertainties around the impact that the
enforcement of plain packaging may have on the consumption of tobacco in France. There is
scarce experience in other countries regarding the implementation of similar measures so it is
difficult to evaluate the repercussions that it might have on market dynamics.

According to the calendar set by the legislator, from next 1 January 2017 the tobacconists will
only self packs compliant with the said plain packaging, reason why no significant impact is
expected during the first quarter of fiscal year 2017.

PAYMENT PERIODS TO SUPPLIERS

As of September 30th, 2016, the Group registers accounts payables slightly above the
maximum legal payment period (30 days) explained by suppliers agreements characteristics.

RISK EXPOSURE

The risk management to which is exposed the Logista Group in the performance of its activities
is one of the basic cornerstones of its management in order to preserve the Group's value
assets. With a focus on a global management of the Group's risk, the risk management system
is structured and defined to reach the strategic and operational objectives. This risk control
system is monitored and supervised by the Audit and Control Committee of the Board of
Directors. This Audit and Control Commitiee delegates these competencies in the Internal
Control Committes.

This Internal Control Committee is chaired by the Group's Corporate Financial Management and
has the double objective of i) to ensure the continuous development and implementation of the
Group’s Internal Contro! System in all countries and businesses, as well as i) to promote and
coordinate the work for annually updating the Group's risk map and propose approval to the
competent bodies.

Although in this management report we will focus on the risk management and control systems
of financial risks, for a broader description of risk management and control systems of the
Group see point E of the Annual corporate governance report. Aiso, in point F, the internal
Controi System for the Group's financial information is described.

The main risks and uncertainties facing the Group are related to possible regulatory changes in
the industries in which it operates, the normal operational risks arising in the ordinary course of
business, which are insured exiernally. However, the Group complies with all the requirements
to operate in the various markets and industries in which it carries on its business activities, and
it has established, through its organisational structure, the appropriate procedures and controls
to enable it to identify, prevent and mitigate the risks of change in the regulatory framework and,
similarly, to comply with the obligations imposed by the various legislations applicable to it.
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Among the main risks, it is important to highfight:

The Group’s Businesses are subject to compiiance of numerous general and industry laws and
regulations, with European, national, regional and local reach, in every country where it
operates, exposing the Group to potential failures to comply and the corresponding sanctions
or claims and, on the other hand, to increasing costs for supervision of compliance and control.

European Directive 2014/40/UE (3 April 2014}, whose transposition period by the respective
UE members ended on May 20, 2016, establishes tighter rules for tobacco products, , related
among others, to labelling, ingredients, track and trace and cross-border trade could affect the
sold volume.

Liberalization in the main markets where the Group operates as tobacco derived products
authorized distributor where currently exists a State monopoly for retail sale of these products
could affect results, if the measures already planned by the Group were not implemented.

Main operational risks may occur are related to theft of tobacco in facilities and during transport
associated to increases in insurance premiums, as well as to technological risks associated to
the lack of {or faulty) availability of the Information System.

The Group could also be affected by the risks arising from the adverse economic climate
worldwide and their possible impact on consumption in the markeis and indusiries in which the
Group is present.

From a financial perspective, the Group's main financial assets are cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables and investments. These items represent the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk. So, the main financial risks for the Group could be summarized in:

Safeguarding of assets: the Group's Financial Management has as one of its main objectives to
safeguard the Group's assets value in all business units and countries where it operates (Spain,
France, ltaly, Portugal and Poland, mainly) through the risk analysis and prevention and
optimizing the management of the main claims. The financial department analyses the
accidenial risks which could affect the Logista Group, in its assets and also in its activity, and
according to these risks, establishes the externat insurance coverage contracts which considers
necessary. Related fo the high Goodwill, impairment tests are carried out according fo
international Accounting Standards in the Group.

Credit risk: The main financial assets of the Group are cash and cash egquivalents, credits fo
‘Group companies, trade receivables and other receivables. In general, the Group deposits ils
cash and cash equivalents in entities holding a high credit rating. The Group presents as well a
exposure to credit or counterparty risk with imperial Brands by virtue of the subscribed treasury
agreements.

The Group controls the insolvency and definquency risks establishing credit limits and through
the establishment of demanding conditions in respect to collection periods; that commercial risk
is spread among a high number of clients with short coliection periods, being the main Group's
clients newsstands and tobacconists. So, the credit risk exposure to third parties is not very
significant, and the Group has, always if considered, Insurance Policies to mitigate the impact of
possible defaults, although this default rate in all geographies in which the Group operates is
very low.

The Group estimates that at 30 September 2016 the level of exposure to credit risk of its
financial assets is not significant.
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With regard to liquidity risk, the Group maintains enough cash and cash equivalents to face the
payments derived from its usual activities. Also, if punctually financing is required, the Group
has available credit lines.

Respect the exposure to interest rate risk, considering the low level of the Group’s financial
debt, the Management of the Parent Company considers the impact from a potential increase in
interest rates which could have in the consolidated annual accounts is not significant.

Also, the level of exposure to the net equity and the P&L account in terms of future changes in
the current exchange rates is not relevant; due to the volume of transactions of the Group in
non-Euro currencies is not significant.

From a fiscal point of view, the risks facing the Group are:

Changes in the payment cycle of the Group can obligate to seek out external financing sources
to compliance its obligations: As any wholesale business, the payment cycles of the acquired
‘products to manufacturers and the bilfing cycles of the peints of sale do not match, Along with
this, the payment by the Logista Group to Tax Authorities is made in a different cycle to the
cycles corresponding to manufacturers and points of saie.

On the other hand, the possibility of modifications in the tax regulation can impact directly in the
results and cash management of the Group (excise duties, Corporate Income Tax, Personal
income Tax).

During the fiscal year, the Group has suffered the materialization of normal operational risks, in
the normal business evolution, and particularly, robberies of tobacco in facilities and during the
transport, without incidence in the Group’s results thanks to insurance of the goods. Also, the
Group faced the responsibility for seitlement tax litigations, resolved against the Group, without
relevant incidence in the results due to they were provisioned.

ENVIRONMENT

The Group integrates the environmental policy in its corporative strategy through the Quality
and Environment Director Plan.

The Group's Quality, Environment and Energy Efficiency Policy establishes the guidelines
governing its activities that, within a continuous improvement process focused on excellence,
includes implementing policies and good practices for optimizing the use of resources,
supporting and contemplating energy efficiency in acquiring products and services, as well as
promoting the prevention of pollution in the processes.

The Policy also contemplates the definition and control of environmental and qualily indicators
with periodic evaluation of the sustainability performance, as well as the evaluation and
reduction of the carbon footprint.

1t also establishes the strict regulatory compliance, extended to voluntary obiectives subscribed
by the company, as well as the collaboration with organisms and groups of interest favouring
the improvement of quality and the environment.
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In addition, the Quality and Environment Corporate Direction develops initiatives to raise
awareness or to additionally disseminate the actions the Logista Group undertakes in this
matter to increase the employees’ knowledge and commitment in this matter.

The Logista Group is calculating since the fiscal year 2013-2014 the Carbon Footprint of every
business and service in the different countries where it operates through an operational control
approach, including the Group's outsourced activities, as well as those by outsourced transport
vehicles.

‘The calculation is based on the norm and emission factors for reporting Green House Gases by
the Green House Gas Protocol and the UNE-EN-16258 norm to establish the calculation
methodoiogy.

in addition, the calculation is verified under the UNE-EN 1SO 14064 norm by an independent
audit entity, ratifying the numbers and assuring the process reliabifity and traceability.

During the fiscal year 2014, the Logista Group began using renewable produced electricity.
During the fiscal year 2016, the Group has increased the number of points supplied with
renewable produced electricity to more than 90% of the Group'’s facilifies, including every Group
directly managed center in Spain, France, Italy and Portugal. '

Also, the Group compiles and analyzes information about the water consumption, waste and
most relevant materials consumed by the Group.

The Logista Group has defined an energy efficiency program, both for its network of facilities
and for its transport networks, even if outsourced. The Group periodically undertakes energy
audits in every country and by each business {0 analyze energy evolution and to identify best
practices.

The Logista Group participates and promotes initiatives on environmental protection aiming at
stimuiating the relevance of the environmental sustainability in business activilies.

Thus, the Group participates in reports and technical, divulging and/or of environmental analysis
reporis, such as the Carbon Disclosure Project (CDP) or the FTSE4Good, sharing with
transparency our vision on the climate change and its impact on the society and our business in
particular.

CDP distinguished Logista as “Climate Disclosure Leader 2015 after analyzing the 125 largest
companies by market capitalization in Spain and Portugal. Logista also participates as founding
member of the Grupe Espafiol para el Crecimiento Verde (Spanish Group for Green Growth), a
non-profit businesses association gathering among others 29 of Spain’s largest companies,
aiming at working together to transfer to the society and the Public Administration its vision on
the sustainable economic growth model compatible with the efficient use of natural resources.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS FOR THE GROUP AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No significant events took place after the reporting period that could affect a significant impact
on the accompanying consolidated financial accounts.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES

The Group invested in [+D+i €4.7 million in fiscal year 2016. Most of these investments were
made to adapt the systems to enfarge the portfolio of services offered to its clients, automate
processes and develop own software.

TREASURY SHARES

The Board of Directors of 26 January 2016 agreed an extension of the Share Buyback Program
of the Company (communicated to CNMV on January 30, 2015) and extended on September
28, 2015 to atiocate them to 2014 General Plan in Performance Shares and to the Special Plan
in Performance Shares. On September 27 2016, the Board of Directors agreed to extend until
October 1, 2017 the Extended Share Buyback Program of the Company.

At 30 September 2016, the Group held in its balance sheet 275,614 own-shares, representing
the 0.24% of the Company’s share capital. Own-shares were acquired in execution of the
Share Buyback Program.

USE OF DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

No Group company uses derivative financial instruments.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
OF LISTED PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANIES

A OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE

A.1, Complete the following table about the share capital of the company:

Date of last amendment

Share Capital (€)

Number of shares

Number of voting rights

04/06/2014

26,550,000.00

132,750,000 132,750,000

State whether there are different classes of shares with different rights attached thereto:

Yes [

NoX

A2, List the direct and indirect owners of significant holdings in your company at the date of the
financial year end, excluding the Directors:

Number of indirect voting rights

Name (person or company) | Number of direct : e or;.to;a}

of the shareholder voting rights | Direct owner of |  Number of Vo ;n"

the holding voting rights rignts

IMPERIAL BRANDS PLC 0 ALTADIS SAU 92.925.001 70,00%
ALLIANZ GLOBAL
INVERSTOR FUNDS 4197.259 3-16%
ALLIANZ GLOBAL
INVERSTOR GMBH 0 6716072 1.90%

State the most significant movements in shareholding structure that have taken place over the

financial year:

Name (person or company) of the shareholder Trar}x)s:tc;tmn Transaction Description
FIDELITY INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 29/02/2016 | Fell below the 1% share capital threshold

A.3. Complete the following tables on the members of the Board of Directors of the Company, who
have voting rights attached to shares in the company:

Name (person or company)
of the shareholder

Number of direct
voting rights

Number of indirect voting rights

% on total
Number of voting rights

voting rights

Direct owner of
the holding

Total % of voting rights held by the Board of Directors




Complete the following tables on the members of the Board of Directors who have rights over

shares in the Company:

Name (person or Number of Indirect voting rights Number of o ,
. . : % on total voting
company} of the direct voting eguivalent riehis
shareholder rights Direct owner | - umber of shares g
voting rights
Luis Egido Gélvez 116,865 0 0 116,865 0.09%
Rafael de Juan Lopez 50,970 0 ¢ 50,970 (.04%

A.4. State, where applicable, the family, business, contractual or corporate relationships existing
between the owners of significant hoidings, to the extent that they are known by the Company,
unless these be scarcely relevant or stem from the ordinary course of trade:

Name (person or company) of the
shareholder

Kind of relationship

Short Description

N/A

A.5. State, where applicable, the business, contractual or corporate relationships existing between
the owners of significant holdings and the Company and/or its group, unless these be scarcely
relevant or stem from the ordinary course of trade:

company} of the
shareholder

Name (person or

Kind of
relationship

Brief Description

Imperial Brands PLC

Contractual

TG-LOGISTA HOLDINGS RELATIONSHIP
FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT”, dated June 12,
2014,

imperial Brands PLC ({formerly named Imperial
Tobacco Group-iTG) undertakes to maintain and
respect the freedom of management and
decision making of the administrative and
managerial bodies of the Company, and the
neutrality principle in its commercial and services
relations with third parties, also establishing the
confidentiality of the business information of the
Company and the separation of their respective
iT systems.

The Framework Agreement also regulates
related fransactions between both companies,
and the government and administration of the
Company.

Imperial Brands
Enterprise Finance
Limited

Contractual

“INTRA GROUP LOAN FACILITY
AGREEMENT", dated June 12, 2014, and
amended on December 1st, 2015

Agreement on a reciprocal credit facility, for five




years {(with a yearly tact renewal). with a
maximum disposal iimit of two thousand six
hundred miltion euros.

According to this agreement, Compafila de
Distribucion  Integral Logista SAU  {100%
subsidiary of the Company) will daily lend IBEFL
its cash excess, af the base raie of the European
Central Bank, plus a margin of 0.75%. if Logista
has to get into debt o meet the needs of its
working capital, it can reciprocally borrow the
amount from IBEFL.

A.6. State whether the company has been informed of any para-social agreements affecting the
Company pursuant to the provisions of sections 530 and 531 of the Companies Act. If so, describe
them briefly and list the shareholders bound by the agreement:

Yes O No X
Participants in the para-social % of share capital Brief description of
agreement affected the agreement
N/A

State whether the Company knows of the existence of concerted actions among its sharcholders. If
s0, give a brief account thereof:

Yes O No X
o . . . :
Participants in concerted actions % of share capital Brief descnption of
affected the action
N/A

In the event that during the vear any modification or breaking of those pacts or agreements or
concerted actions has occurred, state it expressly: N/A

A.7. State if there is any legal or natural person who exerts control or could exert control over the
Company in accordance with section 5 of the Stock Exchange Act. If so, identify it/them:
Yes X No [

Name (person or company)

IMPERIAL BRANDS PLC

Remarks
INDIRECT PARTICIPATION OF 70% THROUGH ALTARIS SAU

A.8. Complete the following tables on the treasury stock of the company:

At year-end closing:

. Number of indirect Total % on share
Number of direct shares " )
shares (*) capital
275614 ] e (.21%




(*) Through:

Name or Company name of the direct holder

. Number of direct shares
of the interest

N/A

TOTAL

Explain the significant changes, in accordance with the provisions of Real Decreto 136272007,
occurred during the financial year:

Explain the significant changes

N/A

A.0. Give details of the conditions and term of the current mandate given by the Annual General
Meeting to the Board of Directors to issue, buy back or transfer own shares:

The General Meeting of Shareholders of June 4, 2014 authorised the Board of Directors to acquire
Company’s own shares in the following terms:

«“To authorize the Board of Directors so that pursuant to the provisions established in Article 146 of
the Act on Capita! Companies (“Ley de Sociedades de Capital™), it may acquire, at all times, shares
.. COMPAN({A i+ DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL LOGISTA HOLDINGS, S.A., provided that:

i) the face vaiuc { the shares acquired, in addition to those already held by the Company and/or its
subsidiaries, does not exceed 10% of the share capital of COMPANIA DE DISTRIBUCION
INTEGRAL LOGISTA HOLDINGS, S.A., and

ii) the acquisition, including any shares that the Company or person acting in its own name but on
behalf of the Company may have acquired or previously held, does not result in the Company’s
net equity falling below the share capital amount plus any restricted reserves foreseen by the
regulations or the By-laws.

Furthermore, to authorize the subsidiaries so that, notwithstanding the relevant authorisation of
their General Meeting of Shareholders, pursuant to said Article 146, they may at all times acquire
shares in COMPANIA DE DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL LOGISTA HOLDINGS, S.A., provided
that the face value of the acquired shares, in addition to those already held by the Company and/or

its subsidiaries, does not exceed 10% of the share capital of COMPANIA DE DISTRIBUCION
INTEGRAL LOGISTA HOLDINGS, S.A.

Said acquisitions may be carried out through a purchase, swap, donation, allocation or non-recourse
debt and, in general, under any other form of acquisition for consideration. In any case, the shares
to be purchased will be circulating shares that are fully paid up.

The Board of Directors of COMPAN[A DE DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL LOGISTA
HOLDINGS, S.A. or of its subsidiarics may agree 0 purchase the Company’s shares in one or
more transactions, for a maximum price that does not exceed 20% of their listed price, and for a
minimum price that is not less than the face value of 0.20 Euros per share.

This authorization is granted for a five-year term, calculated as of the date of this General Meeting.
To expressly allow, for the purposes of Article 146.1.2), last paragraph, of the Act on Capital




Companies (“Ley de Sociedades de Capital™), that any share acquired by COMPANIA DE
DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL LOGISTA HOLDINGS, S.A. or its subsidiaries, further to this
authorization, be used or attached, in whole or in part, for its transfer, amortization or delivery to
directors of the Company, and managers and other employees of COMPANIA DE
DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL LOGISTA BOLDINGS, S.A. and its Subsidiaries Companies.”

A9. bis Estimated floating capital

%

Estimated floating capital 24.73%

A.10. State whether there is any restriction on the transferability of securities and/or any restriction
on voting rights. Namely, report the existence of any restrictions that might hinder the take-over of
control of the company by purchasing its shares on the market:

Yes [1 No X

Description of the restrictions

A11. State whether the Annual General Meeting has resolved the taking of anti-takeover measures
in the event of a public tender offer pursuant to the provisions of Act 6/2007:

Yes Ll No X

Describe, if - :licable, the approved measures and the terms on which the restrictions will
become ineffective.

A.12 State whether the company has issued securities that are not traded on a Community regulated

market.
Yes [ No X

Specify, if applicable, the different classes of shares, and the rights and obligations attached
to each class of shares.

B GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

B.1 Indicate and, if applicable, explain whether there are differences with the minimum
requirements set out in the Act on Capital Companies (ACC) in connection with the quorum
required to hold a valid General Meeting of Shareholders.

Yes [l Ne X

Quorum % other than that
established in article 194 of the
ACC for special cases covered

therein

Quorum % other than that
established in article 193 of
the ACC for general cases

Quorum required on 1% call
N/A

Quorum required on 2™ call

Description of the differences




B.2 Indicate and, if applicable, explain whether there are differences with the rules provided
by the Act on Capital Companies (ACC) for the passing of corporate resolutions:

Yes O NoX

Describe how they differ from the rules established in the ACC.

Qualified majority other than that

established in article 201.2 ACC

for cases set forth in article 194.1
ACC

Other instances in which a
qualified majority is
required

% established by the
entity for the passing of
resotutions

N/A

Describe the differences

B.3 Indicate the rules applicable to amendment to the Articles of Association. Namely, report
the majorities established to amend the Articles of Association, and, if any, the rules to
safegnard shareholders’ rights when amending such Articles.

Standards applicable to the amendments of the company’s Articles of Association are those
provided in the Articles 285 to 294 of the Act on Capital Companies (Royal Legislative Decree of
July 2nd, 2010).

B.4 Give the atiendance figures for the General Meetings held during the year to which this
report refers and the previous year:

Attendance data

% distance voting
Date GMS %izt;eel:;l:: o g;t;!::)}:;l * Electronic Others |Total
Vote
17/02/2015 70.39% 12.56% 0.00% 0.00% 82.95%
16/03/2016 70% 2091% 0.00% 0.00% | 90.91%

B.5 Indicate whether there are any by-law restrictions requiring a minimum number of

shares to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Yes O

No X

Number of shares required to attend the General Meeting

B.6 Section repealed




B.7 Indicate the address and means of access to the company’s website, to the information on
corporate governance and other information on the General Meetings which must be made
available to shareholders through the Company’s website.

The most relevant information on the Company’s corporate governance is available in the section
“Shareholders and Investors”, sub-section “Corporate Governance” of the corporate website
(http://www.grupologista.com). The information on the Annual General Meetings is also included

in the same section, sub-sections “General Meeting” (for the current year) and “Previous General
Meetings”.

C. ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY
C.1 Board of Directors.

C.1.1 Maximum and minimum number of directors provided in the Articles of Association

Maximum Number of Directors 15

Minimum Number of Directors 10

C.1.2 Complete the following table with the members of the Board

Name (person or . Type of Position on the | Date of first Date of Election
company) of the Representative Di . . latest
. irectorship Board appointment . procedure
Director appoinfment
Gregorio Marafién v . _
Bertran de Lis Independent Chairman 13/05/2014 | 13/05/2014 GMS
Luis Egido Galvez e Executive CEO 13/05/2014 | 13/05/2014 GMS
. . Secretary
Rafael de Juan Lopez | =we-- Executive Director 13/05/2014 | 13/05/2014 GMS
Cristina Garmendia fndependent Director | 04/06/2014 | 04/06/2014 GMS
Mendizdbal
Eduardo Zaplana Independent Director | 130052014 | 13/052014 | M
Heméndez-Soro
Stéphane Lissner e Independent Director 13/05/2014 | 13/05/2014 GMS
Tohn Matthew Downing R Proprietary Director 13/05/2014 | 13/05/2014 GMS
Nicholas James Keveth -— Proprietary Directar 13/05/2014 | 13/05/2014 GMS
Richard Guy Hathaway e Proprietary Director 24/03/2015 | 24/03/2015 | By co-option
David Ian Resnekov — Proprietary Director 13/05/2014 1 13/05/2014 GMS
Total number of Directors 10

Indicate the vacancies occurred on the Board of Directors during the period:

Name (person or company) of the Director type when the vacancy cccurred Date of termination
Director

NONE




C.1.3 Complete the following tables about the members of the Board and their different categories:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Name (person or company) of the Position in the organisational chart of the
Director Company
LUIS EGIDO GALVEZ CEO
RAFAEL DE JUAN LOPEZ SECRETARY
Total number of executive Directors 2

% on total Board members

EXTERNAL PROPRIETARY DIRECTORS

20.00%

) Name (person or company) of the significant
Name (person o company) of the shareholder being represented or who has
Director :
proposed the appointment
JOHN MATTHEW DOWNING IMPERIAL BRANDS PLC
NICHOLAS JAMES KEVETH IMPERIAL BRANDS PLC
RICHARD GUY HATHAWAY IMPERTAL BRANDS PLC
DAVID IAN RESNEKOV IMPERIAL BRANDS PLC

Total number of external proprietary Directors

%, on total Board members

40.00%

EXTERNAL INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Name (person or company) of the Director Profile
GREGORIO MARANON Y BERTRAN DE LIS 1
CRISTINA GARMENDIA MENDIZABAL (2)
EDUARDO ZAPLANA HERNANDEZ-SORO 3)
STEPHANE LISSNER | (4




(1) GREGORIO MARANON Y BERTRAN DE LIS

Mr. Marafion is the Chairman of Compafifa de Distribucion Integral Logista Holdings S.A. He also
currently serves as Chairman of Roche Pharma; Chairman of Universal Music (Vivendi), Director
of Prisa and member of its Executive and Nominations and Remunerations Committees, and
member of the Advisory Board of Aguirre Newman. He is Chairman of the Board and the
Executive Committee of the Teatro Real opera house, and Vice-Chairman of the Ortega-Marafidn
Foundation. Mr. Marafién is also a member of the Madrid Bar Association. Before taking on these
roles, Mr. Marafién was a member of the Board of Argentaria and BBVA (1994-2004), Director of
Altadis (2004 — 4 June 2014), Director of VISCOFAN (2002- April 2014), General Manager at
Banco Urquijo (1976-1983) and President of BANIF (1983-1984). Mr. Maraiién received his
Bachelor of Laws in 1964 from Complutense University of Madrid, and his Master in Advanced
Management in 1979 from IESE Business School.

(2) CRISTINA GARMENDIA MENDIZABAL

Ms. Garmendia obtained a PhD in Biological Sciences, specialising in Genetics, from the Severo
Ochoa National Centre of Molecular Biology. She completed her studies with an MBA from the
JESE Business School of the University of Navarra. She was Minister of Science and Innovation in
the Spanish Government during the whole of its [Xth Legislature.

Before that appointment, she was chairperson of the biotechnology group Genetrix, which she
herself founded in the year 2000, and founding partner of the risk capital entity YSIOS, specialised
in human health. She was also chairperson of the Asociacion Espafiola de Bioempresas (ASEBIO)
(Spanish Association of Biocompanies) and a Board member of CEOE.

Since leaving the Government, she has resumed her responsibilities at YSIOS and GENETRIX.
She is chairperson at the Spanish/German biotechnology company SYGNIS and has founded the
Science & Innovation Link Office (SILO) and Satlantis Microsats.

She is chairperson at the Fundacién COTEC and a member of various advisory boards, such as the
International Advisory Committee for the Programme for Productive Transformation of the
Columbian Government, the Women for Africa Foundation, and university councils such as the
social councils of the Universitv of Seville and the European University of Madrid. She is also on
the Boards of several companies, including (as Natural Fenosa, Corporacién Financiera Alba and
Logista.

Her work and entrepreneurial vision have been recognized on several occasions with awards for
research and innovation in business.

(3) EDUARDO ZAPLANA HERNANDEZ-SORO

Mr. Zaplana is a Director of Compafifa de Distribucién Integral Logista Holdings S.A. He is
currently an Advisor to the President of Telefénica, S.A. Prior to his current roles, Mr. Zaplana
held various positions in the Spanish Public Administration, including Mayor of Benidorm
(Alicante) (1991-1994), Deputy in the Parliament of Valencia (1991-2002), ); Spokesman for the
Grupo Parlamentario Popular in the Parliament of Valencia (1991-1995), President of the
Generalitat of Valencia (1995-2002), First Deputy Chairman of the Committee of the Regions and
Speaker of the Delegation of the Committee of the Regions at the Convention on the Future of
Europe (2002-2003), Minister of Labor and Social Affairs of the Spanish government (2002-2004),
Senator for the Comunidad Valenciana (2002-2004), Govemnment Spokesman Minister (2003-
2004); Deputy for Valencia and Spokesman for the Grupo Parlamentario (2004-2008), as President
and founder of Decuria Consulting, S.L. (2008-2014) in strategic consulting, Mr. Zaplana received
his Bachelor of Laws in 1991 from the University of Alicante. He worked as a lawyer to 1991.
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(4) STEPHANE LISSNER

Mr. Lissner is a Director of Compafifa de Distribucion Integral Logista Holdings S.A. Currently, he
is the General Manager of the Opéra Nationale in Paris. Prior to his present role, he served as
Musical Director of the Wiener Fest Wochen in Vienna, General Manager and Artistic Director of
the Teatro alla Scala in Milan; Director of the Festival International d’Aix-en-Provence (1998-
2006); Co-Director of the Théatre des Bouffes du Nord with Peter Brook in Paris (1998-2005),
Director of the Teatro de la Opera de Madrid (1995-1996); General Director of the Orchestre de
Paris (1993-1995), Administrator (1983-1988) and General Manager (1988) of the Théatre du
Chatelet in Paris, Professor of Management of Cultural Institutions at the Université Paris-
Dauphine (1984), Director of the Printemps du Théstre (1984), Director of the Centre Dramatique
National in Nice (1978-1983); and Secretary General of the Théatre &’ Aubervillier (1977-1978).
Mr. Lissner received his baccalauréat in 1971, He was appointed an Officier de I’Ordre National du
Mérite, an Ufficiale Ordine al Merito of the Italian Republic, and a Chevalier de la Légion
d’Honneur.

Total number of independent directors

4

Total % of Board members 40,00%

Indicate whether any director considered as an independent director receives from the company or
from its group any amount or benefit on any grounds other than the remuneration for his/her
directorship, or maintains or has maintained over the last year, a business relationship with the
company or any company in its group, either in his/her own name or as a significant shareholder,
director or senior manager of an entity that maintains or has maintained any such relationships.

Where applicable, include a reasoned statement from the board with the reasons why it deems that
such director can perform his/her duties as an independent director.

Name of Director (person or

Description of the relationship Reasoned Statement
company)

N/A.

OTHER EXTERNAL DIRECTORS

Other external Directors will be identified and the reasons why they will not be considered
proprietary or independent will be listed, as well as their ties, whether with the company, its
officers or its shareholders:

Name of Director {person or Reasons Company, officer or sharehoider
cOmpany) with whom the Director has ties

N/A

Total number of other external Directors
. — N/A

Teatzl % of Board members

Indicate the variations that, where appropriate, have occurred during the period in the category of
each Director:

Name {person or company) of the

shareholder Variation date Previous Category Current Category

N/A
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C.1.4 Complete the following table with information about the number of female directors over the
last 4 years, as weil as the nature of their directorship

Number of % of total director
female directors of each type
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
year 2016 | year 2015 | year 2014 | year 2013 | year 2016 | year 2015 | year 2014 | year 2013
Execufive 1] 0 0 N/A 0% 0% 0% N/A
Proprietary 0 0 0} N/A 0% 0% 0% N/A
Independent 1 1 1] NA 10% 10% 10% ] N/A
Other external 0 0 0| N/A 0% 0% 0% | N/A
Total: 1 1 1 N/A 10.06% | 10.00% | 10.00% N/A

C.1.5 Explain the measures, if any, that have been taken to try to include on the Board of Directors
a number of female directors that would mean reaching a balanced presence of women and men.

Explanation of the measures

As stated in section k) of Article 18.2 of the Board of Directors Regulations, the Appointments and
Remuneration Committee shall ensure that selection processes are not implicitly biased in such a way that
female directors’ selection is prevented.

C.1.6 Expiain the measures, if any, taken by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee to
ensure that selection processes are free from any implied bias hindering the selection of female
directors and that the Company deliberately seeks and includes potential female candidates who
meet the professional profile sought:

Explanation of the measures

N/A

When despite any measures that might have been taken, the number of female directors is low or
zero, explain the reasons:

Explanation of the measures

N/A

C.1.6 bis Explain the conclusions of the Appointment and Remuneration Committee regarding
verification of complance with the Director selection policy. And, namely, explain how this policy
is fostering the goal by 2020 to have the number of female board members represent at least 30%
of the total number of members of the Board of Directors. N/A

C.1.7 Explain the form of representation in the Board, of shareholders with significant stakes:

Imperial Brands PLC is represented at the Board by four directors (Messrs. Downing, Hathaway,
Keveth and Resnekov), in accordance with the Framework Agreement of June 12, 2014, which
rules the relations between Imperial Brands and the Company.

All other shareholders with a significant stake in the Company are not represented at the Board.
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C.1.8 Describe, if applicable, the reasons why proprietary directors have been appointed at the
behest of shareholders whose stake is Jess than 5% in the share capital:

Name of the shareholder (person or company)

Reasons

N/A

State whether formal petitions for presence on the Board have been received from shareholders
whose stake is equal to or greater than that of others at whose proposal proprietary directors have
been appointed. If so, describe the reasons why such petitions have not been satisfied:

Yes No X

Name of the shareholder (persen or company)

Justification

N/A

C.1.9 State whether any director has

stood down before the expiry of histher term of office,

whether the director has given reasons to the Board and by through which channels, and in the
event that he/she gave reasons in writing to the full Board, describe at least the reasons given by the

director:

Name of the Director {person ¢r company)

Reason

for standing down

N/A

C.1.10 Indicate, in the event that there are any, the powers that have been delegated to the Chief

Executive Officer(s):

company}

Name of the CEO (person or

Brief Description

LUIS EGIDO GALVEZ

He has been delegated all the faculties of the Board of Directors that
can be delegated according fo the Law and the Bylaws, excluding
the facuities that, according to Article 38 of the Bylaws of the
Company, require the approval of the resolution by, at least, the 70%
of the members of the Board of Direciors

C.1.11 Identify, where appropriate, the members of the Board who hold the position of director or
officer in other companies that are part of the group of the listed company:

Name (person or company} Company name of the entity of the Position iDoes hefshe have
of the director Group executive functions?
LUIS EGIDO GALVEZ COMPANIA DE DISTRIBUCION CHAIRMAN YES
INTEGRAL LOGISTA SAU
LUIS EGIDO GALVEZ LOGISTA ITALIA Spa DIRECTOR YES
LUIS EGIDO GALVEZ BANCA ITB SpA DIRECTOR NO
RAFAEL DE JUAN LOPEZ COMPARIA DE DISTRIBUCION SECRETARY NO
INTEGRAL DE PUBLICACIONES DIRECTOR
LOGISTA SAU
RAFAEL DE JUAN LOPEZ COMPARIA DE DISTRIBUCION CHAIRMAN NO
INTEGRAL LOGISTA
PUBLICACIONES, $.L.U.
RAFAEL DE JUAN LOPEZ DRONAS 2002 SLU DIRECTCR NO
RAFAEL DE JUAN LOPEZ LOGISTA PHARMA DIRECTOR NO
RATFALL DE JUAN LOPEZ LOGISTA ITALIA SPA DIRECTOR NO
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C.1.12 List in detail, where appropriate, the directors of your company that are members of the
Boards of Directors of other companies that are listed on official stock markets in Spain that are not
part of the group, whose aforementioned membership has been communicated to the company:

Name of the director (person or company) Name of listed company Position
DON GREGOCRIO MARANON Y PROMOTORA DE INFORMACIONES, S.A. | DIRECTOR
BERTRAN DE LIS
DORA CRISTINA GARMENDIA CORPORACION FINANCIERA ALBA DIRECTOR
MENDIZABAL
DONA CRISTINA GARMENDIA GAS NATURAL SDG, S.A. DIRECTOR
MENDIZABAL
DONA CRISTINA GARMENDIA SYGNIS AG CHAIRWOMAN
MENDIZABAL

C.1.13 State and, if applicable, explain whether the Board of Directors” Regulation has established

rules regarding the number of boards on which its directors may sit:

Yes X No [

Explanation of the Rules

Group.

Persons involved in prohibition or legal incompatibility processes may not be appointed as Directors of the
Logista Group. Moreover, the Directors of the Company may become part at the same time, and with the
limitation provided by faw, of a maximum of nine boards of directors of listed companies other than the Logista

C.1.14 Section repealed

C.1.15 State the overall remuneration for the Board of Directors:

Remuneration of the Board of Directors (thousand euros)

respect to pensions (thousand euros)

3.842
Amount of overall remuneration corresponding to the rights accumulated by current Directors with 2.331
respect to pensions (thousand euros)
Amount of overall remuneration corresponding to the rights accumulated by former Directors with 0

C.1.16 Identify the senior managers who are not also Directors and indicate the total remuneration

accrued in their favour during the fiscal year:

Name (person or company}

Position

PASCAL AGERON GENERAL MANAGER - TOBACCO, TELECOMS &
STRATOR FRANCE

JAN BABST CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF INFORMATION SERVICES

LAURENT BENDAVID PRESIDENT GENERAL MANAGER — LOGISTA FRANCE

ANTONIO GARCIA VILLANUEVA

CORPORATE RESOURCES DIRECTOR.

MIGUEL GOMEZ PRADO CEO - LOGISTA PHARMA

RAFAEL MARTI FERNANDEZ CORPORATE HUMAN RESQURCES DIRECTOR

GLORIA MARTIN GIMENO INVESTORS RELATIONS AND STRATEGIC ANALYSIS
CORPORATE DIRECTOR

DAVID MARTINEZ FONTANO CEO - LOGISTA ITALIA
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rFRM\ECISCO PASTRANA PEREZ GENERAL MANAGER - TOBACCO AND CONVENIENCE
IBERIA
PABLO REBOLLO PERICOT PRESIDENT NACEX & GENERAL MANAGER INTEGRA 2
MANUEL SUAREZ NORIEGA CORPORATE FINANCE DIRECTCR
LAURA TEMPLADO MARTIN CORPORATE INTERNAL AUDIT DIRECTOR
Total remuneration senior managers (thousan.d euros) 5.160

C.1.17 Identify, if appropriate, the members of the Board who also sit on the Board of Directors of
companies of significant shareholders and/or in entities of their group:

; Name of the director {person or | ngp, (person or company} of the significant shareholder Position
company)
Downing, Jobn Matthew ATTENDFRIEND LIMITED Director
' BRITISH TOBACCO COMPANY LIMITED Director
IMPERIAL BRANDS ENTERPRISE FINANCE Director
LIMITED
IMPERIAL BRANDS FINANCE PLC Comparny
Secretary
IMPERIAL BRANDS PLC Company
Secretary
IMPERIAL TOBACCO ALTADIS LIMITED Director
IMPERIAL TOBACCO CAPITAL ASSETS (1) Director
IMPERIAL TOBACCO CAPITAL ASSETS (2) Director
IMPERIAL TOBACCO CAPITAL ASSETS (3) Director
IMPERIAL TOBACCO CAPITAL ASSETS (4) Director
IMPERIAL TOBACCO GROUP LIMITED Director
IMPERIAL TOBACCO HOLDINGS (1) Director
LIMITED
IMPERJIAL TOBACCO HOLDINGS (2007) Company
LIMITED Secretary
IMPERIAL TOBACCO HOLDINGS LIMITED Company
Secretary
IMPERIAL TOBACCO INITIATIVES Director
IMPERIAL TOBACCO IRELAND UNLIMITED Di
COMPANY rector
IMPERIAL TOBACCO LACROIX LIMITED Director
IMPERIAL TOBACCO LIMITED Company
Secretary
IMPERIAL TOBACCO MANAGEMENT (1) Director
LIMITED '
IMPERJAL TOBACCO MANAGEMENT (2) Director
LIMITED
IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS (POLSKA) Director
LIMITED
IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS Director
HOLDINGS (1) LIMITED
IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS .
HOLDINGS (2) LIMITED Director
IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS Company
HOLDINGS (3) LIMITED Secretary
IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS Director
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HOLDINGS LIMITED

IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS LIMITED Director
ITG BRANDS LIMITED Director
JOSEPH & HENRY WILSON LIMITED Director
NEWGLADE INTERNATIONAL UNLIMITED Direstor
COMPANY
PARK LANE TOBACCO COMPANY LIMITED Director
RIZLA UK LIMITED Director

Keveth, Nicholas James IMPERIAL BRANDS FINANCE PLC Director
IMPERIAL TOBACCO HOLDINGS (2007) Director
LIMITED
IMPERIAL TOBACCO HOLDINGS LIMITED Director
IMPERIAL TOBACCO LIMITED Director
IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS Director
HOLDINGS (3) LIMITED
IMPERIAL TOBACCO SOUTH AFRICA S.A. Vice President
ITG BRANDS LIMITED Director

Resnekov, David Ian ATTENDFRIEND LIMITED Director
BRITISH TOBACCO COMPANY LIMITED Director
CONGAR INTERNATIONAL UK LIMITED Director
IMPERIAL BRANDS ENTERPRISE FINANCE Director
LIMITED
IMPERIAL BRANDS FINANCE PLC Director
IMPERIAL TOBACCO ALTADIS LIMITED Director
IMPERIAL TOBACCO CAPITAL ASSETS (1) Director
IMPERIAL TOBACCO CAPITAL ASSETS (2) Director
IMPERIAL TOBACCO CAPITAL ASSETS (3) Director
IMPERIAL TOBACCO CAPITAL ASSETS (4) Director
IMPERIAL TOBACCO GROUP LIMITED Director
TMPERIAL TOBACCO HOLDINGS (1) Director
LIMITED |
IMPERIAL TOBACCO HOLDINGS (2007} Director
LIMITED
IMPERIAL TOBACCO HOLDINGS LIMITED Director
IMPERIAL TOBACCO INITIATIVES Director
[MPERIAL TOBACCO LACROIX LIMITED Director
IMPERIAL TOBACCQ LIMITED Director
IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS (POLSKA) Director
LIMITED
IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS Director
HOLDINGS (1) LIMITED
IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS Director
HOLDINGS (2) LIMITED
IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS Director
HOLDINGS (3) LIMITED
IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS Director
HOLDINGS LIMITED
IMPERIAL TOBACCO OVERSEAS LIMITED Director
IMPERIAL TOBACCO PENSION TRUSTEES Director
LIMITED
IMPERIAL TOBACCO SOUTH AFRICA S.A. Chairman
TTG BRANDS LIMITED Director

" JOSEPH & HENRY WILSON LIMITED

Director
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LA FLOR DE COPAN UK. LIMITED Director
PARK LANE TOBACCO COMPANY LIMITED Director
RIZLA UK LIMITED Director
TABACALERA DE GARCIA UK LIMITED Director

Detail, if appropriate, the relevant affiliations other than those considered in the above
paragraph that link Board members to significant shareholders and/or companies in their

group:

Name (person or company)
of the related Board
member

Name (person or company) of the related
significant shareholder

Description of the
relationship

John Matthew Downing

IMPERIAL BRANDS, PL.C

Company Secretary

Richard Guy Hathaway

IMPERIAL BRANDS, PLC

Director Of Finance
Strategic Initiatives

Nicholas James Keveth

IMPERIAL BRANDS, PLC

Director of Finance
and Planning
Department

David Ian Resnekov

IMPERIAL BRANDS, PLC

Financial Controlier

C.1.18 State whether the Regulations of the Board of Directors have been amended during the

fiscal year:

Yes X No [1

Description of the amendments

The Regulations of the Board of Directors were amended by resolution of the Board of Directors
meeting of January 26, 2016, basically to adapt them to the Recommendations of the new Good
Governance Code, of February 18, 2015, and also to the new content of Article 529 quaterdecies of the
Capita] Companies Act (Article that was amended by Law 22/2015, of 20 July, on Accounts Audit),

which refers to the composition and functions of the Audit and Control Committee.

C.1.19 Indicate the procedureé for the selection, appointment, re-election, assessment and removal
of directors. Give details of the authorised bodies, the procedures to follow and the criteria to be
used in each of the procedures:

Directors' Appointments

The appointment, ratification, re-election and removal of Directors correspond to the General
Meeting, without prejudice to the authority of the Board of Directors to make appointments by co-
option.

If during the term for which a Director was elected that Director ceases to be a Director of the
Company, for any reason, the Board of Directors, to fill the vacancy, may appoint a Director by co-
option.

The co-option will be governed by the provisions of law, with the Director appointed by the Board
not necessarily being required to be a shareholder of the Company.

The appointment of Directors by the system of co-option in accordance with the provisions of law
will be effective until the first following General Meeting, which must ratify the appointment or
designate the person that thereafter is to fill the position, or until the holding of the next following
General Meeting, if the vacancy occurs after the call of the General Meeting, and before it is held.
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Proposal of appointment or re-election of Directors corresponds to the Appointments and
Remuneration Committee, in the case of independent Directors, and to the Board of Directors
itself, in other cases.

A proposal of appointment, re-election or removal of any non-independent Director in addition
must be preceded by a report of the Appointments and Remuneration Committee.

The proposal in any event must attach a justifying report of the Board of Directors, which evaluates
the competence, experience and merits of the proposed candidate, which will be attached to the
minutes of the General Meeting or of the Board of Directors itself.

The provisions of this section also are applicable to individuals who are appointed as
representatives of a Director that is a legal person. The proposal of the individual representative
must be submitted to a report of the Appointments and Remuneration Commi(tee.

The Board Regulations state the following competencies (among others) for the Appointments and
Remunerations Committee (Articles 18.2 a), ¢} and d) of the Regulations):

e Evaluating the skills, knowledge and experience required on the Board. For these purposes,
it will define the functions and skills required of candidates that are to fill each vacancy
and will evaluate the time and dedication necessary for them to be able to effectively
perform their duties.

e Making proposals to the Board of Directors of independent Directors to be appointed by
co-option or for submission to decision by the General Shareholders Meeting, and
proposals for re-election or removal of those Directors by the Meeting.

o Inform about the appointment, ratification, reappointment and removal of non-independent
Directors, as well as the appointment and removal of the Managing Director/s and of the
members of the Executive Committee, and the permanent delegation of its relevant
faculties to them,

Eligibility. Incompatibilities.

The Board of Directors and the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, within the scope of
their competencies, shall endeavour to ensure that the candidates are selected from among persons
of recognised solvency, competence and experience, and that have the necessary availability for the
proper performance of their duties as Directors, and shall be particularly rigorous in choosing the
persons to cover the posts of Independent Directors.

In the case a Director is a legal entity, the requirements indicated will also be applicable to the
individual representing the organisation, and, in addition, the Director duties set out in these
Regulations will also be enforceable on a personal level.

Persons involved in prohibition or Jegal incompatibility processes may not be appointed as
Directors of the Company. Moreover, the Directors of the Company may become part at the same
time, and with the limitation provided by Law, of a maximum of nine boards of directors of listed
companies other than the Company (Article 23 of the Board of Directors” Regulations)

Re-election of Directors

The proposals for re-election of Directors that the Board of Directors decides to present to the
General Meeting of Shareholders shall be subject to a formal procedure, which must necessarily
include a report issued by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee in which the quality of
work and dedication to the post of the proposed Directors during the preceding term of office is
evaluated.
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The Board of Directors shall endeavour to ensure that the External Directors who are re-elected do
not always remain assigned to the same Committee {Article 24 of the Board of Directors’
Regulations).

Term of office

Directors shall occupy their post during the perjod established in the By-Laws, which shall in no
case exceed four years, and may be re-elected.

Directors appointed by the Board of Directors by co-opting to fill a vacancy pursuant to these
Regulations shall occupy their posts until the date of the next General Meeting of Shareholders,

unless their appointment is ratified by such General Meeting of Shareholders (Article 25 of the
Board of Directors” Regulations).

Board Assessment

The Board of Directors will dedicate at least one meeting a year to assessing its operation and the
quality of work performed by Committees.

Debates and Voiing

In accordance with the provisions in article 27 of the Board Regulations, Directors concerned with
any appointment, re-election or removal proposals will not intervene in debates and voting on those
matters.

C.1.20 Explain to what degree the annual evaluation of the Board has led to significant changes in
its internal organization and the procedares applicable to its activities:

Description of the changes

On October 25th, 2016, the Company’s Board of Directors approved an Action Plan for the
Improvemenf of its functioning and that of its Audit and Control and Appointment and
Remuneration Committees, as well as for the performance of the Chairman, the CEO and the
Secretary of the Board, to be developed in the next financial year.

C.1.20 bis Describe the assessment process and the assessed areas conducted by the Board of
Directors assisted, as the case may be, by an external consultant, regarding the diversity in its
composition and capacities, duties and composition of its committees, the performance of the chair
of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive of the company, and the performance and
contribution of each board member.
The Company, with the assessment of assessment KPMG Asesores, S.L, has evaluated:
1. The Board of Directors of the Company, in the followings aspects:
s (General questions
o  Meetings of the Board
e Functions and Responsibilities
¢ Overall valuation
2. The Audit and Control Committee, in the following aspects:
+ Composition
o General questions

s Meetings
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e Functions and Responsibilities
3. The Appointment and Remuneration Committee, in the following aspects:
e Composition
e General questions
¢+ Meetings
¢ Functions and Responsibilities
4 - The Chairman of the Board (Performance)
5.- The CEO (Performance)
6.- The Secretary of the Board (Performance)

C.1.20 ter Break down, where appropriate, the business relationship that the consultant or any
company of its group maintains with the company or any company of its group.

KPMG-LOGISTA SAU: Litigation: 9.350 €
KPMG-LOGISTA SAU: SCIIF Training: 2.500 €
KPMG-LOGISTA HOLDINGS: Self-assessment of the Board of Directors: 20.000 €

C.1.21 Indicate the circumstances under which directors must resign:

In accordance with the provisions of Article 26 of the Board Regulations, Directors shall leave their
posts when the term for which they were appointed ends and when is so decided at the General
Meeting of Shareholders, or when the Board of Directors requests it according to circumstances
detailed below, in the use of the attributes accorded them by Law or by the By-Laws.

Directors must place their post at the disposal of the Board of Directors and formally resign as a
Director, if the Board of Directors considers it appropriate based on the following counts:

a) When they are removed from the executive posts to which their appointment as Directors was
associated;

b) When they are involved in any of the scenarios of incompatibility or prohibition envisaged by
the Law;

¢) When Directors have performed acts that are contrary to the diligence with which they are
obliged to perform their duties, infringed their duties and obligations as Directors;

d) When their presence on the Board could jeopardise the interests of the Company or cause serious
damage to the Company’s good name.

e) When, having been appointed on the proposal of a significant shareholder, the latier notifies the
Company, at any time, of the decision of the shareholder not to reappoint him at the end of his
term, or when the significant shareholder transfers, all its shareholding in the Company.

C.1.22 Section repealed
C.1.23 Are enhanced majorities, other than the legal majorities, required for any type of decision?

Yes X No

Where applicable, explain the differences.

r Description of the differences
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According to the provisions of Article 38 of the Company By-Laws, the Board shall approve
resolutions by absolute majority of the Directors attending the meeting, either in person or via
proxy. Notwithstanding the above, the adoption of any resolutions related to any of the matters set
out below will require the positive vote of at least 70% of the Directors, as rounded up in case that
the application of that percentage does not result in a whole number of Directors, that form part of
the Board of Directors and will not be delegated:

a) any increase or reduction in the share capital of the Company in accordance with article 7 of
these By-laws, or the issuance by the Company of any bonds or securities pursuant to Title IIT of
these By-laws.

b) the approval of an annual plan in relation to the capital expenditure, investments and other
funding commitments to be carried out by the Company in the following year (the “Annual
Capex Plan”);

¢) the acquisition of all or part of any business of any third party whether by way of the purchase
(whether direct or indirect) of shares, assets or other like interests of any third party (including
by way of merger or business combination) by the Company or any member of its Group;

d) the disposal of all or part of any business to any third party whether by way of the disposal
(whether direct or indirect) of shares, assets or other like interests (including by way of merger
or business combination) by the Company or any member of its Group;

¢) any decision of the Company to enter into any partnership or joint venture or any other
arrangement to share or distribute profits or assets;

f) any decision of the Company to incur or agree t0 incur, whether directly or indirectly, any
capital expenditure, investment or other funding commitment in respect of any matter in excess
of €1,000,000 in aggregate save to the extent that such capital expenditure, investment or other
funding commitment (including the amount of such capital expenditure, investment or other
funding commitment) is set out in the Annual Capex Plan for that period that has been approved
in accordance with section (b) above;

g) any decision of the Company to amend the terms of its borrowing or indebtedness in the nature
of borrowing or grant guarantees, of to create or incur borrowing or indebtedness in the nature
of new borrowing

h) the creation of any mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, assignment of any of such securities,
hypothecation or other security interest in relation to the Company, other than a security interest
created by operation of law as a result of the ordinary course of business of the Company; and

iy any decision to delegate any powers of the Board of Directors to a Managing Director, or to
delegate any powers of the Board to any Committee of the Board.

For the purposes of counting the majority of members of the Board of Directors for the adoption of
the abovementioned resolutions, the members of the Board that may be under a conflict of interest
and that shall abstain from voting, shall be discounted from the total number of members of the
Board on which shall be calculated said majority.

C.1.24 Explain whether there are any specific requirements other than those relating to the
Directors, in order to be appointed Chairman of the Board of Directors:

Yes [l No X
€.1.25 Indicate if the chairman has a casting vote:
Yes No X

C.1.26 Indicate if the Articles of Association or the Board of Directors® regulations establish any
age limits for the directors:

Yes OJ No X
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C.1.27 Indicate if the Articles of Association or the Board’s Regulations establish a limited term of
office for independent Directors, other than those established by law:

Yes O No X

C.1.28. State whether the Articles of Association or the Board of Directors® Regulations establish
specific rules for proxy voting in the Board of Directors, the way this must be done and, namely,
the maximum number of proxies a director may hold and whether it has established any limit
regarding the classes that may be delegated beyond the limits stipulated by legislation. If so, briefly
describe such rules.

The Directors must attend Board meetings and, when they cannot do so in person, they shall
arrange for their representation and vote to be granted in favour of another Board member,
including appropriate instructions. The delegation may be made by letter, fax, telegram, e-mail, or
by any other valid means acknowledged in writing. Non-executive Directors may do so only to
another non-executive Director.

C.1.29. State the number of meetings that the Board of Directors has held during the financial year.
Likewise, state, where appropriate, the times that the Board has met without its Chairman being
present. Proxies granted with specific instructions shall be counted as attendance.

Number of Board meetings 11

Number of Board mesetings without the presence of the Chairman 0

If the Chairman is an executive director, state the number of meetings beld without an executive
director being present or represented and chaired by the Lead Independent Director

Number of Board meetings N/A

State the number of meetings held over the financial year by the different Committees of the Board:

] Number of
Committee .
meetings
AUDIT AND CONTROL COMMITTEE 7
APPOINTMENTS AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 5

C.1.30 Indicate the number of mestings held by the Board of Directors during the fiscal year
attended by all its members. In calculating this number, proxies granted with specific instructions
will be counted as attendances:

Number of meetings attended by all Directors 1l

o of attendance over the total votes during the present year 100%

C.1.21 Indicate if the individual and consolidated annual accounts that are presented for approval to
the board are previously certified:

Yes [ No X
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Identify, if pertinent, the person or persons certifying the individual and comsolidated annual
accounts of the company for their formulation by the Board:

Name Positien

N/A

C.1.32. Explain, where appropriate, the mechanisms established by the Board of Directors to
prevent the individual and consolidated accounts being presented to the Annual General Meeting
with qualifications in the auditors’ report.

In accordance with the provisions of Article 46.4 of the Board of Directors’ Regulations, the Audit
and Control Committee shall supervise that Board of Directors can present the Company’s
accounts to the General Meeting without limitations or qualifications in the auditor’s report In the
exceptional case that qualifications exist, both the Chairman of the Audit and Control Committee
and the auditors should give a clear account to shareholders of their scope and content.

C.1.33. Is the Secretary of the Board of Directors a director?
Yes X No £l
C.1.34 Section repealed.

C.1.35. State, where appropriate, the specific mechanisms established by the Company to preserve
the independence of the auditor, the financial analysts, investment banks and credit rating agencies.

Relations of the Board with external auditors will take place via the Audit and Control Committee.

The Board of Directors shall refrain from hiring those audit firms whose projected fees including
all items exceed five per cent of its total revenues during the previous financial year.

The Board of Directors shall make public the total fees paid to the audit firm for services other than
auditing.

In addition, the Audit and Control Comumittee has among its competencies, the following:

_  Establish appropriate relationships with external auditors or andit firms to gather information
on those matters which may threaten his/her independence for examination by the Committes,
and any other matters relative to the development of Account auditing, and when appropriate,
authorise services other than those prohibited under the conditions provided in the relevant
regulations regarding the independence of auditors, as well as any other communications
schedules in Account auditing Jegislation and Auditing technical regulations. In any event, it
must receive from the external auditors or audit firms a written declaration on an annual basis
of their independence against the Logista Group or entities directly or indirectly related
thereto, as well as detailed information on an individual basis about additional services of any
kind provided to and the corresponding fees received from such entities by such auditors or
persons or entities related thereto, pursuant to the Laws on auditing accounts, The Committee
shall ensure that the Company and the external auditor adhere to current regulations on the
provision of non-audit services, limits on the concentration of the auditor’s business and other
requirements concerning auditor independence.

In this regard, the Committee shall ensure that the remuneration of the external auditor does
not compromise its quality or independence.

- On an annual basis, prior to the audit report, issue a report containing an opinion on the
independence of the auditors and on whether the independence of auditors and audit firms has
been compromised. This repost, which shall be published in the Logista Group website weli in
advance of the Annual General Meeting, in any event must cover a detailed evaluation of the
provision of each and every additional service referred to in the preceding section, taken
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individually and as a whole, other than the legal audit, as regards independence of the auditors
and regulations governing account audit activities.

Tn accordance with the Company’s Policy of Information and Communications with Shareholders,
Securities Markets and Public Opinion, meetings with analysts, investors and communication
media should be planned in advance, so that, in no case, any information which could place them in
a privileged or advantageous situation is delivered to them.

C.1.36 Indicate whether during the fiscal year the Company has changed its external auditors.
Identify, where appropriate, the external auditor and the outgoing one:

Yes L No X

C.1.37 Indicate if the audit firm carries out work for the company and/or its group other than that of
auditing and, in such case, declare the amount of the fees received for said work and the percentage
that it represents of the fees charged to the company and/or its group:

Yes X No [
Company Group Total
Amount of work other than auditing (thousand euros) 88 297 385
Amo.:)u nt of‘fvo:k other than that of auditing / total amount charged by the 39,68% 22.80% 25.26%
aundit firm (in %)

C.1.38 State whether the audit report on the Annual Accounts for the prior fiscal year has
observations or qualifications. If so, state the reasons given by the Chairman of the Audit and
Control Committee to explain the content and scope of such observations or qualifications:

Yes [1 No X

C.1.39 Indicate the number of consecutive fiscal years that the current audit firm has been auditing
the annual accounts of the company and/or its group. Likewise, indicate the percentage that
represents the number of years audited by the current audit firm over the number of years in which
the annual accounts have been audited:

TO BE CONFIRMED

Company

Group
Number of consecutive years 3 17
Number of years audited by the present audit firm / Number of vears 100% 100%
that the company has been audited (%)

C.1.40 Indicate and where appropriate give details whether there is any procedure for directors to
get external advice:

Yes X No [l

Details of the procedure

In order to be assisted in performing their duties, External Directors may request that the
Company hires the services of legal advisors, accountants, financial experts or others.

This commission must necessarily refer to specific problems of a certain significance and
complexity which arise in the performance of their duties.
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The decision to hire such experts must be reported to the Company’s Chairman and may be
rejected by the Board of Directors if there is evidence of the following:

a) it is not necessary for the correct performance of the duties commissioned to the External
Directors;

b) its cost is not reasonable in relation to the significance of the problem and the Company’s
assets and revenues,

¢) the technical assistance which is sought may be adequately provided by the Company’s
own experts and technical professionals; or

d) there is a risk for preserving the confidentiality of the information that must be given to
the expert. (Article 29 of the Board Regulations).

Also, in accordance with the provisions of articles 17.5 and 18.5 of the Board Regulations,
the Audit and Control Committee and the Appointments and Remuneration Committee may
obtain external professional advice.

C.1.41 Indicate and, where appropriate, give details if there is a procedure to enable the directors to
have the necessary information to prepare the meetings of the administrative bodies in a timely
manner:

Yes X No &

Details of the procedure

Summoning of ordinary sessions will be performed by letter, fax, telegram or e-mail, or by
any other means veioch provides evidence, and this nofification will be authorised with the
signature of the Chairman, or the person substituting the Chairman, or the signatures of the
Secretary or Depuiy - Secretary following the Chairman’s orders. The call will be effectuated
with a minimum notice of two days.

Except for justified cause. the call will include an agenda for the meeting and will be
accompanied by a summary of all the necessary information relevant to deliberation and
adoption of resolutions regarding the matters to be considered.

Absent just cause, the call will include the agenda for the meeting and will attach a summary
of the necessary information relevant to deliberation and adoption of resolutions regarding the
matters to be considered, clearly indicating on which points Directors must arrive at a
decision, so they can study the matter beforehand or gather together the material they need.

In the event that, for reasons of urgency, the Chairman may wish to present decisions or
resolutions for Board approval that were not on the meeting agenda, their inclusion will
require the express prior consent, duly minuted, of the majority of Directors present.

Furthermore, Article 33 of the Board Regulations sets as one of the obligations of the
Director, to gather information and prepare suitably for Board meetings as well as meetings
of the delegated bodies or Committees he is a member of.

Finally, and according to Article 28 of the Board Regulations, Directors have the duty to
demand and the right to receive from the Company such appropriate and necessary
information allowing them to fulfil their obligations. This right to information is extensible to
all the companies of the Company Group, whether these are national or foreign.

With the aim of not disturbing the ordinary management of the Company, the exercise of
information duties will be channelled through the Chairman, Managing Director or the
Secretary of the Board of Directors, who will assist the Director’s request providing the
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information directly, facilitating contacts with the relevant department in the organisation or
deciding on the measures so that examination tasks may be performed in situ.

C.1.42 Indicate and, where applicable give details, whether the Company has established any rules
requiring Directors to inform —and, if applicable, resign— under circumstances that may undermine
the credit and reputation of the Company:

Yes X No [

Explain the rules

In accordance with article 26.2 of the Board Regulations, Directors must place their post at
the disposal of the Board of Directors and formally resign as a Director, if the Board of
Directors considers it appropriate based on the following counts:

a) When they are removed from the executive posts to which their appointment as Directors
was associated;

b) When they are involved in any of the scenarios of incompatibility or prohibition envisaged
by the Law,

¢) When Directors have performed acts that are confrary to the diligence with which they are
obliged to perform their duties, infringed their duties and obligations as Directors;

d) When their presence on the Board could jeopardise the interests of the Company or cause
serious damage to its credibility and reputation. In particular, Directors should inform the
Board of any criminal charges brought against them and the progress of any subsequent
trial;

) The moment a Director is indicted or tried for any of the offences stated in Company
legislation, the Board of Directors should open an jnvestigation and, in light of the
particular circumstances, decide whether or not he or she should be called on to resign.
The Board should give a reasoned account of all such determinations in the Annual
Corporate Governance Report.

f) When, having been appointed on the proposal of a significant shareholder, the latter
notifies the Company, at any time, of the decision of the shareholder not to reappoint him
at the end of his term, or when the significant shareholder transfers, all its shareholding in
the Company.

C.1.43 State whether any member of the Board of Directors has informed the Company that he has
been prosecuted or that an order for the commencement of an oral trial has been issued against
him/her for any offences covered in Section 213 of the Act on Capital Companies:

Yes [ NoX

C.1.44 Detail significant agreements reached by the company that come into force, are amended or
terminated in the event of a change in control of the company stemming from a public takeover bid,
and its effects.

The Company has not reached any agreement that may come into force in the event of a change in
control of the Company from a public takeover bid.

C.1.45 Identify in aggregate terms and indicate in detail any agreement between the company and
its directors, manager or employees which include any indemnity, severance or golden parachute
clauses, for cases of resignation or wrongful dismissal or if the contractual relationship comes to an
end as a result of a public takeover bid or other kinds of transactions.
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Number of beneficiaries 14

Type of beneficiaries Description of the resolution

CERTAIN SENIOR MANAGERS « Compensation in the case of wrongful
dismissal (11 agreements). The

compensation. to pay, depending on the
case, will be of 3 months’ salary, or of T or
2 vyears of fix and variable salary, unless
the legal compensation is higher.

+ Compensation for post-contractual non-
compete clause (14 agreements). 6 or 12
months of fix and variable salary.

« Compensation in case of change of control
(4 agreements): minimum of 24 months of
fix and variable salary.

All these agreements, excepling one, were
executed before the admission to listing of the
Company’s shares.

Indicate whether these contracts have to be notified and/or approved by the company’s bodies or
those of its group:

Shareholders

Beard of Directors General Meeting

Pecision-making body approving the provisions YES
YES NO
Is information about these clauses provided to the ——— X

General Meeting of Shareholders?

C.2 Committees of the Board of Directors

C2.1 Give details of all the committees of the Board of Directors, their members and the
proportion of proprietary and independent directors in such committees:

AUDIT AND CONTROL COMMITTEE

Name Office Category
Cristina Garmendia Mendizabal Chairwoman Independent
Gregorio Marafién y Bertran de Lis Member Independent
Eduardo Zaplana Hernéandez-Soro Member Independent
David lan Resnekov Member Proprietary
% of proprietary directors 25.00%
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% of independent director 75.00%

Explain the committee's duties, describe the procedure and organizational and operational rules and
summarize the main actions taken during the year.

The Audit and Control Committee has the following competencies:

a)
b)
c)

d)

g)

h)

i)
K)

1)

P)
q)

1)

Inform the General Meeting of Shareholders on the matters raised by the shareholders
relating to the matters under its competence.

Refer to the Board of Directors the proposals for selection, appointment, re-election and
replacement of the outside auditor, as well as the conditions of the engagement thereof

Supervising internal audit services and activities and, in particular, the Annual Working
Plan.

Supervising the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company, associated
with relevant Company’s risks,

Establish and supervise a procedure which allows employees from the Company group to
confidentially report irregularities.

Establish appropriate relationships with external auditors or audit firms to gather information
on those matters which may put their independence at risk.

On an annual basis, prior to the audit report, issue a.report on the independence of the
auditors.

Ensure that the Company notifies any change of external auditor to the CNMV as a material
event, accompanied by a statement of any disagreements arising with the outgoing auditor
and the reasons for the same.

Investigate the issues giving rise to the resignation of the external auditor, should this come
about.

Ensure that the external auditor has a yearly meeting with the Board plenary to inform it of
the work undertaken and developments in the Company’s risk and accounting positions.

Inform the Board of Directors of the Company’s Annual Financial Statements, as well as the
regulated financial information.

Monitor compliance with legal requirements and proper application of generally accepted
accounting principles, and report on proposals for modification of accounting criteria and
prineiples suggested by Management, and on and off balance sheet risks

Supervise the preparation, integrity and fair presentation of the regulated financial
information.

Report to the Board of Directors transactions in special-purpose entities, or in entities
domiciled in territories treated as tax havens, and any conflicts of interest

Examining and previously reporting on the Corporate Governance Annual Report, on the
compliance with the Internal Code of Conduct on Securities Market and with the Board
Regulations and, in general, with the Company’s governance rules, as well as putting
forward proposals for its improvement.

Supervise compliance with the Corporate Social Responsibility policy of the Company.

Drafting an Annual Report for the Board of Directors describing the activities of the Audit
and Control Committee.

Any other reporting and proposal functions it is tasked with by the Board of Directors.

Any other competence or function under the law, the By-Laws or the Regulations of the
Board.
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The Audit and Conirol Committee shall meet as periodically as determined, whenever called by its
Chairman or requested by two of its members, and in any event at least four fimes per year.

Main activities of the Audit and Control Commiitee during financial vear 2016;

e Information and Supervision of the Periodic Financial Information that the Company
submits to the National Stock Market Commission (*CNMV™) and to the markets.

o Information and submission to the Board for its approval of the Board Regulations, the
Internal Regulations for Conduct in the Securities Markets, the Risk Management Policy,
the Corporate Governance Policy, the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy, the
Whistleblowing Policy and other internal regulations.

s Appointment of the Internal Audit Manager.

e Approval and monitoring of the Internal Audit Plan 2015-2016

e« Appointment proposal and determination of the fees of the External Auditors.
o Update of the Risk Map of the Group

o Monitoring of the internal control activities of the Group

e Corporate Governance Annual Report for the financial year 2014-2015

e Report on the Auditor independence

» Self-evaluation of its functions and composition.

Identify the Director sitting on the Audit Committee who has been appointed on the basis of
knowledge and experience of accounting or auditing, or both and state the number of years the
Chair has been in office.

Name of the Director with experience David lan Resnekov

Number of vears of the Cha

irmau in such position 1

APPOINTMENTS AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Name Office Category

Gregorio Marafion y Bertran de Lis Chairman Independent
%duardo Zaplana Hernéndez-Soro Member Independent

Stéphane Lissner Member Independent

John Matthew Downing Member Proprietary
s of proprictary directors ) T lasoow
_;/o of ir;dependent difectors 75.00% B

Explain the commitiee's duties, describe the procedure and organizational and operational
rules and summarize the main actions taken during the year.

The Appointments and Remuneration Committee has the following competencies:

29



a) Assessing the necessary competencies, knowledge and experience on the Board of Directors.

b) Establishing a goal for under-represented sex on the Board of Directors, and developing
guidance on how to achieve that goal.

¢) Propose the appointment, ratification, reappointment and removal of Independent Directors,
and report the appointment, ratification, reappointment and removal of the other Directors, as
well as the appointment and removal of the CEQ, and the permanent delegation of the Board
relevant faculties.

d) Inform about the proposals for the appointment and removals of the Chairman, Vice-
Chairman, Secretary and Deputy-Secretary of the Board of Directors.

e) Examining or organising, in the manner desmed suitable, succession of the Chairman and the
first executive,

f) Reporting appointments and removals of Senior Managers which the first executive proposes
to the Board of Directors.

g) Proposing the following to the Board of Directors for its approval: '
i) Compensation policies for Directors and senior management.
ii) The Annual Report on Remuneration of Directors

iii) Individual compensation for Executive Directors and any other conditions pertaining to
their contracts.

iv) The basic conditions in the contracts of Senior Managers.
h) Ensuring compliance with the Company’s remuneration policies.

i} FEnsuring that selection processes are not implicitly biased in such a way that selecting female
Directors is prevented.

i) Verifying compliance with the Directors' selection policy.
k) Any other competence or duty conferred by the Law, the By-Laws or Board Regulations.

The Appointments and Remuneration Committee will meet every time it is called by its Chairman
or two of its members request, and when the Board of Directors or its Chairman request the
issuance of a report or the adoption of agreements.

The Appointments and Remuneration Committee adopts decisions or make recommendations by
voting majority of the total number of its members.

Main activities of the Appointments and Remuneration Committee during financial vear 2016:

s Proposal to the Board of the Annual Report on Directors’ Remuneration 2014-2015.

o Evaluation of the degree of achievement of the Group’s Business Objectives 2014-2015
(Bonus).

e Evaluation of the Variable Remuneration of the Executive Directors (2014-2015).
o Setting of the Fixed Remuneration of Executive Directors for 2016.
¢ Report on the functions and activities of the Appointments and Remuneration Committee,

e Report on the ratification by the General Shareholders’ Meeting of the appointment by co-
option of Mr, Richard Guy Hathaway as a Proprietary Director.

o Proposal to the Board of settlement of the Second Consolidation Period of LOGISTA,
SAU 2011 Plan {(General Plan and Special Plan).

o Proposal of Beneficiaries and Number of Shares granted, in the General and Special Plans
for Performance Shares 2014/Second Consolidation Period.

» Report on the compensation schemes for Directors.

e Self-evaluation of the Company and functions.
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o Proposal to the Board of its performance self.evaluation, as well as that of its President,
CEO and Secretary Director.

C.2.2 Complete the following table with information on the number of female directors sitting on
Board Committees over the last four years:

Number of female Directors

2016 2015 | 2014 2013

Number % Number & Yo Number % Number A

AUDIT AND CONTROL 1 25.00% 1 25.00% 1 25.00% 0 0.00
COMMITTEE 9%

C.2.3 Section repealed
C.2.4 Section repealed

C.2.5. State, where appropriate, the existence of rules for the Board’s Committees, the ptace where
they are available for consultation and any modifications introduced during the year. In turn, please
State if an annual report has voluntarily been prepared on the activities of each Committee.

The By-Laws of the Company (Articles 41 to 43 bis) and the Board of Directors’ Regulations
{Articles 15 1o 18) contain the rules governing the Board Committees.

On January 26, 2016, the Board of Directors modified certain articles of the Board Regulations,
and approved a Consolidated Text, to adapt them to the Recommendations of the new Good
Governance Code, and to the modification of the Capital Companies Act, by the Law of Account
Audit of 20 June 2015, especially with regard to the Audit and Control Committee competencies.

Reports about the activities carried out by the Audit and Control Committee and by the
Appointments and Remuneration Committee during the present financial year have been prepared
and are available in the corporate web page of the Company (www.grupologista.com).

C.2.6. Section repealed

D RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND INTRA-GROUP TRANSACTIONS

D.1 Explain the procedure, if any, to approve related- party and intra-group transactions:

Procedure to approve related-party transactions.

Article 39 of the Board of Directors’ Regulations state that the Board formally reserves the
knowledge and authorization, previous report of the Audit and Control Committee, of Related-
Party Transactions (Transactions of the Company with Directors or with significant shareholders),
except for such matters that are legally within the competence of the General Meeting. To
authorise, if appropriate, the Related-Party Transactions, the Board of Directors first and foremost
shall serve the interests of the Company, evaluating the transaction from the standpoint of equitable
treatment of shareholders and market conditions.

No authorisation of the Board of Directors shall be required in connection with Related-Party
Transactions that simultaneously satisfy the following three conditions:

(i) that they are conducted under contracts whose terms and conditions are standardised and apply
on an across-the-board basis fo many Customers;

3t



(ii) that they are conducted at prices or rates established generally by the party acting as supplier of
the goods or services in question; (iii} that the amount thereof does not exceed one per cent of
the Company’s annual revenues,

Tn the case of ordinary transactions that are not subject to the Board’s authorisation, a general
authorisation of the line of operations and its execution conditions shall be sufficient.

The Directors affected by the related-party transaction, either personally, or to the shareholders
whom they represent in the Board, in addition to not intervene in the decision or exercise or
delegate their right to vote, they will be absent from the meeting room, while the Board deliberates
and votes on the related-party transaction.

The Company shall report on the mentioned related-party transaction mentioned, in the Annual
Report on Corporate Governance, in the regulated financial information, and in the notes to the
Financial Statements, to the extent by Law.

Likewise, Article 34 of the Board Regulations states that Directors shall report to the Board of
Directors any situations involving a direct or indirect conflict, either personally or through persons
linked to him, with the interests of the Company or the companies in its Group.

Also, the Framework Agreement dated 12 June 2014, signed between the Company and Imperial
Brands (formerly named Imperial Tobacco Group) establishes that all Related-Party Transactions
and, in general, any transaction that may pose a conflict of interest affecting the Group and the IB
Group should be arranged under market conditions that, according to the circumstances, would
have been reasonably stipulated by two independent operators and in accordance with the principle
of equal treatment of shareholders and the principle of neutrality established in that same
Framework Agreement.

D.2 Give details of any significant transactions on account of the amount involved or relevant on
account of their nature, carried out between the company, or entities of its group, and the
significant shareholders of the Company:

Name of the significant | Name of the company or entity Nature of the | Type of Transaction | Amount
sharcholder (person or | of Hs group (person or reiationship (thousand
company) company} euros)
ALTADIS SAU COMPANIA DE | Commercial | Purchase of 377,274
DISTRIBUCION finished
INTEGRAL LOGISTA, S.A.U. 15 or  mot
finished goods
ALTADIS SAU LOGISTA-DIS, S.A. Commercial Purchase of 6,642
finished or not
finished goods
ALTADIS SAU COMPANIA DE | Commercial | Sales of services 4,853
DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL
LOGISTA, S.AUL
IMPERIAL TOBACCO | COMPANIA DE | Contractual Paid interests 12,392
GROUP PLC DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL
LOGISTA, 5.AUL

D.3 Give details of any significant transactions on account of the amount involved or relevant on
account of their nature, carried out between the company, or entities of its group, and the directors
or officers of the Company:

N/A

D.4 Give details of the significant transactions carried out with other companies belonging to the
same group, provided that these are not eliminated in the process of preparing the consolidated
financial statements and do not form part of the ordinary business of the company as regards its
object and conditions.
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In any event, provide information on any intra-group transaction with companies established in

countries or territories considered tax havens
N/A

D.5 State the amount of the transactions carried out with other related parties.
613,877 (thousand euros)

D.6 Give details of the mechanisms established to detect, determine and resolve any potential
conflicts of interest between the Company and/or its group and its directors, officers or significant
shareholders.

Article 34 of the Board Regulations rules the conflict of interest that may affect Directors and their
related parties, requiring both of them to (i) report to the Board of Directors any situation involving
a direct or indirect conflict, either personally or through persons linked to them, with the
Company’s interests and (ii) refrain from intervening in the agreements or decisions relating to the
transaction to which the conflict of interests refers.

Related persons are the persons described in article 231 of the Spanish Companies Act (“Ley de
Sociedades de Capital”).

The Director should report any stakes held directly or indirectly and personally or by related
persons in the share capital of a company with the same, similar or complementary activity that
constitutes the corporate purpose, as well as positions or functions they discharge, as well as
performing either personally or for another party simifar or complementary activities, to the ones
which constitutes the social purpose of the Company.

Directors should abstain in engaging in professional or commercial transactions with the Company
unless the situation of conflict of interests is reported previously and the Board, subject to a report
from the Audit and Control Committee, approves the transaction. :

Furthermore, Section 7 of the Company Internal Regulations for Conduct establishes the conduct
regulations regarding conflicts of interest. In particular, the Company Internal Regulations for
Conduct establishes the general principles of independence, abstention -and confidentiality that
persons subject to it must observe. These Regulations also state the procedure that persons subject
to them must follow to previously report any situation of conflict of interest. These transactions
must be previously authorised by the Company Board of Directors, in case of conflict of interests
affecting Directors and Senior Management of the Company, and by the Company CEO, in all
other cases.

Also, the Framework Agreement provides that when a related-party transaction personally affects a
Director or the shareholder he represents at the Board, he must abstain from intervening in the
decision, as well as from voting or delegating his vote. He will also leave the Board meeting room,
while the Board deliberates and votes on such related transaction. Nevertheless, the Proprietary
Directors appointed by or representing Imperial Brands must be present in each debate and voting
regarding the Framework Agreement or the Treasury Agreements (even though they will not be
able to vote regarding these matters).

D.7 Is more than one company of the Group listed in Spain?
Yes O No X

Identify the subsidiaries listed in Spain:
Listed subsidiaries
N/A

Indicate whether the respective areas of activity and any business relations between them, and any
business relations between the listed subsidiary and other group companies, have been publicly and
precisely defined

Yes [ No X
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Describe any business relations between the parent company and the listed subsidiary, and between

the listed subsidiary and other group companies.
N/A

Tdentify the mechanisms established to resolve any potential conflicts of interest between the listed

subsidiary and the other companies of the group:
N/A

E RISK CONTROL AND MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

E.1 Detail the scope of the company’s Risk Management System, including risks of a tax-
related nature,

The Corporate Risk Management System of the Company and its subsidiaries (hereafter, the Group) is
set forth in the General Internal Control Policy of February, 8™ 2012,

This policy establishes a general action framework for controlling and management of internal and
external risks of any nature, which may affect the Logista Group, in accordance with the risk map in
place at all times in the achievement of its objectives (Corporate Governance risks, market risks,
financial risks, regulatory risks, business risks, operational risks, penal risks and reputational risks,
among others) Risk Management General Policy, applicable both to each of the businesses and
countries, and Corporate areas of the Group, sets up the guidelines to integrate all the information
originating from the different functions and operations of the Group, with the purpose of providing to
the Business Managers/Corporate Directorates, a holistic view, improving the Management capacity o
manage risks in an efficient way and minimizing the impact in case the risks materialize.

The Policy defines different risk categories, in which, as part of the financial risks category, tax risks
related to the current Group activity are inciuded. '

Therefore, Fiscal strategy described at Fiscal Policy of Logista Group, states, as part of its key
objectives the following:

e To minimize the fiscal risks associated with the Company’s operations and strategic decisions,
thus ensuring that the tax payable is appropriate and in proportion to the operations of the
Businesses, the material and human resources, and the business risks of the Group.

o To define the fiscal risks and determine the Objectives and Activities of internal Control, and to
set up systems for reporting fiscal compliance and for keeping documentary records, integrated
with the Group’s General Framework of Internal Control.

E.2 Identify the bodies responsible for preparing and implementing the Risk Management
System, including tax-related risks.

The Board of Directors
Among its non-delegable faculties, the Board of Directors has to approve the general policies
and strategies of the Group and among them, the control and risk management policy, including
tax risks, as well as the supervision of the internal reporting and control systems, in particular
those for financial information.

Risk Management General Policy, will identify, at least, (1) different risk categories, financial and
not financial (operational, technological, legal, social, environmental, political and reputational,
among others), for which the Group is exposed to, including those financial or economical,
contingent liabilities and other off-balance risks; (if) the determination of the risk level that the
Group considers acceptable; (jif) predefined measures to mitigate impact of the risks identified, in
case they would materialise, and (iv) information and internal control systems that will be used to
control and manage those risks, including contingent liabilities or ofi-balance risks.
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Audit and Control Commiitee
Among others, the Audit and Control Committee shall have the following competencies:

i) Supervise the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Logista Group, in particular
those for financial information and the risk systems of Logista Group, reviewing the
appointment and replacement of managers, and discuss with the auditors or audit firms the
weaknesses of the internal contro] system, detected during the audit, without compromising its
independence. To this end, and where appropriate, recommendations or proposals may be
submitted to the Board of Directors in keeping with the corresponding time frame for follow-up
activities.

In particular, the Company shall have a risk control and management unit under the direct
supervision of the Audit and Control Committee. This unit shall be expressly charged with,
among others, the duty to ensure that risk control and management systems are functioning
correctly and, specifically, that major risks the Company is exposed to are correctly identified,
managed and quantified; to actively participate in the preparation of risk strategies and in key
decisions about their management; and to ensure that risk control and management systems are
mitigating risks effectively in the frame of the policy drawn up by the Board of Directors.

ii) Supervise compliance with corporate governance rules and the Internal Codes of Conduct of
the Company. In particular, among others, the Audit and Control Committee shall Evaluate all
aspects of the non-financial risks the Company is exposed to, including operational,
technological, legal, social, environmental, political and reputational risks.

Internal Control Committee
This Committee depends on the Audit and Control Committee of the Board of Directors,

hierarchical and functionally.

The Committee has the following basic functions, among others:To promote and coordinate the
work for annually updating the Group’s risk map and propose approval to the competent bodies.

In relation with the Penal Risks Prevention Model, the Internal Control Committee also acts as
Unit of Control and Follow-Up of Penal Risks, in relation with the direct penal responsibility of
the Jegal persons, established by Spanish faws.

The Logista Group Internal Control Committee is comprised of the Corporate Financial
Directorate, who acts as Chairman, the Internal Control Director, the Human Resources
Director, a representative of the Legal Department, the Corporate Resources Director as well as
the General Managers of the 3 most important business units of the Group, ,acting the Internal
Control Director as Secretary.

Corporate Internal Audit Directorate
Corporate Internal Audit Directorate role is promoting the implementation, development and
coordination and documentation of the acts and tasks performed related to this subject, asking
for the execution of risks evaluations to Process owners assigned and General Directorates of
cach businesses, following homogenised methodology and instructions for performing the
process, as defined at the Risk Management Policy and Procedure.

Process Owner:
Employees responsible for the design, process development and detection of risks and
opportunities that may affect them. They are also responsible for the implementation of policies
and internal comtrol standards. They should identify the Control Objectives and Control
Activities to Control Owners, reporting on it all to the Internal Contro} Coordinators.

Internal Control Coordinators:
They are responsible for promoting the implementation, development and coordination of the

Internal Control System through Control Objectives and Activities. Generally, this function will
be occupied by financial officers of the Business and Corporate Management that makes up the
Group.
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Control Owner:
Employees responsible for carrying out control on processes and informing, through reporting,
on checks made to the Process Owner. They should suggest improvements and corrective
actions to the Process Owner.

£.3 Indicate the main risks, including tax-related risks, which may prevent the company from
achieving its targets.

In the Group Risk Map the following risks were identified, among others, which are classified
according its category as stated at the Risks Management Policy of Logista Group :

Environment Risks:

o Group’s business could be adversely affected by the deterioration of the economic
conditions in the markets in which it operates (mainly Spain, Portugal, ¥France and
Ttaly).

» Tobacco illicit trade and contraband impacting in distributed tobacco volumes.

Business Risks

e Liberalization in the main markets where the Group operates as tobacco products
authorized distributor where currently exists a State monopoly for retail sale of these
products could affect results, if the measures already planned by the Group were not
implemented.

Operational risks:

e Theft of tobacco in facilities and during transport associated to increases in insurance
premiums

e Technological risks associated to the lack of (or faulty) availability of the
Information Systems.

o Reculatory Compliance Risks: The Logista Group Businesses are subject to
compliance of numerous general and industry laws and regulations, with European,
national, regional and local reach, in every country where it operates, exposing the
Group to potential failures to comply and the corresponding sanctions or claims and,
on the other hand, to increasing costs for supervision of compliance and control.

o European Directive 2014/40/UE (3 April 2014) establishes tighter rules for tobacco
products, that could affect the volume sold, related among others, to labelling,
ingredients, track and trace and cross-border trade. The transposition period in their
respective member States ends on May, 20th 2016.

o Penal risk (commission of crimes within the company and/or in the benefit of the
Group) or Risks associated to litigation in which the Groups is currently part, either
as plaintiff or defendant

Financial Risks/ Tax Risks:

o Changes in the group's payment cycles could oblige it to seek external sources of
finance to fulfil its obligations:
As with any other wholesale business, the payment cycles for products acquired
from manufacturers and the collection cyeles of the points of sale do not coincide.
For this reason alone, the Logista Group’s payment to the tax is made in a cycle
which is different from that of the manufacturers and the points of sale.

o Furthermore, possible changes in the fiscal regulations could impact directly on the
Group's results and cash management (excise duties, Corporation Tax, ncome tax,
etc.)

e Risk of impairment of fair value of assets, in relation with goodwill high carrying
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value

¢ Commercial credit risk derived from the usual business operations with customers

E.4 Identify if the company has a risk tolerance level, including tax-related risks.

Group risk management methodology considers different risk tolerances when rating gross risks,
both with quantitative and qualitative criteria, and assessing the risk impact which allocate each
risk in the general scheme of risk appetite. Criteria used by the group are: regulatory compliance,
financial-economical impact, safety and security, impact in processes and reputational impact.

These criteria, together with ratings over likelihood rating, and evaluation of risks tolerance for
each risks Identified, are added to the tools used for risk management (risk register and risk map),
on order to report and monitor and adequate follow-up of key risks by the corresponding bodies.

General Risk management Policy defined the position of the Company regarding a risk typology,
Including tax-related risks, such as:

Group has a low tolerance regarding law and regulation compliance, including tax regulation,

In general, due to the particularity of the business and the markets where the Group Is present, has
a moderate risk profile, therefore risk management has to be done considering the following:

a) Achieve those strategic objectives defined by the Group, keeping a level of uncertainty under
control.

b) Maximize the level of guarantee to shareholders.
¢) Protect Group financial results and reputation.

d) Take care of stakeholders interests (shareholders, customers and manufactures).

Highlight that in the strategic Group framework, providing high added value logistical services
with a high level of technological innovation, presents higher level of tolerance considering the
technological risks that could occur.

E.5 Identify any risks, including tax-related risks, which have occurred during the year.

~ Regular operational risks, in the ordinary course of business, particularly theft of tobacco in the
company facilities and during transport, not affecting the Group’s financial results as the
merchandise was properly insured.

Liabilities for the resolution of fiscal litigation processes, ruled against the Group, not affecting
significantly the Group’s financial results, as they were properly provisioned.

E.6 Explain the response and monitoring plans for the main risks the company is exposed to,
including tax-related risks.

The methodology to elaborate the Group Corporate Risk Map, based on the individual risk
evaluation of the businesses, forces the evaluators to assess the risks before and after considering
the mitigating controls and action plans established for each case, ending up with the residual risk
classification (Severe, High, Moderate or Low). Risk Management Procedure of Logista Group
states that, for each residual risk, it will be decided which action has to be done (Eliminate,
transfer, Mitigate ort Assume), and also an action plan will be defined.

See below the main existing controls for the risks identified in the E.3 section:
Environment Risks

e The markets most affected by the poor economic evolution, and the Businesses most
exposed to its customer credit risks, are reinforcing the procedures for the recovery of
debts to shorten the terms, as well as reducing and tightly monitoring the credit limits,
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fostering the obtaining of bank guarantees.

e Regarding tobacco illicit trade and contraband, the Group is developing projects
together with the manufacturers to establish more demanding track and trace protocols,
in compliance with the European Directive of April, 3rd 2014.

Business Risks

e The effect of liberalizing the main markets in which the Group operates as tobacco-
related products authorized distributor where currently there is a State monopoly for
retail sale would, if there is a negative effect, mitigated by the business diversification
strategy followed by the Group, and the capacity to sell tobacco through the large
capillary point of sales network.

Operational risks
~ Theft of tobacco in the company facilities and during transport.
The following measures reduce both the impact and the likelihood to a tolerable risk level:
o Follow up of maximum security standards.
s Insurance Policies.
- Technological risks

e Fxistence of Contingency Plans periodically tested, analyzed and monitored by the
Information Security Committee.

o The Group Data Centers are permanently monitored

Financial risks/ tax Risks

e Regarding the goodwill high carrying value, the Group undertakes impairment test
according to the IFRS.

» Credit risks mitigated by perfodical credit controls, hiring insurance policies in order to
mitigate possible impacts of unpaid credits in the commercial transactions.

o In relation to Compliance and Crime Prevention within the Group’s companies, the
following controls currently exist:

o The Group has a Code of Conduct and periodically asks employees to
undertake training on its contents.

o The Group has an Internal Channel for denounces and irregularities, with
policies and procedures available to every employee in the Group intranet.

o ‘The Corporate Legal Department centralizes supervision of most significant
contracts all across the Group.

o There are Policies for investment, expenditures, indebtedness and other
transactions, that require a strict approval and communication workflow.

o Also, adapted to the specific characteristics of the penal codes in Spain and Italy,
in addition to the Group Code of Conduct, there are specific Manuals for crime
prevention in these countries according to which, in case of lack of compliance
with the controls and general behavior principles stated in them and in the Group
Code of Conduct, disciplinary actions could be taken against the offenders.

o There are specific procedures for preventing money laundering in the Group,
being the Regulatory Compliance Directorate the body in charge addressed as
the valid interlocutor with the SEPBLAC.
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F INTERNAL SYSTEMS FOR THE CONTROL AND MANAGEMENT OF RISKS
RELATED TO THE PROCESS OF FINANCIAL REPORTING (ICOFR)

Describe the mechanisms which constitute the systems for the control and management of
risks related to the process of financial reporting {ICOFR) in your entity.

F.1 The entity’s control environment
Report on the following as 2 minimum, indicating their main characteristics:

F.1.1 The bodies or departments responsible for (i) the existence and maintenance of
adequate and effective ICOFR; (i) the implementation of those ICOFR and (iii)the
supervision of those ICOFR.

The Logista Group system for the internal control of financial reporting (hereinafter ‘TCOFR’}
forms part of the Logista Group internal control system and consists of the whole of the processes
carried out by the Board of Directors, the Audit & Control Committee, Senior Management and the
Logista Group personnel to provide reasonable security in relation to the reliability of the financial
information which is released to the markets.

Article 5 of the Rules of the Board of Directors of 26th January, 20186, entitled “The general role of
supervision’, lays down as one of its responsibilities the definition and approval of the Logista
Group policies and general strategies, and in particular, the policy on contro] and management of
risks, including fiscal risks, and the supervision of the internal systems of reporting and control,
and in particular, of financial reporting. It also defines the ultimate responsibility of the Board of
Directors over the financial information which, as a quoted company, the Company has to publish
regularly, and its responsibility to formulate the annual accounts and present them to the General
Shareholders’ Meeting.

In accordance with the provisions of Article 43 of the By-Laws, the Logista Group has an Audit &
Control Committee, whose main responsibilities in relation to the ICOFR, according to Article 17.2
of the Board’s Rules, are the following:

e To supervise the effectiveness of the internal control systems of Logista Group, in
particular those for financial information and the risk systems of Logista Group, reviewing
the appointment and replacement of managers, and discuss with the auditors or augit firms
the weaknesses of the internal control system, detected during the audit, without
compromising its independence. To this end, and where appropriate, recommendations or
proposals may be submitted to the Board of Directors in keeping with the corresponding
time frame for follow-up activities.

e In particular, the Company shall have a risk control and management unit under the direct
supervision of the Audit and Control Committee. This unit shall be expressly charged with,
among others, the duty to ensure that risk control and management systems are functioning
correctly and, specifically, that major risks the Company is exposed fo are correctly
identified, managed and quantified; to actively participate in the preparation of risk
strategies and in key decisions about their management; and to ensure that risk control and
management systems are mitigating risks effectively in the frame of the policy drawn up by
the Board of Directors,

« To report to the Board of Directors on the Logista Group Annual Accounts, and on the
financial information which the Logista Group has to publish regularly and send to the
bodies which regulate or supervise the markets.

« To keep watch over the compliance of the legal requirements and the correct application of
the generally accepted accounting principles, and to report on the Management’s proposals
for the modification of accounting principles and criteria, and on the risks on and off the
balance sheet.

« To supervise the process of drawing up and the integrity and submission of the required
financial information, and submit recommendations or proposals to the Board of Directors
aimed at safeguarding its integrity, checking for compliance with legal provisions, the
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accurate demarcation of the consolidation perimeter, and the correct application of
accounting principles

» To make proposals to the Board of Directors concerning the selection, appointment, re-
election and replacement of the external auditor, and also the terms and conditions of his
engagement, and to collect from him regular information about the Audit Plan and its
execution, and also preserving his independence in the exercise of his functions.

e To supervise Supervising the services and activities of the internal audit umit and, in
particular, monitor the independence of the unijt handling the internal audit function, which
shall report functionally to the Chairman of the Audit and Control Committee and will
monitor the effectiveness of reporting and control systems, proposing the selection,
appointment, re-election and removal of the head of the internal audit service; proposing
the service’s budget; approving its priorities and work programmes, ensuring that it focuses
primarily on the main risks the Company is exposed to; receiving regular report-backs on
its activities; and verifying that senior management are acting on the findings and
recommendations of its reports.

e The head of the unit handling the internal audit function should present an annual work
programimne to the Audit and Control Committee, inform it directly of any incidents arising
during its implementation and submit an activities report at the end of each year.

In accordance with the Internal Control Policy of Logista Group, development and execution of the
intersal control system (in which ICOFR Is embedded), it is assigned to the Internal Control
Committee of the Logista Group, acting under the supervision and dependency on the Audit
Committee and Board of Directors, and which president is the Finance Corporate Directorate.

Among other functions, the Internal Control Committee establishes the responsibility to validate
the proposals of the internal control process managers or co-ordinators, or of corporate or business
managers, to define, update and develop new processes Or sub-processes and the objectives of
control and control activities, including all those which are related to the ICOFR.

The Finance Corporate Directorate is the body responsible for defining the systems of internal
control over financial information. In this regard, it establishes and defines the policies, guidelines
and procedures related to the generation of the said information, in order to guarantee the quality
and authenticity of the financial information generated and monitors its compliance.

In addition, among the functions defined in the rules of Internal Auditing, the Management of the
Internal Audit Department has that of providing the Logista Group, and in particular its Senior
Management, its Board of Directors and its Andit and Control Committee, with a reasonable degree
of assurance in relation to the following points:

e« That the significant risks of the Logista Group are identified and managed effectively and
efficiently, and that proposals are made to the competent bodies of any strengthening
measures that are considered necessary in any of the component parts of the Logista Group
Internal Control System (Control Environment, Risk Evaluation, Control Activities,
Information and Communication, and Supervision),

» That in particular, there i3 adequate supervision of the system for the internal control of
financial reporting (ICOFR).

F.1.2. If the following elements exist, especially in connection with the process of preparing
financial information:

Departments and/or mechanisms entrusted with: (i) the design and review of the organisational
structure; (i) clearly defining the Jines of responsibility and authority, with an appropriate
distribution of tasks and roles; and (iif) ensuring that the procedures for disseminating this
information throughout the entity are sufficient, specially related to the preparation of financial
information.

According to Article 6 of its Rules, the general purpose of the Board of Directors of the Logista
Group is to determine and supervise the Logista Group business and financial objectives, agreeing
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on the strategy, the plans and the policies by which to achieve them, propelling and supervising the
management of the Group and the achievement of the established objectives, and ensuring the
existence of adequate management and organisation, under effective supervision of the Board.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the policy of the Board is to delegate the ordinary management of
the Group to the executive bodies and the management team, except in those matters which,
according to the Law, the By-Laws or the Board’s Rules, cannot be delegated.

For this reason, the Appointments and Remunerations Committee has the responsibility, among
others, to advise on the proposals for the appointment or severance of senior directors which the
Chief Executive proposes to the Board.

Among the roles of the senior management are the design and review of the organisational
structure of the different units of corporate business, for the purpose of identifying needs,
inefficiencies and areas for improvement in the design of those structures, and the definition of the
lines of responsibility and authority, and the appropriate distribution of tasks and roles.

The Corporate Directorate of Human Resources has procedures for updating the organisational
structures at corporate level and of each of the Logista Group subsidiaries. These procedures are
documented in organisation charts, which show the lines of authority up to a certain organisational
level.

The Logista Group has a range of internal regulations governing the allocation and division of
responsibilities and the segregation of functions in the different areas of the Company. The system
of evaluation of the Logista Group performance contains, in an individualized manner, the main
responsibilities of each job.

Specifically, the Corporate Financial Directorate has organisation charts showing the composition
of the Financial Departments of each of the subsidiaries and business units; it also has regulations
and procedures containing information about the tasks carried out by the different members of
those departments, and in its systems for performance evaluation it has information about the
responsibilities included in the jobs of the key personnel involved in the preparation of the financial
statements.

Dissemination is through the corporate Intranet which is used for internal communications, and
through which the Logista Group regulations and procedures, as well as information about the most
important changes occurring in the organisational structure, are disseminated. Furthermore, in the
Corporate Intranet Directory one may find complete information about each of the employees of
the Logista Group, including the post occupied and the reporting lines.

According to Framework agreement of 12" June 2014, signed by the Company and Imperial
Brands PLC, internal control systems of the Logista Group, including those over financial
information and internal audit standards, are coordinated with systems and standards of Imperial
Brands, if necessary, to facilitate Imperial Tobacco Group the developments and dissemination of
their own regulated financial information.

The code of conduct, the approving body, the degree of dissemination and instruction, the
principles and values included (with an indication of whether there are specific references to the
record of operations and the preparation of financial information), the body responsible for
analysing breaches and proposing cotrective actions and sanctions.

The Logista Group has adopted the Code of Conduct issued by its controlling shareholder, Imperial
Brands PLC, which has been approved by its Board of Directors. There is, in addition, a Code of
Conduct which applies specifically to the Logista Group companies in Italy (the ‘Cddice Etico’),
approved by the Board of Directors of Logista Italia, S.P.A., within the framework of Legislative
Decree 231/01, which governs the regulation of compliance in the matter of criminal risks, and
which describes in detail all the processes of the Logista Group Italian companies, including the
preparation of financial information, which are in turn analysed by the governing and control
bodies legally required in Italy.

The Logista Group Code of Conduct may be consulted on the Corporate intranet.
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All the employees of the Logista Group have to commit themselves to its compliance and as a
prove of that, they must sign a ‘recognition’ document, confirming that they have read the Code of
Conduct and will observe its provisions, The Group Logista has versions of this document in
English, Spanish, French, Italian, Portuguese and Polish, so that it can be correctly disseminated
and understood in all the countries in which it operates.

The Code of Conduct lays down the principles of responsible behaviour which all the employees
have to observe, and offers a practical guide to the way in which important ethical and legal matters
should be dealt with. As fundamental values it includes business integrity, responsible commercial
practice, trust, respect and responsibility. Each of the general principles is elaborated on in the body
of the Code.

In particular, within the principle of responsible commercial practice, there is a section on accuracy
in accounting and the keeping of financial records and notifications, of which the main obligations
are explained below:

o To report and record all our financial information accurately and objectively.
o To ensure that accurate and complete financial and commercial records are kept.

e To ensure that all the financial reports, notifications, forecasts and analyses for which we
are responsible are transmitted honestly and accurately.

« To observe all of the laws, external requirements and procedures of the Company when
transferring financial and commercial information.

e To co-operate openly with the Logista Group Compliance Department and with our
external anditors.

o To strive to identify any potentially erroneous representation of the accounts, data or
records, or any occurrence of potential fraud or deception, and to inform the local, regional
or departmental heads of finances, the Director of Accounting, Forecasting and Taxation or
the Logista Group Compliance Manager of any worry or doubt about the accuracy of the
financial reports.

The Code of Conduct itself and its complaints procedure lay down a procedure for notifying,
recording and investigating possible breaches of the Code of Conduct as well as the principles of
the investigations and the disciplinary measures, including dismissal, and the rights of appeal.

The body ultimately responsible for these activities is the Audit and Control Committee itself, who
in their Board of Directors Regulation states as part of their responsibilities the supervision of
compliance with corporate governance rules and the Internal Codes of Conduct of the Company. In
particular, the Audit and Control Committee shall:

o  Supervise compliance with the Internal Codes of Conduct of the Company, particularly
with the Internal Securities Market Code of Conduct, the Regulations and the Logista
Group’s governance rules, as well as putting forward proposals for its improvement.,

The complaints channel, which enables notifications of financial and accounting irregularities, of
any possible breaches of the Code of Conduct, or of any irregular activities in the organisation to be
made to Audit Committee, together with, if appropriate, information about their confidential nature.

The Logista Group has a Policy and Procedure on Complaints of Malpractice (“Whistleblowing™),
which was approved by the Board of Directors on 26th April, 2016.

This Policy formalizes the existence of a channel for denouncing behaviour, deeds, actions,
omissions or failure to observe the principles, ethical values, laws and internal regulations
applicable to the Logista Group, and establishes the general principles which govern the
notification of the complaint, as well as the subsequent actions that have to be taken by the Logista
Group as a result of such a notification of complaint. The procedure develops the aspects or
premises which require the Implementation and execution of the Policy.

One of the bodies competent to receive complaints and to investigate cases of malpractice is the
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Audit Committee, when if, in the conduct, deeds, acts, omissions of non-compliance which
constitute(s) the Malpractice, the participation or direct or indirect involvement of any Member of
the Board, including its Secretary, or of a Cormpany Director, or of the General Manager of a
Business, is deduced. Immediate report will be given by the Secretary of the Whistleblowing
committee or Internal Control Unit, to the President of the Audit Committee, or if implicated, to
any member of the Board of those Commission,

Also, the Procedure states that the Directorate of Corporate Internal Auditing will prepare a report
on cases that are relevant, of significant importance, of a financial or accounting nature, or Serjous,
which will be forwarded to the Audit and Control Committee, which will, in addition, supervise the
general observance of the Logista Group’s Policy on Complaints, and of the provisions of this
Procedure.

With regard to the confidentiality of complaints, the Policy states as one of its key principles the
guarantee of Confidentiality and, as far as the applicable local legistation alfows, the anonymity of
the complaint.

The identity of the ‘whistleblower’ will not be disclosed to anyone other than the Bodies
Competent to receive and investigate a complaint of Malpractice, in any of the stages of the
Investigation Procedure, nor will the said identity be revealed to third parties or to the people being
investigated.

As an exception, and under the applicable regulations, the identity of the ‘whistleblower” can be
revealed to the Administrative or Legal Authority which is handling the investigation procedure
initiated by or resulting from the complaint of Malpractice.

Programmes for the training and regular updating of staff involved in the preparation and reviewing
of financial information, and in the evaluation of the ICOFR, covering at least the following:
accounting principles, auditing, internal control and management of risks.

Within the system for annually assessing performance, personal development is encouraged, and
any need for training in the said subjects is detected and then reflected in the Annual Training Plan.

The Human Resources Department, in collaboration with each of the business units, is responsible
for defining the Logista Group Annual Training Plan, in which the training needs of the staff,
including those involved in the generation and issue of financial information, and the internal
control and management of risks, are identified.

In this way, iraining courses are given annually to those of the staff who are involved in the
preparation and reviewing of financial information. Specifically, there has been received external
training on the following subjects: consolidation process, financial modeling, international
accounting standards, and internal control/Internal audit risk analysis.

In order to ensure that the regulatory modifications and updating which are required to guarantee
the reliability of financial information are understood and applied, the departments involved in the
preparation and supervision of financial information keep themselves permanently informed of any
such modification , through different institution’s bulletins from external sources and attendance o
conferences and seminars of specific topics.

During the year, a fully implementation of ICOFR training program has taken place, with the
objective of keeping all key personnel involved at elaboration of financial information, monitoring
and control; four internal training sessions have been held both at a Corporate level and also at
subsidiary level.

Furthermore, on-line specific training about Global financial fraud has been give to all new
employees belonging financial department, internal control and internal audit, and also to those
persons who did not received that training before.
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F.2 Evaluation of risks in financial reporting
Report on at least the following:

F.2.1. The main characteristics of the process of identifying risks, including those of error or fraud,
in relation to:

Whether the process exists and has been documented.

The Logista Group has a specific selection of policies for the process of identifying risks in the
Group: "Internal Control Policy", "Risk Management Policy" and “Risk Management Procedure”.
These policies describe risk management as an interactive and continuous process, incorporated
into strategy and planning process. The policy and the procedure together define the basic
principles and methods to be followed in the Group, and they are reflected in the Logista Group
map of risks.

The said map of risks is prepared from assessments of the impact and probability of each risk,
made by those responsible for the processes in all the Logista Group companies, who take into
consideration variables both quantitative and qualitative; there is a map of the Logista Group risks
and there are also maps of specific risks for each company and business unit.

In the model that has been introduced for risk management, the important internal and external
risks of 2 financial nature which can affect their activities have been identified and prioritized,
using a pre-defined methodology. Among these, the risks of fraud and risk of error in valuation and
financial reporting are considered to be relevant when categorizing the financial risks.

Whether the process covers all of the objectives of the financial assertions (existence and
occurrence; completeness; valuation; presentation, breakdown and comparability; and rights and
obligations), whether it is updated, and if so, how often.

In the methodology used for the preparation of the risk and contro} matrices of the ICOFR, the
Group has established the identification and description of each of the risks in the processes that are
relevant for the purposes of the ICOFR, and their effect on the objectives of the financial
assertions, which are to ensure that the transactions, facts and events fulfil: existence and
occurrence; completeness; valuation; presentation, breakdown and comparability; and rights and
obligations.

The Logista Group has developed an instruction for "ICOFR documentation”, in which premises to
be followed are exposed in order to guarantee an adequate documentation maintenance, More
explicitly, it is reflected that the review of these documentation must be a continuous and
constantly updated process. Nevertheless, at least annually, at the beginning of the fiscal year,
Internal Control Coordinator will do a general review of the documentation in order to guarantee a
proper majntenance and communication. In case no update needs to be done to the current
documentation, this fact will be communicated both to Internal Control Department and Internal
Audit Department.

Those General Principles are explicitly formulated at the “Best practices of financial internal
control” instruction, mandatory for all the Logista Group and in the Accounting Manual for the
Logista Group.

The existence of a process of identification of the consolidation perimeter, taking into account,
among other aspects, the possible existence of complex corporate structures, instrumental or
special-purpose entities.

The Logista Group consolidation perimeter is determined monthly by the Financial Corporate
Directorate, based on the consolidation procedure called “accounting principles, valuation rules and
table of consolidated accounts”, This procedure establishes the system to be followed to define the
consolidation perimeter and to ensure that it is correctly updated, so that nothing is omitted from
the consolidated financial information.

In the Group consolidated financial statements at the close of the financial year, in accordance with
the methods of inclusion applicable in each case, all those companies belonging to the Logista
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Group, joint businesses and companies associated with it were included in accordance with the
content of the IFRS. For that purpose, the Consolidation Department has a detailed checklist of all
the companies belonging to the Logista Group, and carries out a specific, regular analysis of the
consolidation criteria to be applied.

Whether the process takes account of the effects of other types of risk (operational, technological,
financial, legal, reputational, environmental, etc.) to the extent that they affect the financial
statements.

In its system of Risk Management, the Logista Group considers the following categories of risk,
which may be distinguished according to thelr nature or their consequences:

~  Environment Risks: including those events regarding economic matters, such as the
consequences in the consumer habits from the economic crisis in the countries where the
Group operates. As well, due to the regulated nature of the tobacco market, main business
of the Group, the risks regarding any modification to the tobacco regulations fall into this
category.

~  Business Risks: enclosing in this category any risk regarding the behavior of the different
agents present in the Businesses of the Group, such the relationship with the tobacco
manufacturers, or the entrance of new competitors.

- Decision-making Risks: incorporating i1 this strand those events that could derive in errors
due to an incorrect process of the decision-making data, such as the elaboration of
accounting and financial statements.

_  Financial Risks: considering those risks regarding the Group exposure to price and other
market variables fluctuations, such as the exchange rate, interest rate, oil price, etc.
Furthermore, credit risks resulting from contractual liabilities, as well as fiscal risks from
the Group activities lie into this category.

- Regulatory Compliance Risks: resulting from non compliance with existing regulations
affecting the Group, including the internal policies and procedures, as well as those
regarding the legal regulations that subject the Group, the penal risks and the compliance
with the both the legal regulations and the internal policies regarding the internal control
over financial reporting.

~  Operational Risks: those related to the regular Group operations, such as process
inefficiency, technology problems, non compliance with quality standards, or those
resulting from errors in the execution of the activities.

- Reputational Risks: including those events that could negatively affect the Group image
and, therefore, its value, resulting from a behavior under the stakeholders expectative.

The Logista Group has also ‘ntroduced a Model for the Prevention of Criminal Risks, covering the
Jegal risks considered in the Manual for the Prevention of Offences, and also a Crime prevention
system in their Jtalian subsidiaries to comply with Legislative Decree 01/231.

The Entity’s Governing Body which supervises the process.

The Board of Directors of the Company, through its Audit and Control Committee, is the body
ultimately responsible for supervising the process of evaluating risks.

The Board of Directors Regulation mentions that the Logista Group shall have a risk control and
management unit under the direct supervision of the Audit and Control Committee. This unit shall
be expressly charged with, among others, the duty to ensure that risk control and management
systems are functioning correctly and, specifically, that major risks the Company is exposed to are
correctly identified, managed and quantified; to actively participate in the preparation of risk
strategies and in key decisions about their management; and to ensure that risk control and
management systems are mitigating risks effectively ‘0 the frame of the policy drawn up by the
Roard of Directors.

The mentioned control and management unit is represented by the Logista Group Internal Control
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Committee, which activity regarding risk management is co-ordinated and supervised by the
Corporate Internal Audit Directorate.

F.3 Control activities

Indicate whether the entity has at least the following, and if so, indicate their main
characteristics:

F.3.1. Procedures for the review and authorisation of the financial reporting and the description of
the ITCOFR, for publication in the securities markets, identifying their managers, and documents
describing the flows of activities and controls (including those related to the risk of fraud) of the
different types of transaction which can materially affect the financial statements, including the
procedure for accounts closure and the specific review of the relevant opinions, estimates,
valuations and projections.

The regulated financial information to be sent to the markets complies with the provisions of Royal
Decree 1362/2007 of 19th October, and Circular 1/2008 of 30th January of the CNMV {Comision
Nacional del Mercado de Valores : National Securities Market Commission).

The Logista Group has a series of procedures for closing and reporting, which define a series of
manual and automatic checks that are used to verify financial information, prevent fraud, and
ensure compliance with current legislation and the generally accepted accounting principles. There
is also a formal procedure for accounts closure in which the financial information is prepared by
each economic/financial manager of each subsidiary company or business, which is verified by the
Consolidation and Reporting Department, and approved, before publication, by the Logista Group
Corporate Management of Finances. It is also checked by the external auditors. Finally, it is
analysed by the Audit and Control Committee, which reports to the Board of Directors, the latter
being the body which finally approves it and agrees to its publication and dissemination to the
markets, as explained in section F.1.1.

With regard to the specific review of the relevant opinions, estimates, valuations and projections,
the Logista Group has an Instruction about financial Provisions which describes the manner of
dealing with each of the provisions which the companies in the Logista Group may make, and
which is designed to reduce the risk of error in processes related to specific transactions.

In addition, every quarter, the Financial Directors and Controllers of the Logista Group Businesses
and/or Companies issue a certificate in which they declare that the Logista Group General Policy
on Internal Control has been complied with as regards reconciliation of key accounts and controls.
Every year, they also issue a representation letter in which they certify:

- That they were themselves responsible for preparing the financial statements reported at
the close of the financial year, and for any other breakdown produced.

—  That the financial statements were obtained from the Company’s accounting records,
which reflect all its transactions and its assets and liabilities.

- That the Company’s accounting records correspond to what was produced by the
consolidation tool in accordance with the focal accounting standards plus the adjustments
necessary to align them with the IFRS.

- That the concepts included in each account correspond to those in the Group’s Accounting
Plan and Manual.

~  That the estimates and important decisions were made on the basis of the latest information
available in the business and are sufficiently well documented and justified.

~  That responsibility is accepted for the reliability of the information contained in the
consolidated financial statements of the Company or subgroup (where applicable) at the
close of the financial year.

Furthermore, and with regard to the documentation describing the flows of activities and controls
of the different types of transaction which can materially affect the financial statements, the Logista
Group has prepared the required documentation which describes the control activities which cover
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all the purposes of controlling financial reporting for the Logista Group, by means of its
corresponding ICOFR risk and control matrix, , narratives and flowcharts, in accordance with the
recommendations made by the CNMV in its "Guia de Control Interno sobre la Informacion
Financiera de las Entidades Cotizadas” (Internal control guide on the financial information of the
listed companies).

The aforementioned risk and control matrix, narratives and flowcharts contain information about,
among other matters, the activity of control, the risk which has to be reduced, how often it has to be
carried out and by whom, and the definition of critical control and fraud control.

F.3.2. Policies and procedures for the internal control of information systems (including security of
access, management of changes, and implementation of the same, operational continuity and
segregation of functions) which support the entity’s processes connected with the preparation and
publication of financial information.

The Logista Group uses information systems to keep an adequate record and conmtrol of its
operations, so their correct functioning is crucial for the Logista Group.

The Management of Information Systems within the Management of Corporate Resources is
responsible for the Logista Group information and telecommunications systems. Among ifs
functions is that of providing the Information Systems Department with a set of policies,
procedures and technical and organizational means to ensure the completeness, availability,
confidentiality and continuity of the corporate information, including the financial information.

The regulations relating to the internal control of the information systems are available to all the
employees through the Logista Group intranet, and consist of:

~ The General Policy on Internal Control

~  The strategic framework of the Information Systems

- The Protection of the Information Systems

—  The Policy governing the Security of the Information Systems
- The Security Procedure for the Information Systems

—  The IS Standards Manual.

The General Policy on Internal Control establishes the guidelines and directives relating to the
management of the risks associated with the management and use of information systems and,
specifically, in areas such as the control of access, the management of changes, the implementation
of the same, operational continuity and the segregation of functions. This General Policy on
Internal Control is complemented by the pertinent internal regulations established for that purpose.

The contro! of access is based on the setting-up of mechanisms of identification and authentication,
on the establishment of profiles based on the minimum and indispensable requirements of the
workstations, and on the segregation of functions through the definition of the incompatibilities
existing between the functions carried out by the business areas and the resulting complementary
activities. :

The creation, modification or revocation of users or profiles is subject to an authorisation procedure
controlled by the managers concerned.

Changes in the information systems and their subsequent operation are regulated by an internal
policy which defines the turning-points, the requirements and the bodies governing the life span of
the changes, with the aim of ensuring continuity in the Logista Group operations and the reliability
and confidentiality of the changes made.

The availability of the information systems and the continuance of their functioning following an
incident are guaranteed by a recovery plan for use in cases of corporate disaster. The plan
establishes levels of criticality for each of the information systems, based on the risk associated
with it, and on the maximum times for recovery defined by the Logista Group. To prepare for the
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eventuality of an incident, procedures have been designed and tested to identify the situations, in
which the plan should be implemented, the scale of operation of each particular manager, and the

method of implementing the plan. There is an annual calendar of tests of the plan for recovery from
disasters affecting the Logista Group information systems.

The Logista Group has designed and implemented a matrix for the segregation of functions which
segments the privileges of the users according to the minimum resources and information that are
indispensable for the correct performance of the tasks associated with the workstations in the users’
areas. In addition, and to complement the matrix for the segregation of functions, a set of measures
and/or activities complementary to the segmentation of privileges has been established, such as the
inclusion in the model of a group of users with greater privileges, with the aim, after an express
request and while keeping track of the operations carried out, of supporting the operations of the
corresponding users’ area.

F3.3. Policies and procedures of internal control designed to supervise the management of
activities subcontracted to third parties, and of those aspects of evaluation, calculation or valuation
entrusted to independent experts, and which can materially affect the financial statements.

For the current financial year, none of the processes resulting in the collection of financial
information with a material impact on the individual or consolidated financial statements of the
Logista Group have been externalised, so the Logista Group has not required reports about the
offectiveness of the controls established by entities outside the Logista Group, other than the

requirements of the policies for contracting third parties which the Logista Group uses in its
Purchasing Policy.

However, as the result of the valuations is not significant, the Logista Group does repeatedly use
reports of independent experts for the valuation of certain commitments to employees’ benefits,
and for the valuations of certain properties.

The Corporate Management of Finances monitors the work of those experts in order to check:
competence, training, accreditation and independence, the validity of the data and methods used,
and the reasonableness of the hypotheses used, if applicable.

¥.4 Information and communication

Indicate whether the entity has at least the following, and if it has, indicate their main
characteristics:

F.4.1. A specific function to define the accounting policies and to keep them up-to-date (an area or
department of accounting policies) and fo resolve doubts or conflicts arising from their
interpretation, while maintaining fluid communication with those responsible for the operations in
the organisation, and a manual of accounting policies which is updated and communicated to the
units through which the entity operates.

The functions of the Management of Consolidation and Reporting, belonging to the Finance
Corporate Directorate, are to define and communicate the accounting policies and keep them up-to-

date, and it also has to answer enquiries about the accounting standards and their interpretation.

The Management of Consolidation and Reporting keeps abreast of changes in the accounting
standards by means of communications with the external advisors and through the training which
they themselves receive. These changes have to be analysed, and when they are applicable, the
Accounting Policies defined in the accounting manual have to be updated.

The issue of all types of accounting standards is centralised in the Finance Corporate Directorate
through their Management of Consolidation and Reporting department, which will be responsible
for following and, if appropriate, applying, the modifications published in the regulations.

The Logista Group has a Manual of Accounting Policies, the purpose of which is to establish and
describe the accounting policies and the Accounts Plan to which the financial information of all the
Logista Group companies, the management information and the formation and formulation of the

48



Logista Group Individual and Consolidated Annual Accounts must mandatorily be submitted.

In this way, it is intended to ensure that the confent of the financial information and of the
Individual and Consolidated Annual Accounts of the Logista Group are homogenous, consistent,
accurate and harmonised, and that they are prepared on time.

F.4.2. Mechanisms for collecting and preparing financial information in homogenous formats, for
application and use by all the units in the entity or the Group, and which support the principal
financial statements and the notes, and the information given about the ICOFR.

The Logista Group main ERP tool is the ‘SAP’, which is used to record, at individual level, the
accounting transactions from which financial information is obtained for the subsidiaries of the
Logista Group. All the companies which constitute the Logista Group work in accordance with the
same plan of accounts, which is homogenous and common to the whole Logista Group, contained
in the Accounting Manual, and updated continuously.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared centrally from the financial statements which
are reported in the established format by each of the Logista Group subsidiaries. To do that, the
Logista Group has HFM consolidation software, which the Logista Group subsidiaries and
companies use for reporting, and which enables the data to be aggregated, homogenised and
analysed at individual and consolidated levels. In the consolidation process there are checks to
ensure the correctness of the consolidated financial statements.

In addition, the Consolidation and Reporting Department has a series of internal guidelines — such
as the procedures for consolidation, for inter-company transactions and for reporting, which are
applicable to all the companies which constitute the Logista Group -~ which establish the
mechanisms for collecting and preparing financial information in homogenous formats, the general
rules, rules for the insertion of entries, for the approval of manual entries, opinions and estimates
(including v« uations and relevant projections) and a system for communicating financial
information to tiie senior management and ensuring the homogeneity of the process of drawing up
financial information.

F.5 Supervision of the functioning of the system
Report on at least the following, indicating their main characteristics:

F.5.1. The supervisory activities of the ICOFR carried out by the Auditing Committee, and whether
the entity has an internal auditing function which has among its responsibilities that of supporting
the Committee in its work of supervising the system of internal control, including the ICOFR. Also
report on the scope of the evaluation of the ICOFR that was carried out during the financial year,
and on the procedure by which the person responsible for carrying out the evaluation

communicates its results, on whether the entity has a plan of action which details any necessary
corrective measures, and on whether its impact on the financial reporting has been considered.

The Audit and Control Committee has been informed of the degree of fulfillment of the said plan
of action. In addition, the Audit and Control Committee has carried out the following activities
during the year:

s Follow-up of the action plan in order to obtain a fully implementation of the ICOFR model
in Logista Group.

e Follow-up of results came to light as a consequence of the results of the audits performed by
the Corporate Internal Audit Department, and also the progress on action implementation
resulted during the audit reports.

o Review of the information about the ICOFR which is included in the Annual Report on
Corporate Governance.

o Review of the draft report of the External Auditor’s opinion on this subject,

The Logista Group has a Corporate Internal Auditing Department, with functional dependence on
the Chairman of the Audit and Control.
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In its Internal Audit Charter, approved by the Board through its Audit and Control Comunittee, the
purpose, authority and responsibility of the activity of Internal Auditing, and its position within the
organisation are defined. Among the responsibilities of the said function are the following {among
others):

- To evaluate whether the processes, activities and aims of internal control which constitute
the Logista Group System of Internal Control are adequate, effective and efficient, and
guarantee the Group, the Audit and Control Comimittee, and the Board of Directors of the
Logista Group the effective supervision of the system of management and control of risks,
if necessary making recommendations, either directly or through the Logista Group
Management of Internal Control, for its strengthening;

- In particular, to ensure that there is adequate supervision of the system of internal control
of financial reporting (JCOFR).

With regard to planning, communication with the Audit and Control Committee, and
implementation of corrective measures, the following responsibilities are defined in the Internal
Audit Charter:

- In an open dialogue with the Management and the Audit and Contro! Committee, the
drawing-up of an Annual Plan for Internal Auditing based on an appropriate method of risk
management, and, if appropriate, on the needs expressed by the Businesses or Corporate
Directorates. The work involved in the Annual Plan must be mainly orientated towards the
GROUP’s important risks. The Plan must envisage work for special, ad hoc requirements
during the year. The Annual Plan, and any updating of the Plan, will be sent to the Audit
and Control Committee for its approval;

- The performance of the work described in the approved Auditing Plan, and the activities of
verification, inspection and review described in the Internal Auditing Plan;

-~ The preparation and despatch of regular (at least quarterly) summary reports to the Audit
and Control Committee, on the resulis of the activity of Internal Auditing in fulfillment of
the Annual Plan for Internal Auditing, or of other actions not included in the Plan, and on
the monitoring by the Businesses and the Corporate Directorates or the Senior
Management of the recommendations made;

_  Collaboration with the Businesses and/or Corporate Directorates in the definition of the
plans of action to comply with their recommendations, and supervision of their correct
starting-up and implementation;

According to Internal Audit Plan, approved by the Audit Committee, activities related to ICOFR
have been carried out. More specifically, a three years Plan 2015-2018 was done; in which all
relevant processes of ICOFR purposes have been considered. Current fiscal year processes under
review include purchase to pay processes of those businesses with significant impact on financial
statements, and also Financial Statements’ consolidation process.

As part of ICOFR evaluation process, which conclusions are included at audit reports for each
business and process audited, internal audit verify that:

o Design of descriptive documentation of the processes under review is adequate and it is up
to date.

e Operative efficiency of controls: this means that there are mot significant control
deficiencies related to financial information; If yes, the financial impact Is measured, and
corrective measures are set up in order to solve them resulting in action plans. Deficiencies
are classified in the audit reports according to criticality, a responsible is appointed and
they are monitored until its final solution,

During the current fiscal year, no internal control deficiencies have been detected with relevant
impact on financial statements in those processes audited.
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F.5.2. Whether the entity has a discussion procedure by which the accounts auditor (in accordance
with what is established in the NTA), the function of internal auditing and other experts can inform
the senior management or the entity’s administrators of the significant weaknesses in internal
control that were identified during the annual review of the accounts or during any other processes
<hat were entrusted to them. And also, whether the entity has a plan of action aimed at correcting
the weaknesses observed or mitigating their effect.

The Audit and Control Committee meets at least quarterly with the aim of obtaining and analysing
the necessary information in order to fulfill the responsibilities entrusted to it by the Board of
Directors. There is a plan of the subjects which have to be dealt with in the agendas of the Audit
and Control Committees, including the sessions attended by the Management of Internal Auditing,
the Accounts Auditor, and fiscal experts or other experts when this is considered necessary. In this
regard:

e The external auditors are present at, and report on, all the sessions of the Committee in
which regulated financial information and accounts formulations are analysed. In those
sessions, the external auditor reports to the Committee on important Auditing and
Accounting matters, and on the recommendations identified as those which would enable
the internal control system to improve. He also presents the planning of the Accounts
Auditing, its methodology, legislative innovations, and any other information considered to
be useful.

e The Management of Internal Auditing has full access to the Audit Committee, attending its
sessions as a guest, and issuing information, at least quarterly, both about detected
significant weaknesses in internal control and about the state of the action plans arising out
of the audits with a view to correcting the detected weaknesses in internal control.

In addition, the Chairman of the Audit and Control Committee has private discussions with the
Management of Internal Auditing, in order to obtain information about the scope of their work, its
results and the content of their reports, and any other information considered to be useful.

F.6 Other relevant information

N/A
F.7 The External Auditor’s report
Report on:

E7.1. Whether the information about the ICOFR that has been sent to the markets was subject to
review by the external auditor, in which case the entity should include the corresponding report as
an annex. If it was not reviewed, the entity should explain the reasons for this.

The Logista Group has submitted for review by the extemnal auditor the information about the
JCOFR that was sent to the markets for financial year 2016. The scope of the auditor’s review
procedures was in accordance with Circular E14/2013 of 19th July, 2013, of the Instituto de
Censores Jurados de Cuentas de Espafia, in which the ‘Guide to Action and Model Auditor’s
Report relating to the system of Internal Control of Financial Reposting (ICOFR) in quoted
entities’, which is attached as an annex, was published.

¢ DEGREE TO WHICH THE GOOD GOVERNANCE RECOMMENDATIONS
HAVE BEEN FOLLOWED

State the degree of conformance of the Company to the Recommendations of the Good Governance
Code of listed companies.

1. The By-Laws of listed companies do not limit the maximum number of votes that can be
cast by a single shareholder, or impose other obstacles to the takeover of the company by

means of the acquisition of its shares on the market.

Complies X  Explain O
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2. When both the parent company and a company controlled by it are listed companies, they
both provide detailed public disclosure on:

a) Their respective areas of activity and any business dealings between them as well as
between the controlled listed company and other companies belonging to the Group;

b) The mechanisms in place to resolve any conflicts of interest that may arise.

Complies 0  Complies in part CIExplain £ Not applicable X

3. During the annual general meeting, the chairman of the board should verbally inform
shareholders in sufficient detail of the most relevant aspects of the company’s corporate
governance, supplementing the written information circulated in the annual corporate
governance report. In particular:

a)} Changes taking place since the previous annual general meeting.
b) The specific reasons for the company not following the Good Governance Code
recommendations and any alternative procedures followed in its stead:

Complies X Complies in part O Explain O3

4. The company should draw up and implement a policy of communication and contacts with
shareholders, institutional investors and proxy advisors that complies in full with market
abuse regulations and accords equitable treatment to shareholders in the same position. This
policy should be disclosed on the company's website, complete with details of how it has been
put into practice and the identities of the relevant interlocutors or those charged with its
implementation.

Complies X Complies in part J Explain

5. The. board of directors should not make a proposal to the general meeting for the
delegation of powers to issue shares or convertible securities without pre-emptive
subscription rights for an amount exceeding 20% of capital at the time of such delegation.
When a board approves the issuance of shares or convertible securities without pre-emptive
subscription rights, the company should immediately post a report on its website explaining
the exclusion as envisaged in company legislation.

Complies ! Complies in part O Explain X

The Company has never issued bonds or securities.

6. Listed companies drawing up the following reports on a voluntary or compulsory basis
should publish them on their website well in advance of the annual general meeting, even if
their distribution is net obligatory:

a} Report on auditor independence.

b) Reviews of the operation of the audit committee and the appointment and
remuneration committee.

c) Audit committee report on third-party transactions.
d) Report on corporate social responsibility policy.

Complies X Complies in part T Explain [

7. The company should broadcast its general meetings live on the corporate website.

Complies T Explain X
The Board of Directors has not considered it necessary so far, due to the current floating capital
(less than 25%).

8. The audit committee should strive to ensure that the board of directors can present the
company’s accounts to the general meeting without limitations or qualifications in the
auditor’s report. In the exceptional case that qualifications exist, both the chairman of the
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audit committee and the auditors should give a clear account to shareholders of their
scope and content:

Complies X Complies in part T Explain U

9, The company should disclose its conditions and procedures for admitting share ownership,
the right to attend general meetings and the exercise or delegation of voting rights, and
display them permanently on its website.

Such conditions and procedures should encourage shareholders to attend and exercise
their rights and be applied in a non-discriminatory manner.

Complies X Complies in part I} Explain [

10. When an accredited shareholder exercises the right to supplement the agenda or submit
new proposals prior to the general meeting, the company shoald:

a) Immediately circulate the supplementary items and new proposals.

b} Disclose the model of attendance card or proxy appointment or remote voting form
duly modified so that new agenda items and alternative proposals can be voted on in
the same terms as those submitted by the board of directors.

¢) Put all these items or alternative proposals to the vote applying the same voting rules
as for those submitted by the board of directors, with particalar regard to
presumptions or deductions about the direction of votes.

d) After the general meeting, disclose the breakdown of votes on such supplementary
items or alternative proposals.

Complies X Complies in part & Explain J Not applicable [

11. Where a company plans to pay for attendance at the general meeting, it should first
establish a general, long-term policy in this respect.

Complies [ Complies in part [ Explain [J Not applicable X

12. The board of directors should perform its duties with unity of purpose and independent
judgement, according the same treatment to all shareholders in the same position. It
should be gnided at all times by the company’s best interest, understood as the creation
of a profitable business that promotes its sustainable success over time, while maximizing
its economic value. In pursuing the corporate interest, it should not ouly abide by laws
and regulations and conduct itself according to principles of good faith, ethics and
respect for commonly accepted customs and good practices, but also strive o reconcile
its own interests with the legitimate interests of its employees, suppliers, clients and other
stakeholders, as well as with the impact of its activities on the broader community and
the natural environment.

Complies X Complies in part O Explain [3

13. The board of directors should have an optimal size to promote its efficient functioning
and maximize participation. The recommended range is accordingly between five and

fifteer members.
Complies X Explain [J
14. The board of directors should approve a director selection policy that:
a) Is specific and ascertainable.

b) Ensures that the appointment or re-clection proposals are based on a prior analysis of
the board’s needs.

¢) Favours a diversity of knowledge, experience and gender.
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The results of the prior analysis of board needs should be writter up in the nomination
committee’s explanatory report, to be published when the general meeting is convened
that will ratify the appointment and re-election of each director.

The director selection policy should pursue the goal of having at least 30% of total board
places occupied by women directors before the year 2020.

The nomination committee should run an annual check on compliance with the director
selection policy and set out its findings in the annual corporate governance report.

Complies 3 Complies in part T Explain X

The Board of Directors has not approved during financial year 2015-2016 a Director Selection
Policy, which is expected to be approve in the year 2016-2017.

15. Proprietary and independent directors should constitute an ample majority in the Board

of Directors and the number of executive Direciors is the minimum necessary number,
bearing in mind the complexity of the corporate Group and the percentage interest held
by the executive Directors in the company’s share capital.

Complies X Complies in part 7] Explain G

16. The percentage of proprietary directors out of all non-executive directors should be no

17.

greater than the proportion between the ownership stake of the shareholders they
represent and the remainder of the company’s capital.

This criterion can be relaxed:

a)} In large cap companies where few or no equity stakes attain the legal threshold for
significant shareholdings.

b} In companies with a plurality of shareholders represented on the board but not
otherwise related.

Complies X Explain [
Independent directors should be at least half of all board members. However, when the

company does not have a large market capitalisation, or when a large cap company has
shareholders individually or should occupy, at least, a third of board places.

Complies X Explain 0

18. Companies should disclose the following director particulars on their websites and keep

19,

them regulariy updated:
a) Background and professional experience.

b) Directorships held in other companies, listed or otherwise, and other paid activities
they engage in, of whatever nature.

¢) Statement of the director class to which they belong, in the case of proprietary
directors indicating the shareholder they represent or have links with.

d) Dates of their first appointment as a board member and subsequent re-elections.
e} Shares held in the company, and any options on the same.

Complies X Complies in part T Explain U

Following verification by the nomination committee, the annual corporate governance
report should disclose the reasons for the appointment of proprietary directors at the
urging of shareholders controlling less than 3 per cent of capital; and explain any
rejection of a formal request for a board place from shareholders whose equity stake is
equal to or greater than that of others applying successfully for a proprietary
directorship.

Complies T Complies in part [3 Explain & Not applicable X
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20, Proprietary directors should resign when the shareholders they represent dispose of

21.

22,

23.

24.

their ownership interest in its entirety. If such shareholders reduce their stakes, thereby
losing some of their entitlement to proprietary directors, the latters’ number should be
reduced accordingly. .

Complies X Complies in part 1 Explain I Not applicable O

The board of directors should not propose the removal of independent directors before
the expiry of their tenure as mandated by the Bylaws, except where they find just cause,
based on a proposal from the Nomination Comsmittee. In particular, just cause will be
presumed when directors take up new posts or responsibilities that prevent them
allocating sufficient time to the work of a board member, or are in breach of their
fiduciary duties or come under one of the disqualifying grounds for classification as
independent enumerated in the applicable legislation.

The removal of independent directors may also be proposed when a takeover bid,
merger or similar corporate trapsaction alters the company’s capital structure, provided
the changes in board membership ensue from the proportionality criterion set out in
Recommendation 16.

Complies X Explain U

Companies should establish rules obliging directors to disclose any circumstance that
might harm the organization’s name or reputation, tendering their resignation as the
case may be, and, in particular, to inform the board of any criminal charges brought
against them and the progress of any subsequent trial.

The moment a director is indicted or tried for any of the offences stated in company
legisiation, the board of directors should open an investigation and, in light of the
particular circumstances, decide whether or not he or she should be called on to resign.
The board should give a reasoned account of all such determinations in the annual
corporate governance report.

Complies X Complies in part © Explain

Directors should express their clear opposition when they feel a proposal submitted for
the board's approval might damage the corporate jnterest. In particular, independents
and other directors not subject to potential conflicts of interest should strenuously
challenge any decision that could harm the interests of shareholders lacking board
representation.

When the board makes material or reiterated decisions about which a director has
expressed serious reservations then he or she must draw the pertinent conclusions.
Directors resigning for such causes should set out their reasons in the letter referred to in
the next recommendation.

The terms of this recommendation also apply to the secretary of the board, even if he or
she is not a director.

Complies X Complies in part [ Explain [ Not applicable 5

Directors who give up their office before their tenure expires, through resignation or
otherwise, should state their reasons in a letter to be sent to all members of the board.
Whether or not such resignation is disclosed as a material event, the metivating factors
should be explained in the annual corporate governance report.

Complies X Complies in part 0 Explain [ Not applicable T

25, The nomination coammittee should ensure that non-executive directors have sufficient time

available to discharge their respousibilities effectively.
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The board of directors’ regulations should iay down the maximum number of company
boards on which directors can serve.

Complies X Complies in part T Explain &

26. The board should meet with the necessary frequency to properly perform its functions,
eight times a year at least, in accordance with a calendar and agendas set at the start of
the year, to which each director may propose the addition of initially unscheduled items.

Complies X Complies in part T Explain O

27. Director absences should be kept to a strict minimum and guantified in the Annual
Corporate Governance Report. In the event of absence, directors should delegate their
powers of representation with the appropriate instructions.

Complies X Complies in part £ Explain o]

28. When directors or the secretary express concerns about some proposal or, in the case of
directors, about the company's performance, and such concerns are not resolved at the
meeting, they should be recorded in the minute book if the person expressing them so
requests.

Complies X Complies in part = Explain T Not applicable T

29. The company should provide suitable channels for directors to obtain the advice they
need to carry out their duties, extending if necessary fo external assistance at the
company’s expense.

Complies X Complies in part LI Explain J

30. Regardless of the knowledge directors must possess to carry out their duties, they should
also be offered refresher programmes when circumstances so advise.

Complies {1 Explain X Not applicable 0

The Company intends to perform refresher programmes during next ﬁnanmai year, in
application of the Action Plan of Self-Assessment of the Board, approved the 25™ of October
of 2016.

31. The agendas of board meetings should clearly indicate on which points directors must
arrive at a decision, so they can study the matter beforehand or gather together the '
material they need.

For reasons of urgency, the chairman may wish fo present decisions or resolutions for
board approval that were not on the meeting agenda. In such exceptional circumstances,
their inclusion will require the express prior consent, duly minuted, of the majority of
directors present.

Complies X Complies in part & Explain [

32. Directors should be regularly informed of movements in share ownership and of the views
of major shareholders, investors and rating agencies on the company and its group.

Complies X Complies in part & Explain O

33. The chairman, as the person charged with the efficient functioning of the board of
directors, in addition to the functions assigned by law and the company’s bylaws, should
prepare and submit to the board a schedule of meeting dates and agendas; organize and
coordinate regular evaluations of the board and, where appropriate, the company’s chief
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executive officer; exercise leadership of the board and be accountable for its proper
functioning; ensure that sufficient time is given to the discussion of strategic issues, and
approve and review refresher courses for each director, when circumstances so advise.

Complies X Complies in part J Explain O

34. When a lead independent director has been appointed, the Bylaws or Board of Directors

regulations should grant him or her the following powers over and above those conferred
by law: chair the board of directors in the absence of the chairman and vice chairmen
give voice to the concerns of non-executive directors; maintain contacts with investors
and sharcholders to hear their views and develop a balanced understanding of their
concerns, especially those to do with the company’s corporate governance; and
coordinate the chairman’s succession plan.

Complies J Complies in part J Explain = Not applicable X

The Chairman of the Board does not perform management functions.

35, The board secretary should strive to ensure that the board’s actions and decisions are

36.

37

informed by the governance recommendations of the Good Governance Code of
relevance to the company.

Complies X Explain =

The board in full should conduct an annual evaluation, adopting, where necessary, an
action plan to correct weakness detected in:

a) The quality and efficiency of the board’s operation.
b) The performance and membership of its committees.
¢) The diversity of board membership and competences.

d) The performance of the chairman of the board of directors and the company’s chief
executive.

¢) The performance and contribution of individual directors, with particular attention to
the chairmen of board committees.

Fhe evaluation of board committees should start from the reports they send the board of
directors, while that of the board itself should start from the report of the nomination

committee,

Every three years, the board of directors should engage an external facilitator to aid in
the evaluation process. This facilitator’s independence should be verified by the
nomination committee.

Any business dealings that the facilitator or members of its corporate group maintain
with the company or members of its corporate group should be detailed in the annual
corporate governance report.

The process followed and areas evaluated should be detailed in the annual corporate
governanee report.

Complies X Complies in part  Explain C

When an executive committee exists, its membership mix by director class should
resemble that of the board. The secretary of the board should also act as secretary to the
executive committee.
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CompliesT] Complies in part © Explain i Not applicable X

38. The board of directors shouid be kept fully informed of the business transacted and
decisions made by the executive committee. To this end, all board members should
receive a copy of the committee’s minutes.

Complies [1 Complies in part [ Explain 7 Not applicable X

39, All members of the audit committee, particularly its chairman, should be appointed with
regard to their knowledge and experience in accounting, auditing and risk management
matters. A majority of committee places should be held by independent directors.

Complies X Complies in part T Explain {J Not applicable [

40. The Company should have a unit in charge of the internal audit function, under the
supervision of the audit committee, to monitor the effectiveness of reporting and internal
control systems. This unit should report functionally to the board’s non-executive
chairman or the chairman of the audit committee.

Complies X Complies in part [l Explain T Not applicable T

41. The head of the unit handling internal audit function should present an annual work
programme to the audit committee, inform it directly of any incidents arising during its
implementation and submit an activities report at the end of each year.

Complies X Complies in part I} Explain L Not applicable 0

42. The audit committee should have the following functions over and above those legally
assigned:

1. With respect to internal control and reporting systems:

a) Monitor the preparation and the integrity of the financial information prepared on
the company and, where appropriate, the group, checking for compliance with
legal provisions, the accurate demarcation of the consolidation perimeter, and the
correct application of accounting principles.

b) Monitor the independence of the unit handling the internal audit function; propose
the selection, appointment, re-clection and removal of the head of the internal
audit service; propose the service’s budget; approve its priorities and work
programme, ensuring that it focuses primarily on the main risks the company is
exposed to; receive regular report-backs on its activities; and verify that senior
management are acting on the findings and recommendations of its reports.

¢) Establish and supervise a mechanism whereby staff can report, confidentially and,
if appropriate and feasible, anonymously, any significant irregularities that they
detect in the course of their duties, in particular financial or accounting
irregularities.

2. With regard to the external auditor:

a) Investigate the issues giving rise to the resignation of the external auditor, should
this come about.

b) Ensure that the remuneration of the external auditor does not compromise its
quality or independence.
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c) Ensure that the company notifies any change of external auditor to the CNMV as a
material event, accompanied by a statement of any disagreements arising with the
outgoing auditor and the reasons for the same. '

d) Ensure that the external auditor has a yearly meeting with the board in full to
inform it of the work undertaken and developments in the company’s risk and
accounting positions.

¢) Ensure that the company and the external auditor adhere to current regulations on
the provision of non-audit services, limits on the concentration of the auditor’s
business and other requirements concerning auditor independence.

Complies X Complies in part T Explain U

43. The audit committee should be empowered to meet with any company employee or
manager, even ordering their appearance without the presence of another senior officer.

Complies X Complies in part = Explain U

44. The Audit Committee should be informed of any fundamental changes or corporate
transactions the company is planning, so the committee can analyse the operation and
report to the board beforchand on its economic conditions and accounting impact and,
when applicable, the exchange ratio proposed.

Complies [ Complies in part T Explain O Not applicable X
45, Risk control and management policy should identify at Jeast:

a) The different types of financial and non-financial risk the company is exposed to
(including operational, technological, financial, legal, social, environmental, political
and reputational risks), with the inclusion under financial or economic risks of
contingent fiabilities and other off-balance sheet risks.

b) The determination of the risk level the company sees as acceptable.

¢) The measures in place to mitigate the impact of identified risk events should they
occur,

d) The internal contrel and reporting systems to be used to control and manage the
above risks, including contingent liabilities and off-balance sheet risks.

Complies X Complies in part L] Explain [

46. Companies should establish a risk control and management function in the charge of one
of the company’s internal department or units and under the direct supervision of the
audit committee or some other dedicated board committee. This function should be
expressly charged with the following responsibilities:

a) Ensure that risk control and management systems are functioning correctly and,
specifically, that major risks the company is exposed to are correctly identified,
managed and quantified.

b) Participate actively in the preparation of risk strategies and in key decisions about
their management.

¢) Ensure that risk control and management systems are mitigating risks effectively in
the frame of the policy drawn up by the board of directors.

Complies X Complies in part L Explain &
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47. Appointees 1o the appointments and remuneration committee — or of the nomination
committee and remuneration committee, if separately constituted — should have the right
palance of knowledge, skills and experience for the functions they are called on to
discharge. The majority of their members should be independent directors.

Complies X Complies in part T Explain U

48. Large cap companies should operate separately constituted nomination and remuneration
committees.

Complies C Explain O Not applicable X

49. The appointments committee should consult with the company's chairman and chief
executive, especially on matters relating to executive directors.

When there are vacancies on the board, any director may approach the appointment
committee to propose candidates that it might consider suitable.

Complies X Complies in part = Explain U

50. The remuneration committee should operate independently and have the following
functions in addition to those assigned by law:

a) Propose to the board the standard conditions for senior officer coniracts.

b) Monitor compliance with the remuneration policy set by the company.

¢} Periodically review the remuneration policy for directors and senior officers,
including share-based remuneration systems and their application, and ensure that

their individual compensation is proportionate to the amounts paid fo other
directors and senior officers in the company.

d) Ensure that conflicts of interest do not undermine the independence of any external
advice the committee engages.

¢) Verify the information on director and senior officers’ remuneration contained in
corporate documents, including the annual directors’ remuneration report.

Complies X Complies in part 7 Explain U

51, The remuneration committee should consult with the company’s chairmasn and chief
executive, especially on matters relating to executive directors and senior officers.

Complies X Complies in part 1 Explain &

52. The terms of reference of supervision and control committees should be set out in the
board of directors’ regulations and aligned with those governing legally mandatory
board committees as specified in the preceding sets of recommendations, including:

a) Committees should be formed exclusively by non-executive directors, with a
majority of independent directors.

b) They should be chaired by independent directors.

¢) The board should appoint the members of such committees with regard to the

knowledge, skills and experience of its directors and each committee’s terms of

reference; discuss their proposals and reports; and provide report-backs on their
activities and work at the first board plenary following each committee meeting.
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d) They may engage external advice, when they feel it necessary for the discharge of
their functions.

¢) Meeting proceedings should be minuted and a copy made available to all board
members.

Complies X Complies in part O Explain [ Not apphlicable [

53. The task of supervising compliance with corporate governance rules, internal codes of
conduct and corporate social responsibility policy should be assigned to one board
committee or split between several, which could be the audit committee, the nomination
committee, the corporate social responmsibility committee, where one exists, or a
dedicated committee established ad hoc by the board under its powers of self-
organization, with at the least the following functions:

a) Monitor compliance with the company’s internal codes of conduct and corporate
governance rules.

b) Oversee the communication and relations strategy with shareholders and investors,
including small and medium sized shareholders.

¢) Periodically evaluate the effectiveness of the company’s corporate governance
system, to confirm that it is fulfilling its mission to promote the corporate interest
and catering, as appropriate, to the legitimate interests of remaining stakeholders.

d) Review the company’s corporate social responsibility policy, ensuring that it is
geared to value creation.

¢) Monitor corporate social responsibility strategy and practices and assess compliance
in their respect.

f) Monitor and evaluate the company’s interaction with its stakeholder groaps. g)
Evaluate all aspects of the non-financial risks the company is exposed to, including
operational, technological, legal, social, environmental, political and reputational
risks.

h) Coordinate non-financial and diversity reporting processes in accordance with
applicable Jegislation and international benchmarks.

Complies X Complies in part = Explain [}

54, The corporate social responsibility policy should state the principles or commitments the
company will voluntarily adhere to in its dealings with stakeholder groups, specifying at
Jeast:

a) The goals of its corporate social responsibility policy and the support instruments to
be deployed.

b) The corporate strategy with regard to sustainability, the environment and social
issues.

¢) Concrete practices in matters relative to: shareholders, employees, clients, suppliers,
social welfare issues, the environment, diversity, fiscal responsibility, respect for
human rights and the prevention of illegal conducts.

d) The methods or systems for monitoring the results of the practices referred to above
and identifying and managing related risks.

¢} The mechanisms for supervising non-financial risk, ethics and business conduct.
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f) Channels for stakeholder communication, participation and dialogue.

g) Responsible communication practices that prevent the manipulation of information
and protect the company’s honour and integrity.

Complies X Complies in part CExplain O

55. The company should report on corporate social responsibility developments in its
directors’ report or in 2 separate document, using an internationally accepted
methodology.

Complies X Complies in part [Explain O

56. Director remuneration should be sufficient to attract individuals with the desired profile
and compensate the commitment, abilities and responsibility that the post demands, but
not so high as to compromise the independent judgement of non-executive directors.

Complies X Explain O

57. Variable remuneration linked to the company and the director’s performance, the award
of shares, options or any other right to acquire shares or to be remunerated on the basis
of share price movements, and membership of long term savings schemes such as
pension plans should be confined to executive directors.

The company may consider the share-based remuneration of non-executive directors
provided they retain such shares until the end of their mandate. This condition, however,
will not apply to shares that the director must dispose of to defray costs related fo their
acquisition.

Complies X Complies in part JExplain 7

58. In the case of variable awards, remuneration policies should include limits and technical
safeguards to ensure they reflect the professional performance of the beneficiaries and
not simply the general progress of the markets or the company’s sector, or circumstances
of that kind. In particular, variable remuneration items should meet the following
conditions:

a) Be subject to predetermined and measurable performance criteria that factor the
risk assumed to obtain a given outcome.

b) Promote the long-term sustainability of the company and include non-financial
criteria that are relevant for the company’s long-term value, such as compliance
with its internal rules and procedures and its risk control and management policies.

¢} Be focused on achieving a balance between the delivery of short, medium and long-
term objectives, such that performance-related pay rewards on-going achievement,
maintained over sufficient time to appreciate its contribution to long-term value
creation. This will ensure that performance measurement is not based solely on one-
off, occasional or extraordinary events.

Complies X Complies in part T Explain 0 Not applicable O

59. A major part of variable remuneration components should be deferred for a long enongh
period to ensure that predetermined performance criteria have effectively been met.

Complies X Complies in part & Explain C Not applicable T

60. Remuneration linked to company earnings should bear in mind any qualifications stated
in the external auditor’s report that reduce their amount.

Complies X Complies in part = Explain C Not applicable T
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61. A major part of executive directors’ variable remuneration should be linked to the award
of shares or financial instruments whose value is linked to the share price.

Complies X Complies in part [ Explain (0 Not applicable O

62. Following the award of shares, share options or other rights on shares derived from the
remuneration system, directors should not be allowed to transfer a number of shares
equivalent to twice their annual fixed remuneration, or to exercise the share options or
other rights on shares for at least three years after their award.

The above condition will not apply to any shares that the director must dispose of to
defray costs related to their acquisition.

Complies X Complies in part © Explain T Not applicable O

63. Contractual arrangements should include provisions that permit the company to reclaim
variable components of remuneration when payment was out of step with the Director's
actual performance or based on data subsequently found to be misstated.

Complies © Complies in part U Explain X Not applicablel]

64. Termination payments should not exceed 2 fixed amount eguivalent to two years of the
director’s total anpual remuneration and should not be paid until the company confirms
that he or she has met the predetermined performance criteria.

Crmplies X Complies in part = Explain = Not applicable 1

H OTHER INFOK:TATION OF INTEREST

1. If there is any other rclevant aspect as regards corporate governance in the company or in
group entities that has not been covered in this Report, but is necessary to include, to provide
more comprehensive and weii-grounded information on the corporate governance structure
and practices in your entity or its group, detail them briefly.

2. In this section, any other information, clarification or nuance may be included that is
related to the previous sections of the report, to the extent that they are relevant and not
reiterative.

In particular, state if the company is subject to different legislation than the Spanish
Jegislation in corporate governance matters and, where appropriate, include the information
that the company is obligated to provide which is different to that required in this report.

3. The company may aiso state if it has voluntarily signed up fo other interpational industry-
wide or any other codes of ethical principles or best practices. Where applicable, the code in
question will be identified along with the date of signing. In particular, the company will
Jeclare if it subscribed the Code of Best Tax Practices, of 20 July 2010.

Regarding item 3, the Board of Directors, at its meeting of February 23rd, 2016, unanimously
agreed the complete subscription of the Code of Best Tax Practices, which is currently being
processed. :

This annual corporate governance report was approved by the Board of Directors of the
company at its meeting of October 25th, 2016.

State whether any Directors voted against or abstained in connection with the approval of
this Report.

Yes = NoX
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AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE "INFORMATION RELATING TO THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER_FINANCIAL REPORTING (ICFR)' OF COMPANJA DE DISTRIBUCION
INTEGRAL LOGISTA HOLDINGS, 8.A. FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED ON SEPTEMBER 30"
2016

To the Dire,ctors of ,
COMPANIA DE DISTRIBUCION INTEGRAL LOGISTA HOLDINGS, S.A.:

As requested by the Board of Directors of Compafifa de Distribucién Integral Logista Holdings, S.A.
(“the Entity”) and in accordance with our proposal-letter of July 30% 2016, we have applied certain
procedures to the accompanying “Information relating to the ICFR” of Compafiia de Distribucion Integral
Logista Holdings, S.A. for the fiscal year ended on September 30™ 2016, which summarises the internal
control procedures of the Entity in relation to its annual financial reporting.

The Board of Directors is responsible for adopting the appropriate measures in order to reasonably
guarantee the implementation, maintenance and supervision of an adequate internal control system and
for making improvements to that system and for preparing and establishing the content of the
accompanying information refating to the ICFR system included in section F) of the accompanying
Annual Corporate Governance Report (ACGR).

It should be noted in this regard, irrespective of the quality of the design and operational effectiveness of
the internal control system adopted by the Entity in relation to its annual financial reporting, that the
system can only permit reasonable, but not absolute, assurance in connection with the objectives pursued,
due to the limitations inherent to any internal control system.

In the course of our audit work on the financial statements and pursuant to Technical Audifing Standards,
the sole purpose of our assessment of the internal control of the Entity was to enable us to establish the
scope, nature and timing of the audit procedures to be applied to the Entity's financial statements.
Therefore, our assessment of internal control performed for the purposes of the aforementioned audit of
financial statements was not sufficiently extensive to enable us to express a specific opinion on the
effectiveness of the internal control over the regulated annual financial reporting.

For the purpose of issuing this report, we applied exclusively the specific procedures described below
and indicated in the Guidelines on the Auditors’ Report on the Information relating to the System of
Internal Contro} over Financial Reporting of Listed Companies, published by the Spanish National
Securities Market Commission on its website, which establishes the work to be performed, the minimum
scope thereof and the content of this report. Since the work resulting from such procedures has, in any
case, a reduced scope that is significantly less extensive than that of an audit or a review of the internal
control system, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness thereof, or on its design or operating
effectiveness, in relation to the Entity's annua! financial reporting for the fiscal year ended on September
30™ 2016 described in the accompanying information on the ICFR system. Therefore, had we applied
procedures additional to those established in the aforementioned Guidelines or performed an audit or a
review of the internal control over the regulated annual financial reporting, other matters or aspects might
have been disclosed which would have been reported to you.

Detaitte, 5.L. Inscrita en el Registro Mercants de Madrtd, tomo 13.650, seccion B2, folio 188, hoj E2-BA414, inscripcion 967, CLE: 279104489,
Dormiciho social: Plaza Pablo Ruiz fca350, 1, Torre Picasw, 28020, iadrid.



Also, since this special engagement does not constitute an audit of financial statements and is not subject
to the consolidated Spanish audit law, we do not express an audit opinion in the terms provided for in that
Law.

The procedures applied were as follows:

1.

t

6.

Perusal and understanding of the information prepared by the Entity in relation to the ICFR system -
disclosure information inciuded in the directors’ report - and assessment of whether this information
addresses all the information required considering the minimum content described in section F, relating
to the description of the ICFR system, of the ACGR form, as established in CNMV Circular 7/2015 of
December 22 2015,

Inguiries of personnel in charge of preparing the information detailed in point 1 above for the purpose of
achieving: (i) familiarisation with the preparation process; (ii) obtainment of the information required in
order to assess whether the terminology used is adapted to the definitions provided in the reference
framework; (iil) obtainment of information on whether the aforementioned control procedures have been
implemented and are i use at the Entity.

Review of the explanatory documents supporting the information detailed in point 1 above, including
documents directly made available to those responsible for describing the ICFR systems. In this respect,
the aforementioned documentation includes reporis prepared by the Internal Audit Department, senior
executives or other internal or external experts providing support functions to the Audit Committee.

Comparison of the information detailed in point 1 above with the knowledge on the Entity's ICFR obtained
through the procedures applied during the financial statement audit work.

Reading of the minutes iaken at meetings of the Board of Directors, Audit and Control Committee and
other committees of the Entity to evaluate the consistency between the ICFR business transacted and the
information detailed in point 1 above.

Obtainment of the representation letter in connection with the work performed, signed by those
respensible for preparing and formulating the information detailed in point 1 above.

The procedures appiied to the information relating to the ICFR system did not disclose any inconsistencies or
incidents that might affect the information.

This report has been prepared exclusively in the context of the requirements of article 540 of Corporate
Enterprises Act and by CNMV Circular 7/2015 of December 22™ 2015, published by the Spanish
National Securities Market Commission for the purposes of the description of the JCFR system in Annual

avgrnance Reports,

Partner
October 26™, 2016



Certificate on the issuance of the financial statements

Consolidated Financial Statements and Consolidated Directors Report for the year ended 30 September
2018, have been formally prepared by the Parent Company Board of Directors, Compafiia de Distribucién
integral Logista Holdings, S.A,, at its meeting on 27 October 2015 in order to be audited and approved by

the Shareholders.

Corporate Governance Annual Report for the year ended 30 September 2016, which is part of

Consolidated Direciors Repott, is included below as a Consolidated Directors Report separate section.

Consolidated Financial Statements and Consolidated Directors Report are set forth on 75 sheets, on the
obverse only, all of which are signed by the Chairman and Secretary of the Board of Directors, wha in

witness whereof, have signed below:

D, Gregorio Marafion y Bertrén de Lis ' D, Luis Egido Galvez

Chairman Chief Executive

D, Stéphane Lissner ' D&, Cristina Garmendia Mendizabal
Director Director

D, Eduardo Zaplana Hernandez-Soro Mr, John Matthew Downing
Director Director

Mr, Richard Guy Hathaway . Mr, David lan Resnekov

Direcior Director

D, Nicholas James Keveth D, Rafael de Juan Lopez

Director Director and Secretary of the Board

Leganés, 26 October 2016



